
Page 1 of 3 

 

City Council Meeting and Workshop         

March 17, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Budget Presentations 

a. Joint Services, Library, Economic Development, and Community Development Block Grant 

(Citizen Participation Plan and Curb Appeal Update) – Public Comment  

b. City Manager, County Tax, Fringe Benefits, Legal, Mayor and Council, Worker’s 

Compensation, Special Funds, and Enterprise Funds  - Public Comment 

B. Montreal Rail Resolve – Clint Deschene (15 minutes) 

C. PAL Lease agreement – Phil Crowell (10 minutes) 

 

Due to the heavy workshop agenda and light meeting agenda, the workshop items will continue after 

the meeting as long as it does not delay the adjournment of the meeting beyond 9:30 P.M. 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 

 

Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Young 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Order 20-03172014* 

Approving the temporary sign request for Safe Voices for the Walk/Run to End Domestic 

Violence to be held on June 1, 2014. 

 

2. Order 21-03172014* 

Approving the temporary sign request for the Kora Shrine for the 2014 circus to be held in 

April. 

 

3. Order 22-03172014* 

Approving the temporary sign request for the Auburn Business Association for the 

Auburn Citizen of the Year signs. 

 

4. Order 23-03172014* 

Approving the new retirement plan for the Firefighters that was approved as part of the 

collective bargaining agreement. 

II.    Minutes   

 March 3, 2014 Regular Council Meeting  

 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 March 17, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

             City Councilors’ Reports   

 City Manager Report 

 EMS (Emergency Management Service) update 

 Review of the costs for privatization of Assessment Services 
 

            Finance Director, Jill Eastman  

 February 2014 Monthly Finance Report 

 

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

 Recognition – Mike Lecompte 

 Proclamation – Women’s History Month 

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

                                        

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

1. Ordinance 02-03172014  
Adopting the newly proposed ward maps and descriptions. Public hearing and second 

reading. 

VII.    New Business  
 

2. Order 24-03172014  
Authorizing the City Manager to sign the lease agreement for the PAL Center building 

located at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

3. Resolve 04-03172014  
Supporting the hotel train service between Montreal and Boston which would pass 

through Auburn. 

 

4. Order 25-03172014   

 Appointing Renee LaChapelle as Interim Tax Assessor from 3/16/2014 to 6/30/2014. 

 

VIII. Executive Session  

 Discussion regarding a personel matter (City Manager review), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 

§405(6)(A). 

 Discussion regarding a personel matter (Norway Savings Bank Arena Management), pursuant to 1 

M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A). 

IX.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                               City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 March 17, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session 

are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 

disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that 

body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 

30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 

the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Budget Workshop #3 

 

Information: Budget presentations for; 

Joint Services, Library, Economic Development, and Community Development Block Grant (which will also 

include an update on the Citizen Participation Plan and Curb Appeal update) with public comment to follow. 

City Manager, County Tax, Fringe Benefits, Legal, Mayor and Council, Worker’s Compensation, Special 

Funds, and Enterprise Funds followed by public comment.  

 

Financial: Budget 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion and public comment. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Budget discussions began at the 2/20/2014 Council Workshop and continued 

2/24/2014 and 3/3/2014. 

 

Attachments:  

 Joint Services 

 Library 

 Economic Development 

 Community Development Block Grant.  

 City Manager 

 County Tax 

 Fringe Benefits 

 Legal 

 Mayor and Council 

 Worker’s Compensation 

 Special Funds 

 Enterprise Funds  

Council workshop Date:  March 17, 2014 Item  A 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 March 2014 
 
 
 
 
The Honorable Jonathon LaBonte, Mayor of Auburn 
Auburn Council Members 
 
 
Dear Mayor LaBonte, and Council Members, 
 
 
Contained herein is the Auburn-Lewiston Airport Operations Budget for consideration 
and inclusion in the City of Auburn Fiscal Year 15 Annual Budget.   
 
This budget submission marks the beginning of a 5-year movement to make the airport 
self-sustaining and self-supporting.  This is not only the desire of City of Lewiston or the 
City of Auburn but federal airport funding statues mandate that the owners of the airport 
expend every effort to attain the airport’s self-sufficiency.  The airport’s Fiscal Year 15 
Capital Improvement Budget submitted previously and this operations budget are 
designed to bring that goal to fruition.   
 
Auburn-Lewiston Airport cannot attain self-sufficiency without development of the lands 
inside the fence for the highest and best aeronautical use.  First, this means the 
construction of hangars and other structures that serve the airport and the community as 
revenue-producing investment.  The funding to purchase the first of this particular 
investment is contained in the Capital Improvement request before you.  This investment 
in construction should be made so that the airport reaps the income directly and not a 
private developer.  This is a very important part of the overall plan.   
 
Second, the condition of the airport and the appearance of the aircraft service equipment 
and the employees using that equipment are also integral to attaining the goal of self-
sufficiency.  Investment in professional training and modern tools allow the airport staff 
to generate the confident business-like acumen required of those who literally make the 
first impression on visitors flying to this community.  The training leads to certification 
within the aviation industry and keeps the airport on a proficient footing, minimizing 
mistakes, and engendering safety.  Operationally, there is investment in the 
infrastructure that simply needs fix-up and clean up.   
 
This year’s budget moves the airport forward.  It continues the best of the growth 
initiatives already in place and shown in the airport’s master plans. This budget provides 
some of the ingredients for the airport to become a more integrated member of the 

 
80 Airport Drive, Auburn, ME   04210 

(207) 786 0631   FAX: (207) 782 3024 



regional transportation system.  It makes the airport able to perform its community role 
as a gateway to the community and the region.  This was the original idea for the airport 
when the cities first decided to dedicate the area for aeronautical use.  We look forward 
to continuing that role into the future.   
  
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Rick Lanman, AAE, ACE 
Manager 



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

 FY 12  FY 13 FY 14 Final 
Revision

FY 14 Actual as 
of 1 March 14

FY-15

Revenues
Operations 547,044.00 475,871.00 435,714.80 364,726.52 492,770.80

FBO Services 0.00 284,078.00 678,000.00 441,920.19 745,623.53
Other Income 21,690.00 19,976.00 18,500.00 37,388.77 20,350.00

Total 568,734.00 779,925.00 1,132,214.80 844,035.48 1,258,744.33

Expenses
Personnel (351,206.00) (309,206.00) (286,019.00) (199,673.10) (301,565.53)

Operations (78,434.00) (94,593.00) (89,500.00) (56,211.17) (96,550.00)
Maintnenance (52,835.00) (42,940.00) (43,000.00) (41,404.23) (86,963.55)

Adminisitration (300,771.00) (292,433.00) (282,750.00) (326,568.64) (333,497.00)
FBO Services 0.00 (354,866.00) (631,162.61) (469,621.43) (732,116.59)

Total (783,246.00) (1,094,038.00) (1,332,431.61) (1,093,478.57) (1,550,692.67)

Net Earnings (214,512.00) (314,113.00) (200,216.81) (249,443.09) (291,948.34)

Capital Improvement Plan 0.00 0.00 20,000.00

Sponsor Contribution 213,500.00 210,000.00 210,000.00 210,000.00 292,000.00
Amount per City 106,750.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 105,000.00 146,000.00

Net (1,012.00) (104,113.00) 9,783.19 (39,443.09) 51.66

Summary



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Operations
Based Aircraft Tiedown Fees Collected 14,976.00 18,044.00 12,000.00 9,807.89 18,000.00
Landing Fees Collected            8,095.00 13,882.00 15,000.00 14,189.30 25,000.00
Fuel Flowage Fees Collected 11,673.00 10,890.00 7,000.00 5,423.60 10,000.00
Rental Fees Collected (see footnote 1) 400,893.00 360,316.00 348,214.80 278,052.15 341,470.80
Christian Hill Materials 109,282.00 67,898.00 50,000.00 55,378.58 95,000.00
Service Fees Collected 2,125.00 4,841.00 3,500.00 1,875.00 3,300.00
SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS 547,044.00 475,871.00 435,714.80 364,726.52 492,770.80

Other Income
Excise Tax Revenues 18,182.00 18,876.00 18,000.00 20,000.00
Surplus (fund balance) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest (land fund and general account) 3,508.00 1,100.00 500.00 344.02 350.00
Sale of Asset 0.00 37,044.75
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 21,690.00 19,976.00 18,500.00 37,388.77 20,350.00

Sponsor Contribution 213,500.00 210,000.00 210,000.00 183,750.00 292,000.00

TOTAL INCOME 782,234.00 989,925.00 1,342,214.80 1,027,785.48 1,550,744.33

Summary of Revenues

 FY 13 

1. Operations Rental Fees Collected may be higher with advent of restaurant in terminal and purchase of Hangar as proposed for this 
Fiscal Year.

 FY-15 
 FY 14 Final 

Revision 
 FY 14 Actual as 

of 1 March 14  FY 12 



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Lessee LeaseHold Lease Date Term Number of 
options

Adjustment 
term

Beginning 
Rent

Next 
Adjustment 

Date

Current 
monthly Rent

Current Annual 
Rent

Geneva Aviation White Hangar 8/1/04 20 years 1,360.83 16,329.96
Life- Flight Air Ambulance Life flight Hangar 4/1/00 5 years 2 5 years 3,320.00 39,840.00
Bel Air Service T Hangars Land 10/6/99 20 years 2 5 years 10/06/2014 217.17 2,606.04
 Platz  TIM Corp T Hangars Land 1/1/87 20 years 5 5 years 93.96 1,127.52
Auburn Hangar Condo Assoc. T Hangars Land 6/7/01 20 years 5 years* 1,933.85 23,206.20
Skyward Aviation Activity fee no lease 41.67 500.04
L/A Flying Service Flight SchooMain Terminal/AirLine Office 1/2/13 2 years 0 none 450.00$    none 450.00 5,400.00
Luftansa Technic, Inc. Hangar 5 8/1/08 UNSPEC 0 UNSPEC 01/06/2012 05/15/2015 20,250.00 243,000.00
Twin Cities Air Service no lease 41.67 500.04
Duke Energy Gas Upload 10/22/97 25 years 0 5 years 10/22/2017 746.75 8,961.00
City of Auburn Intermodal Park 9/1/94 20 years 8 - 10 year 5 years $1 07/01/2014 370.50 4,446.00

Total 28,455.90 341,470.80

1. Operations Rental Fees Collected may be higher with advent of restaurant in terminal and purchase of Hangar as proposed for this Fiscal Year.

Activity fee

Activity fee

Schedule of Rents Due



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

 FY 12  FY 13  FY 14 Final 
Revision 

FY 14 Actual as 
of 1 March 14  FY-15 

Personnel
Salaries             236,682.00 201,459.00 202,110.00 128,053.73             197,040.74               
Fringe Benefits 107,472.00 96,525.00 80,844.00 64,334.80               85,040.39                 
Overtime 4,071.00 2,748.00 2,500.00 2,612.51                 2,850.00                    
Professional Development 2,981.00 8,474.00 565.00 4,672.06                 16,634.40                 
TOTAL PERSONNEL 351,206.00 309,206.00 286,019.00 199,673.10             301,565.53               

Operations
Professional Fees/Contract Services 28,986.00 35,325.00 30,000.00 10,674.70                      20,000.00                       
Lights and Power 17,526.00 22,685.00 18,000.00 12,804.64                      20,000.00                       
Heating Fuel Oil / Propane 10,167.00 16,003.00 15,000.00 9,028.13                        8,050.00                          
Gas and Oil for Vehicles 18,851.00 18,151.00 15,000.00 17,525.57                      26,500.00                       
Snow and Ice Control Supplies 0.00 10,000.00 5,260.14                        20,000.00                       
Sewer /Water 2,904.00 2,429.00 1,500.00 917.99                           2,000.00                          
SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS 78,434.00 94,593.00 89,500.00 56,211.17               96,550.00                 

Maintnenance
Building Maintenance   15,725.00 14,841.00 10,000.00 15,914.52                      25,475.00                       
Electrical Maintenance 8,764.00 4,442.00 5,000.00 1,163.50                        5,000.00                          
Radio Maintenance 0.00 3,000.00 500.00 107.92                           4,500.00                          
Vehicle Maintenance 11,678.00 11,498.00 5,000.00 16,353.56                      12,925.00                       
Airfield Maintenance 10,996.00 9,159.00 10,000.00 7,864.73                        39,063.55                       
Pavement Maintenance (Runway Crack Sealing) 5,672.00 0.00 12,500.00 (See Footnote #2)
SUBTOTAL MAINTENANCE 52,835.00 42,940.00 43,000.00 41,404.23               86,963.55                 

Adminisitration
Computer/Office Machine Maintenance Support 6,269.00 822.00 2,500.00 1,622.30                        2,000.00                          
Advertising and Promotion 1,225.00 3,897.00 0.00 5,000.00                          
Hangar Lease (Footnote 1) 252,914.00 249,750.00 249,750.00 249,750.00                    249,750.00                     
Insurance 22,066.00 27,621.00 25,000.00 68,159.85                      66,247.00                       
Legal Fees 12,258.00 1,965.00 1,000.00 2,497.84                        2,500.00                          
Office Supplies 3,277.00 3,628.00 2,500.00 2,646.56                        5,000.00                          
Telephone and Internet 2,762.00 4,750.00 2,000.00 1,892.09                        3,000.00                          
SUBTOTAL ADMINISTRATION 300,771.00 292,433.00 282,750.00 326,568.64             333,497.00               

TOTAL OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 783,246.00 739,172.00 701,269.00 623,857.14 818,576.08

TOTAL EXPENSES 783,246.00 1,094,038.00 1,332,431.61 1,093,478.57          1,550,692.67            
1 ‐ Potential Expense savings available through purchase of building from Nobility.  For further details see Appendix A

Summary of Expenses

2.  Maine DOT will be sponsoring a 100% funed grant for pavement cracksealing on Airports during the summer 14 season.  



Auburn‐Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY‐15 Annual Budget Proposal

 

 Individual  Airport  Individual  Airport Individual Airport individiual airport 

Airport Director           35.90 -           35.90            37.50         1,346.15 69,999.54 4,339.97 4,339.97 1,014.99 1,014.99 -            5,072.00     4,549.97    4,549.97   -          -            14,976.93          
-                     

 -                     
Airport Secretary           21.00 -           21.00            37.50            787.50      40,950.00 2,538.90 2,538.90 593.78 593.78 2,692.20    15,215.34   2,661.75    2,661.75   -          300.00      21,309.77          

-                     
-                     

Operations Supervisor  Open            40.00                   -                     -   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -                     
-                     

 -                     
Operations Specialist -                     

Ops Spec I           13.50 Ops Spec II           15.00            40.00            600.00      31,200.00 1,934.40 1,934.40 452.40 452.40 2,692.20    15,215.34   1,560.00    1,872.00   200.00    300.00      19,974.14          
Ops Spec I           13.00 Ops Spec I           13.39            40.00            535.60      27,851.20 1,726.77 1,726.77 403.84 403.84 -            5,071.56     1,392.56    1,671.07   200.00    300.00      9,373.25            
Ops Spec I           13.00 Ops Spec I           13.00            40.00            520.00      27,040.00 1,676.48 1,676.48 392.08 392.08 2,692.20    15,215.34   1,352.00    1,622.40   200.00    300.00      19,406.30          

-                     
 -                     
FBO Supervisor           18.50 -           19.00            40.00            760.00      39,520.00 2,450.24 2,450.24 573.04 573.04 2,866.00    5,482.00     2,568.80    2,568.80   200.00    300.00      11,574.08          

2,371.00     2,371.00            
-                     

Aircraft Mechanic  Open            40.00                   -                     -   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -          -                     
-                     
-                     

Line Service Agent -                     
Line I           13.00 Line II           14.00            40.00            560.00      29,120.00 1,805.44 1,805.44 422.24 422.24 5,071.56     1,456.00    1,747.20   200.00    300.00      9,546.44            
Line I           12.50 Line I           12.50            40.00            500.00      26,000.00 1,612.00 1,612.00 377.00 377.00 2,260.96     -             -            200.00    300.00      4,749.96            
Line I           12.00 Line I           12.36            40.00            494.40      25,708.80 1,593.95 1,593.95 372.78 372.78 15,125.34   1,285.44    1,542.53   200.00    300.00      19,134.59          
Line I  Open            40.00                   -   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -                     

-                     
Customer Service -                     

Customer Service Rep           12.00           12.36            40.00             494.40      25,708.80 1,593.95 1,593.95 372.78 372.78 1,197.00    6,783.10     1,285.44    1,542.53   200.00    300.00      10,792.35          
Customer Service Rep           12.00           12.36            40.00             494.40      25,708.80 1,593.95 1,593.95 372.78 372.78 1,197.00    6,783.10     -             -            200.00    300.00      9,249.82            

waiver  Single with child 1428.44 1,197.00            
P/T & On call staff -                     

           20.00                   -                     -   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -                     
           20.00                   -   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -                     

-                     

Clothing Wellness

Airport Staffing And Salary Proposals

 FICA  Medicare 
Annual Employer 
Share and FringeCurrent 

Hourly Rate

Proposed 
Position

Proposed 
Hourly Rate

Hours Per 
Pay Period

Weekly Gross 
Paycheck 

 Annual Total 
Salaries 

Healthcare retirement



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Summary
Memberships 1,845.00
Employee Training 7,089.60
Industry Conference 7,699.80

Total 16,634.40

Memberships Individual Group
Androscoggin Chamber of Commerce 305.00
American Association of Airport Executives 275.00
Northeastern Chapter of AAAE 200.00
National Air Transport Association 260.00
Aircraft Pilots and Owners Association 70.00
National Fire Protection Association 165.00
Maine Municipal Association 570.00
TOTAL 545.00 1,300.00

Training Events

Date Location Title of Training Sponsor Org Registion Hotel Travel Number of 
Attendees

Total

On-Going LEW Safety First Certification for Line Service NATA 310.00 2 620.00
On-Going LEW Customer Service, Safety & Security NATA 110.00 10 1,100.00 Part of Employee Indoctrination Training
On-Going LEW Safety and Health Training for Aviation Facilities (OSHA) NATA 24.00 10 240.00

25-29 April 2015 BUF Airport Safety and Operations School AAAE 500.00 390.00 324.80 2 2,429.60
27 - 29 July 2014 BOS Winter Operations and De-ice Conference AAAE/NEC 500.00 650.00 200.00 2 2,700.00

7,089.60

Industry Conferences

Date Location Title of Training Sponsor Org Registion Hotel Travel Number of 
Attendees

Total

13-15 July 2014 PIT  General Aviation Issues & Security Conference AAAE     450.00     700.00     500.00 1 1,650.00   
27- 29 July 2014 BOS Winter Operations and De-ice Conference AAAE     500.00     800.00     100.00 1 1,400.00   

10-13 August 2014 BUF Northeast Chapter AAAE Annual Conference and Exposition AAAE/NEC 250.00   650.00   450.00   1 1,350.00   
28 - 30 September 2014 PDX National Airports Conference AAAE 450.00   650.00   550.00   1 1,650.00   

25-29 April 2015 BUF International Aviation Snow Symposium AAAE/NEC 500.00   650.00   324.80   -           
7 - 10 June 2015 PHL American Association of Airport Exec Annual Conference AAAE 675.00   650.00   324.80   1 1,649.80   

7,699.80   

www.androscoggincounty.com/

www.aopa.org
Discounts for multi-year

TOTAL

Desired by Charter Operators

Teaches Certificated Airport Standards

Comments

TOTAL

Professional Development Activity

www.aaae.org
www.necaaae.org
www.nata.aero

Meets State Law Training Requirements

Comments



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Type Insurance  Provider/Underwirter
Renewal 
Date

2012 2013 2014 2015

Worker's comp Maine Municipal Association Jan 16,832.70        18,001.00        31,531.00        31,531.00       
Adjustment ‐ Audited balance from previoius yr Maine Municipal Association 2,563.00          13,530.00      

Property Casualty Maine Municipal Association July 5,154.00          5,521.00          8,749.00          8,749.00         
CR‐Forgery or Alteration Maine Municipal Association July 115.00              115.00             
CR‐Empl Dishonesty/Faithful Perform Maine Municipal Association July 115.00              115.00             
CR‐Theft/Disapperance/Destruction Maine Municipal Association July 115.00              115.00             
Electronic Date Processing Maine Municipal Association July 23.00                23.00               
PR Equipment/Boiler Maine Municipal Association July 1,165.00          1,165.00         

Public Officials Maine Municipal Association July 2,815.00          5,353.00          4,712.00          4,712.00         

Auto Liablility Maine Municipal Association July ‐                    ‐                    2,911.00          2,911.00         
Auto Physical Damage Maine Municipal Association July ‐                    ‐                    1,851.00          1,851.00         
Contractors/Mobile Equip Maine Municipal Association July ‐                    ‐                    2,198.00          2,198.00         

Airport General Liability Aviation Insurance Resouces February 2,635.00          2,635.00          2,016.00          2,016.00         
Products and Completed Operations Liability Republic Insurance February 7,791.00        7,350.00       
Hangarkeepers Liability Republic Insurance February 3,396.00        3,396.00       

Total 29,999.70        45,040.00        66,688.00        66,247.00       

Insurance Summary



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Priority Materials Tools Contractor
Repairs and improvements
Paint FBO Building High 1,000.00          125.00    No Includes $250 for wheeled man lift 
Install LED exterior lighting medium 4,000.00          ‐           No Includes Terminal Ramp Lighting. Potential Energy savings
Install LED interior lighting medium 2,000.00          ‐           No Potential Energy savings
Realign Equipment Storage Doors High 2,000.00               Doors tracks damaged during icy weather
Repair Roof on FBO Building High 500.00             250.00    Joints need to be sealed and gaps siliconed.  

Recurring Maintenance
Spring Clean up Medium 2,500.00          200.00    No Includes grass seed and perennials for flower boxes
Light Bulbs  High 900.00             ‐           No For non LED converted 
Janitor Service High 4,500.00               Once a week and semi annual floor stripping
Cleaning Supplies High 1,500.00          No
Air and water filters High 1,000.00         
Trash Pickup Service High 1,000.00              

Fire Extinguisher Inspections High 2,500.00                Alarm and Sprinklers for all buildings and hand‐held bottles.
HVAC Annual Preventive Maintenance Service High 1,500.00                Includes boiler inspections 

13,400.00        575.00    11,500.00            

Grand total 25,475.00            

Building Maintenance



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Priority Materials Tools Contractor
Engine Repairs and Parts 1,500.00                      500.00                    Done in House 
Tires 1,000.00                     
Inspections 175.00                        
Paint 250.00                          Includes labor 

Repair/ mower decks 2,000.00                     
15ft mowing deck is due for replacement in 
FY 16 

Repair/plow units 2,500.00                       new blades and retaining pins 

Repair/ snow blower units 3,000.00                       filters and other preventive maintenance 

Steel, Wood, Cable 1,000.00                     
parts cleaner   500.00                          Quarterly service contract 
oil water separator Maintenance 500.00                        

Total 11,250.00                    500.00                   1,175.00                     

Gas and Oil
Auto Gas 5,250.00                       1500 Gal @ 3.50 
Motor oil & Lubricants 2,500.00                       Includes oil filters for regular change 
Diesel Fuel for equipment/vehicles 18,750.00                     5000 Gal @ 3.75 

Total 26,500.00                   

Heating Fuel (See Note #1)
Terminal and Maintenance building 2,800.00                       800 @ 3.50 
FBO 5,250.00                      1500 @ 3.50

Vehicles 

 1.  Completion of Natural Gas installation is not considered in this amount.  This amount will be reduced when Natural Gas is installed and outfitted to working 
order in the airport buildings.  



Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY-15 Annual Budget Proposal

Priority Materials Tools Contractor
Fuel Farm
Underground Tank Registration ‐ MDEP 350.00                 
Tank Inspections ‐ Petroleum Maintenance Systems 5,000.00                2,500.00              
Meter Inspections , fuel farm‐ State of Maine 1,150.00              
Fuel Pump.Tank Repairs/Parts 3,000.00               

Total 8,000.00                ‐                      4,000.00              
Pavement
Vibratory Roller Rent for RSAs 1,000.00               
Winter Sand Supply ‐                        
Paint for Runway and Taxiways 2,500.00                500.00            

Fencing and Gates
Fence Repairs 2,500.00               
Gate Repairs 2,000.00               Matenance and upgrading
Wildlife Deterrents 1,000.00                Screamer Shell  4 box
Gate Cards 1,500.00                50 ea in box

Lighting

Sign Repairs 5,000.00                  
Circuit boards and replacement panels

Light bulbs used in field lighting scheme as required by FAA Standards
M‐16 Reflectors 2,100.00                75 ea @ 28.00
Quartz Bulb  EVV 798.75                   45 ea @ 17.75
Quartz Bulb EXL 612.00                   48 ea @ 12.75
Quartz Bulb EXM 312.00                   24 ea @ 13.00
Quartz Bulb EZL 340.80                   16 ea @ 21.30

Transformers 3,150.00                10 ea @ 315.00

Grounds Maintenance
Paint for segmented circle, tower, etc 500.00                  
Windsocks 750.00                  
Grass Seed/mulch/topsoil/plants 500.00                  
Vegetation removal/Wood Chipper 500.00                  
Weed Trimmers

Miscellaneous 

Total 39,063.55             

Airfield Maintenance



Auburn‐Lewiston Municipal Airport
FY‐15 Annual Budget Proposal

 FY 12  FY 13  FY 14 Final 
Revision 

 FY 14 Actual as 
of 1 March 14  FY-15 

Services Revenues
Fuel and Oil Sales 260,737.00 610,500.00 406,260.61         669,123.53         
Transient Tie-Down/Hangaring 14,760.00 20,000.00 17,837.60           30,000.00           
Professional/Catering 2,957.00 5,000.00 5,204.27             10,000.00           
After Hour Call-out 125.00 10,000.00 440.00                750.00                
Aircraft Maintence 5,499.00 32,500.00 12,177.71           35,750.00           
SUBTOTAL SERVICES 284,078.00 678,000.00 441,920.19         745,623.53

Services Expenses
Salaries 79,096.00 158,470.00 119,639.22         171,766.40         
Fringe Benefits 35,115.00 63,388.00 11,204.79           65,047.25           
Overtime 0.00 5,000.00 2,164.89             3,750.00             
Advertising 2,362.00 5,000.00 5,427.15             10,000.00           
Fuels and Oils Merchandise 213,808.00 386,304.61 288,317.97         430,602.94         
Utilities 0.00 5,000.00 13,141.03           12,000.00           
Plant Equipment 9,701.00 1,000.00 1,950.94             3,500.00             
Ground Support Equipment (GSE) 13,319.00 1,000.00 18,484.11           25,000.00           
Information systems Equipment 0.00 0.00 -                     -                     
Materials and Supplies for Ground Service 1,465.00 6,000.00 9,291.33             10,450.00           
SUBTOTAL SERVICE (FBO OPERATIONS) 0.00 354,866.00 631,162.61 469,621.43 732,116.59

13,506.94

Fixed Base Operation



Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications System 

Phyllis Gamache, Director 
552 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 ~~ 207.795.0743 fax 
 

        
           
Cities of Lewiston & Auburn       February 20, 2014 
Budget Reviews 
 
 
Attached please find the FY2015 budget proposal from the Lewiston-Auburn Emergency 
Communications System. This proposal has been reviewed by the Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Committee, and was approved for submission on February 19, 2014. The Center’s overall bottom 
line reflects a 5.5% increase in funding over FY14 levels. 
 
This year’s increase is due to two significant one-time purchases: the replacement of the existing 
telephone and radio recording system, and a study that will measure signal strength and coverage 
throughout the two cities. 
 
The existing recording system was purchased in 2008. At the time of purchase, the recorder model 
and type was selected based the need to record all incoming 9-1-1 lines (as required by the Public 
Utilities Commission), all radio frequencies and all incoming business and extension-to-extension 
calls. Since that purchase, Auburn City Hall, which provides the backbone of LA911’s telephone 
system, migrated to a cost-saving, IP-based phone system, and the existing recorder cannot record 
the business and extension phone lines as a result of this migration. 
 
Now is the most cost efficient time to replace the recording system as the vendor offers trade-in 
value on the existing system, trade-in value that diminishes with time. The new system will record 
all lines lost in the last phone migration, and will include the necessary room for NextGen 9-1-1 
expansion, including increased storage to capture text messages, video, and photos, and can 
reasonably be expected to meet the center’s needs for the next four to five years. 
 
The second significant purchase in the FY15 budget is money set aside to conduct an extensive and 
thorough radio signal strength and saturation study in preparation of a capital upgrade. Markers 
have been set in place for a FY16 CIP purchase to replace the radio infrastructure on which both 
cities’ police, fire and public works departments rely for mobile communication. That system, 
which was designed and built 17 years ago, is technologically obsolete, and construction and 
communications modalities have diminished the effectiveness of the existing network. A signal 
strength and saturation study, conducted by an impartial third party, would lay the ground work to 
correct existing ‘dead spots’, ensure a system designed for our specific needs, and would provide a 
template from which to build a network that meets the needs of all six departments and LA911 for 
an anticipated 15 to 18 years. 
  



 
Absent of these two projects, which are not eligible for CIP funding and do not appear to fit current 
grant parameters, the Center’s budget would be up 2.5%, which reflects a contractual payroll 
increase of 2.5% and longevity steps.  
 
 
Call volume remains on the rise. Incoming 9-1-1 calls were up 2.9%, from 40,498 calls in 2012 
(111 9-1-1 calls per day) to 41,709 calls in 2013 (114 9-1-1 calls per day); 911 telecommunicators 
answered 95,836 business calls or 262.56 calls per day. The number of fire, police, and 9-1-1 
records in the database commonly referred to by the vendor name ‘IMC’ was up significantly from 
90,359 records entered or created to 106,735records entered or created, an increase of 18.12%.  
 
Thank you for your consideration of our budget proposal. 
 
 
 
 

2014-2015 9-1-1 Committee Members 
 
 

Lewiston:        
 
Chief Paul LeClair, Lewiston Fire Department, Chair    
Chief Mike Bussiere, Lewiston Police Department 
Councilor Donald D’Auteuil, Lewiston City Council 
Heather Hunter, Lewiston citizen-at-large, Treasurer 
 
Auburn: 
 
Chief Phil Crowell, Auburn Police Department, Vice Chair 
Chief Frank Roma, Auburn Fire Department 
Councilor LeRoy Walker, Auburn City Council 
Dr. David Stuchiner, Auburn citizen-at-large 
Patricia Mador, Auburn citizen-at-large * 
 
 
*Ninth member appointment rotates between cities every three years. 

 



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Item Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Salaries / Wages 40100  Total 1,096,081       1,124,163          -                  
  

Estimated Detail of Salaries / Wages    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Organizational Structure
 Staff

Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Director 1 76,992$            -$               
Systems Manager 1 59,575$            -$               

IT Tech 1 39,039$            
Office Manager 1 36,075$            -$               
Shift Supervisors (non-union)  3 139,589$           -$               
Supervisor (union) 3 132,329$           -$               
Line Dispatchers (union) 16 557,113$           
Maintenance 0.5 8,986$              -$               
Part-time Personnel 3 13,409$            -$               
Sick Incentive  8,278$               

  EMD Coordinator 800$                 -$               
CTO Stipend 4,368$              -$               
Holiday Regular 37,583$            -$               

  Salary Adjustment / Step Increases 10,027$            -$               
 29.5 1,124,163$          -$                 

Line Item Narrative    
Salaries / Wages: The agency is organized into two functions: Operations and Administrative Support.   

Operations: Salary increases reflect those commitments made in the Collective Bargaining Agreement for a 2.5% increase for union 
personnel effective July 1, 2014/

Administration: Administration is made up of four fulltime employees and one part-time cleaning person. Salary adjustments and 
step increases reflect a potential match of CBA increases, as well as the anticipated hiring of a new Information Technology Manager.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    1

p p y p g p y j
step increases reflect a potential match of CBA increases, as well as the anticipated hiring of a new Information Technology Manager.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    1



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Item Account code   Year Approved Approved

OT - Regular                                             Total 150,146          153,724             -                  
OT - Holiday Total 30,021            30,750               

401200 180,167          184,473             
MSRS - Employer 4017001 Total 42,207            57,440                
ICMA - Employer 4017002 Total 32,894            29,104               
FICA - Employer 4017501 Total 97,633            100,111             

Estimated Detail of OT - Regular                               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

OT - Regular                                             Hours Needed Average OT 
Rate

Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Holiday DOT 188 29.12$            9,124$              -$               
Training OT 176  29.12$            2,732$              -$               
EMD OT 192  29.12$            5,591$              
Sick OT 1,820  29.12$            52,997$            
Vacation OT 2,860  29.12$            83,281$            

153,724$          -$               

Estimated Detail of MSRS - Employer    
Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

MSRS - Employer
MSRS 

Employer
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

18 employees participate 42,207$         57,440$             
  -$               

Estimated Detail of ICMA - Employer    
ICMA Committee 

A d
Council 

A d

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    2

ICMA - Employer Employer Approved Approved

6 employees participate 36,556$         29,104$             
  

Estimated Detail of FICA - Employer    

FICA - Employer
FICA 

Employer
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Employer Contribution 97,633$         100,111$           -$               
100,111$           -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Overtime - Regular: Due to minimum staffing, each vacancy created by vacation, sick time, disability and/or training must be filled 
at a 1.5 rate, which averages 29.12 per hr.  Also included in this account is the contractual 1.5 hr. rate for 11 holidays and the double 
overtime rate for fills for vacancies on holidays. There are two new hires in training and three vacancies yet to be filled. Once at full 
staffing, there will be some limited ability to absorb vacancies without the need for a overtime backfill. 

MSRS Employer:  Staff is provided the opportunity to participate in the Maine State Retirement System plan. This year's employer 
contribution is a 7.5% salary match.

ICMA Employer: Staff is provided the opportunity to participate in the ICMA Retirement plan. The employer contributes a 6% 
salary match.

FICA Employer: The required employer contribution is 0.0765

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    2



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

MMEHT Health Ins. 4046004  Total 334,663          325,978             -                  
Wellness / Medical 4046010 Total 18,200            18,200               -                  

Estimated Detail of MMEHT Health Ins.   

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

MMEHT Health Ins.  Participants Cost
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Family Plan (POSC) 5 19,802$          99,010$            -$               
Family Plan (PPO500) 3 15,976$          47,928$            
Single-Dependent (POSC) 5 14,404$          72,020$            -$               
Single-Dependent (PPO500) 1 11,621$          11,621$            
Single Plan (POSC) 6 8,828$            52,968$            
Single Plan (PPO500) 2 7,122$            14,244$            
Life Insurance Medical Insurance 4 various 513$                 

  Health Incentives 6 27,673$          27,673$            -$               
325,977$          -$               

Estimated Detail of Wellness / Medical    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Wellness / Medical  Staff Benefit
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Wellness Benefit 26 700$              18,200$            
  18,200$            -$               

Line Item Narrative    
MMEHT Health Insurance:  Non-union personnel are transitioning from the POSC health care plan to the PPO500 health care 
plan. Union employees are being given the option to transition early from POSC to PPO500, but full change will have to be 
negotiated when the current CBA expires in June of 2015. The Center continues to pay 85% of the cost of the  health care plans, 

hil l 15% f h l h l H l h i f h POSC l 4% f h fi h lf f FY14

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    3

p g p
plan. Union employees are being given the option to transition early from POSC to PPO500, but full change will have to be 
negotiated when the current CBA expires in June of 2015. The Center continues to pay 85% of the cost of the  health care plans, 
while employees pay 15% of health care plan costs. Health care premiums for the POSC plan went up 4% for the first half of FY14; 
the second half is estimated to incur a 10% increase.  New hire coverage levels are predicted at one with full family, one with a 
single dependent and one single. Seven employee choose a full or partial health care opt-out incentive.

Wellness / Medical:   This account funds a benefit which allows the employee to contribute to a wellness benefit flex account. 
The expenditures can be used for medical related costs such as copays, dental work, etc. The agency provides $700 annually to each 
employee. The agency also provides for a life insurance premium for three employees.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    3



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Unemployment Compensation 4046500 Total 7,500              7,250                 -                  
Workers Compensation 4047000 Total 8,500              8,121                 -                  

 
Estimated Detail of Unemployment Comp    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Unemployment Comp  Amount
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Estimated Employer Costs from MMA 7,250$            7,250$              -$               
 7,250$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Workers Comp    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Workers Comp Amount
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

MEMIC Premium 8,500$            8,121$              -$               
 8,121$              -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Unemployment Compensation:  This account includes the costs for unemployment benefits through Maine Municipal Coverage, 
which provided an estimate of $7,250 for the coming year.

Workers Compensation:  The Center's mod rating has continued to drop since a 2009 injury is being phased-out of the three-year 
review used to determine the mod rate.  

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    43/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    4



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Printing 4031000 Total 200                 200                    -                  
Postage 4021500 Total 300                 300                    -                  

Estimated Detail of Printing    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Printing Quantity Price Each
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Forms 50 1.00$              50$                   -$               
Envelopes 1000 0.15 150$                 -$               

 200$                 -$               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Estimated Detail of Postage    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Postage
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Routine mailings 300$                 -$               
300$                 -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Printing: This account includes the costs of purchasing special created forms for communication operations as well as stationery 
style envelopes for mailings.  The center does not provide business cards for administration or for supervisors; the cards  must be 
purchased at the employees' expense. 

Postage: This account includes routine mailings, certified mail  and those shipping that require insurance and , such as equipment 
being shipped to a vendor for repair

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    5

Postage: This account includes routine mailings, certified mail  and those shipping that require insurance and , such as equipment 
being shipped to a vendor for repair.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    5



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Telephones 4022000 Total 84,836            102,043             -                  
Utilities: Light/Water/Diesel 4022500 Total 26,268            29,160               -                  

Estimated Detail of Telephones    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Telephones Quantity Price Each
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Cell Phones 3 65.00$            2,340$              -$               
Evacuation cell phones 2 15.00$            1,560$              -$               
Radio Circuits per month  12 255.88$         36,847$            -$               
Radio Circuits APD/LPD radios to 911 Center 4 145.48$         6,983$              
Radio Circuits FDs to Zetron 6 120.60$         8,683$              
Radio Circuits to Goff, StateWide and StateFire Car-to-Car 3 120.60$         4,342$              
Telephone Lines per month 12 1,125.00$      13,500$            -$               
Payback for loan 8 3,473.50$      27,788$            

102,043$          -$               

Estimated Detail of Utilities: Light/Water/Diesel    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Utilities: Light/Water/Diesel
Monthly 

Costs
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Water and Sewerage (12% of Central Fire usage) $42.34 508$                 -$               
Natural Gas (28% of Central Fire usage) 1,050.00$      12,600$            -$               
Diesel (100 gal at $3.45) 28.75$           345$                 
Electricity Usage (40% of Central Fire usage) 1,066.90$      12,803$            -$               
Electricity Usage at Gracelawn and East Ave. towers 242.00$         2,904$              -$               

29,160$            -$               

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    6

Line Item Narrative    
Telephone:   The account funds  five cell phones: one for the director, one for the system manager, one for the IT tech support 
position and two pre-paid phones which are for the 'grab-and-go bag' in case of an emergency evacuation of the center.  Both cities 
agreed to split a $55,000 interest free loan to the center to fund a technology upgrade that will reduce monthly telephone line costs 
by $3,073.28 per month, that loan will be satisfied in Q4 of FY15. 
Lights / Water / Gas:  The communication center is located in the basement level of the Auburn Central Fire Station. These 
utility service cost shares were agreed upon when the center first moved into the building; the increase mirrors Auburn Fire's 
estimated increase in building utilities. In late 2013, AFD shifted from oil to LNG, so costs are estimated. Also included in this line 
item is the cost for the electric usage of the tower on Gracelawn Road and the tower on East Ave in Lewiston. Diesel costs reflect 
weekly  and quarterly generator tests and the potential for operating on generator power. 

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    6



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

CALEA/Mileage reimbursement 4023000 Total 3,500              3,500                 -                  
Subscriptions/Periodicals 4024500 Total 450                 -                     -                  
Medical Exams 4025500 Total 660                 1,100                 

Estimated Detail of CALEA/Mileage reimburseme   

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

CALEA/Mileage reimbursement
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Mileage Reimbursement 1,000$              -$               
CALEA Conference 2,500$              -$               

3,500$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Subscriptions/Periodicals    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Subscriptions/Periodicals
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Hill Donnelly Street Listing    -$               
 -$               

Estimated Detail of Medical Exams    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Medical Exams Exams Costs
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Pre-employment medical screening 10 110.00$         1,100$              -$               
1,100$              -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Travel Expenses:  This account reimburses employees for official travel and covers the cost of the CALEA accreditation manager  
to attend  an East Coast conference.

Subscriptions/ Periodicals: The agency has stopped using a mapping index and now pays for no subscriptions or periodicals.

Medical Exams: It is a requirement for all new employees to receive a medical screening to determine fitness for duty The cost of

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    7

Subscriptions/ Periodicals: The agency has stopped using a mapping index and now pays for no subscriptions or periodicals.

Medical Exams: It is a requirement for all new employees to receive a medical screening to determine fitness for duty. The cost of 
these exams are $110. Based on national  turn over rates of 19% (Source: The Association of Public-Safety Communications 
Officers-International), which matches this center's  historical vacancy rate, and two additional anticipated departures, estimate is for 
ten new hires in FY2015.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    7



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Maintenance / Licensing 4027011 Total 79,616            78,974               -                  
Repairs - Building 4027500 Total 12,500            12,500               -                  
Legal Expenses 4028000 Total 3,500              3,500                 -                  

Estimated Detail of Maintenance / Licensing    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Maintenance / Licensing
  

Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Motorola Radio 34,593$            -$               
Motorola  - Agency Cost Share (1,993)$             
CPI 624$                 -$               
Reverse 911 5,086$              -$               
IMC - Records Management system shared by 911, Police and Fire 27,620$            -$               
Keystone (access to historical records) - four users 705$                 -$               
Software Licensing (Office/Windows, servers, Crystal Reports, remote access tokens) 4,619$              -$               
Acorn Recording for phone lines and frequencies 1,900$              -$               
Biddle Suitability screening for CALEA 1,200$              
SymQuest (formerly Downeast Networks) 2,000$              
Norris (Mesh Network for camera system) 500$                 
IP Phone Maintenance 1,300$              
Priority Dispatch (EMD, ProQA) 820$                 

78,974$            -$               
Estimated Detail of Repairs - Building    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Repairs - Building
Quantity Price Each

Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Carpet and floor cleaning, floor mats 2 750.00$         1,500$              -$               
HVAC system 8,500$              -$               
Misc. Repairs  2,500$              -$               

12,500$            -$               
Estimated Detail of Legal Expenses

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    8

Estimated Detail of Legal Expenses
Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Legal Expenses
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Attorney Costs 3,500$              -$               
3,500$              -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Maintenance Licensing: The communication center maintains numerous software and hardware systems to that allow 
interoperabity, records management, data storage and radio/communications infrastructure.  Maintenance agreements 
allow the center to extend the lifetime of the systems and provide free or reduced updates to technology, some of which 
update weekly.

Repairs - Building: This account maintains the HVAC maintenance agreement, as well as general repairs, to the 
communication center. HVAC repairs continue to escalate due to the age of the system, which is 18 years old and has a 
life span of 15 to 20 years.

Legal Fees:  This account funds attorney fees for contract negotiations, grievances and worker's compensation cases.  
Costs have been trending lower, which reflects this year's 25% decrease.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    8



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Miscellaneous Services 4028800 Total 5,400              5,400                 -                  
In-Service Training 4028900 Total 9,205              9,214                 -                  

Estimated Detail of Miscellaneous Services    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Miscellaneous Services
 Cost

Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

CPA Audit  $            4,400 4,400$              -$               
Employee Recognition Program  $                  -   500$                 
Public Outreach 500$                 

5,400$              -$               
Estimated Detail of In-Service Training    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

In-Service Training
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Telecommunicator training 9,214$              -$               
9,214$              -$               

Line Item Narrative    

Miscellaneous Services: As an organization, an independent audit of the fiscal operation of the center is required annually. 
This account also funds the employee recognition and assistance program, and allows the Center to use public out reach events
for community education (National Night Out, Fire Prevention Week, etc.).
In-Service Training: State-mandated new-hire training is held at the MCJA, which is 96.2 miles round trip, and consists of the 
following.  Current mileage reimbursement rate is .555 per mile.
Meridian 9-1-1 certification, 2 days: 96.2 X 2 days X .556= 106.97
911 Basic Training, 5 days: 96.2 X 5 days X .556= 267.44
Basic Emergency Medical Dispatch, 2 days: 96.2 X 2 days X .556= 106.97
NCIC/AIU, 5 days: 96.2 X 5 days X .556= 267.44
ProQA, 1 day: 96.2 X 1 day X  .556= 53.49

802.31

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    9

NCIC/AIU, 5 days: 96.2 X 5 days X .556 267.44
ProQA, 1 day: 96.2 X 1 day X  .556= 53.49

802.31
Six vacancies anticipated in FY14 X 6

$4813.86
When multiple employees attend the same training, they are required to work out carpool arrangements that result in a singular 
cost for transportation.

Continuing education: $4,400
Continuing education is  vital to the development of new dispatchers and to keeping seasoned dispatchers up to date on current 
trends and technology.  Classes for new hires include 9-1-1 Liabilities, Handling Suicidal Callers, Fire Dispatching and Verbal 
Judo.  Seasoned dispatchers benefit from training in Domestic Violence  Intervention, Protecting Law Enforcement Responders, 
Active Shooter Response and Managing Crisis Callers.  There are currently no qualified tactical dispatchers trained at this center.  
At an average cost of $209 per class, this line item allows for 21 of 22 full time dispatchers to take one continuing education 
course per year and leaves some room for remedial training that may make the difference between a dispatcher who fails to meet 
minimum standards and one who successfully completes the training program.  Throughout the year, in an effort to save costs, 
this agency hosts classes in exchange for one or two free seats.  

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    9



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Office Supplies 4030500 Total 1,614              1,614                 -                  
Printing Supplies 4031000 Total 2,500              1,000                 -                  
Other Supplies 4038900 Total 1,614              2,340 -                  

Estimated Detail of Office Supplies    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Office Supplies  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

95% of All Supplies Are Less Than $20 1,614$              -$               
1,614$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Printing Supplies    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Printing Supplies  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Photo copier supplies 400$                 -$               
Printer cartridges   500$                 -$               
Fax supplies 100$                 

1,000$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Other Supplies    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Other Supplies  Quantity Cost
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Handsoap 2 56.41$           112.82$            -$               
Toilet Paper 4 53.72$           214.88$            -$               
Towels 8 41.60$           332.80$            -$               

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    10

Trashbags (small) 3 38.50$           115.50$            
Trashbags (large) 7 29.90$           209.30$            
Disinfectant 3 39.00$           117.00$            
Germicide 4 34.32$           137.28$            
Misc. Supplies 1,100.00$          

2,340$              -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Office Supplies: This account funds general office supplies for the agency. A review of the last three year's expenses revealed an 
average of $1,996 spent annually in 'office supplies'.
Printing Supplies: The center has printers and fax machines in constant operation. Receiving teletypes and faxes from other 
agencies 24 X 7 is critical. A review of the last three year's expenses revealed an average of $2,531 spent annually in 'printing 
supplies'.
Other Supplies: Due to the sharing of common equipment (keyboards, phones, desktops), dispatch centers have very high rates 
of illness due to minor but contagious diseases.  To combat this, the center provides anti-bacterial hand sanitizer and wipes, which 
is included in the funds for janitorial supplies. Cleaning supply costs have gone up in the last 12 months, particularly paper products 
and hand soap.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    10



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Dues 4042000 Total 3,697              3,697                 -                  
Insurances 4046000 Total 10,933            12,480               -                  

 
Estimated Detail of Dues    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Dues
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Notary renewals 3 at $50/each 150$                 -$               
Maine Municipal Association 575$                 -$               
CALEA 2,602$              
NENA 170$                 -$               
APCO 200$                 -$               

3,697$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Insurances    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Insurances  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Dispatcher Errors and Omissions 6,407$              -$               
Public Officials Liability Insurance 6,073$              -$               

12,480$            -$               
Line Item Narrative    
Dues:  This account funds the membership to communication organizations as well as the fees to have staff notarized.   The cost 
for the CALEA on-site assessment is divided over a three year period.  NENA and APCO are professional 9-1-1 organizations with 
active chapters in Maine and New England. The Director serves on the executive board of the Maine chapter of NENA.

Insurances: This account funds liability coverage for staff as well as the public official liability. 

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    11

Insurances: This account funds liability coverage for staff as well as the public official liability. 

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    11



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Principal 4049001 Total 32,500            32,500               -                  
Interest 4049002 Total 4,004              4,007                 -                  
Lease/Purchase 4049008 Total 10,734            10,734               

Estimated Detail of Principal    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Principal
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Construction Bond Principal (Lew) 32,500$            -$               
32,500$            -$               

Estimated Detail of Interest    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Interest  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Construction Bond Interest 4,007$              -$               

4,007$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Lease/Purchase    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Lease/Purchase  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Server Replacement 10,734$            -$               

10,734$            -$               

Line Item Narrative    
Principal:  This account funds the principal payments for the construction bond implementation of the center and should be paid 

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    12

Principal:  This account funds the principal payments for the construction bond implementation of the center and should be paid 
in full in FY16.

Interest: This account funds the interest on the construction bond.

Lease/Purchase: This account funds the lease purchase of the emergency replacement of the IMC server. The loan should be paid 
in full in FY15.  

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    12



Lewiston - Auburn
 Communication Center 

Fiscal Year 2014

  Last Committee Council
Line Items Account Code   Year Approved Approved

Office Equipment 4050500 Total 2,730              3,630                 -                  
Communications Equipment 4052800 Total 16,128            77,654               -                  

Estimated Detail of Office Equipment    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Office Equipment
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Copier Maintenance Contract 1,830$              -$               
Dispatch chairs (4) 1,800$              -$               

3,630$              -$               

Estimated Detail of Communication Equip    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Communication Equip  
Committee 
Approved

Council 
Approved

Headsets, Y-cords, ear and mouth pieces 2,000$              
Keyboards/Mice 420$                 
Monitors (9) 2,432$              
Computer replacement (6) 7,415$              
Desk, chair repair 240$                 
Acorn Recorder 23,225$            
Radio signal survey 40,000$            
Misc. equipment 1,922$              

77,654$            -$               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances
Line Item Narrative    
Office Equipment:  This account funds the copier maintenance agreement as well as the replacement schedule for the 

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    13

Office Equipment:  This account funds the copier maintenance agreement as well as the replacement schedule for the 
Telecommunicator chairs.

Communication Equipment: This account funds the replacement schedule for the computers and other equipment which is used 
24 hours a day. The equipment is vital to the daily operation of the center. Miscellaneous equipment includes computer cleaning 
supplies, tools, cables, jacks, meters, batteries, connecters, testing equipment, file storage, back up tools, etc.

Two one-time purchases are included under Communications Equipment: The replacement of the Center's phone and frequency 
recording equipment and a radio signal survey which will lay the groundwork for the proposed radio infrasture upgrade in FY16. 
Both purchases are discussed in attached coversheet.

3/11/2014 --  FY14 Communication Center Budget ‐ Draft as of 1/25/2013  Budget Page    13



ACCOUNT CODE ACCOUNTS FY2013 Actual FY14 Approved FY14 Difference FY14 Projections FY15 Proposed
401100 Regular Salaries 963,852$                     1,096,081$            28,082$                        1,075,000$                  1,124,163$            2.6%
401200 Overtime ‐ Regular 252,278$                     180,167$                4,306$                          215,167$                     184,473$                2.4%
4017001 MSRS ‐ Employer 35,651$                        42,207$                  15,233$                        48,000$                        57,440$                  36.1%
4017002 ICMA ‐ Employer 22,185$                        32,894$                  (3,790)$                         22,800$                        29,104$                  ‐11.5%
4017501 FICA ‐ Employer 92,656$                        97,633$                  2,478$                          97,633$                        100,111$                2.5%
4046004 MMEHT Health Insurance 233,395$                     334,663$                (8,685)$                         294,500$                     325,978$                ‐2.6%
4046010 Wellness & Medical 18,200$                        18,200$                  ‐$                              18,200$                        18,200$                  0.0%
4046500 Unemployment Comp. 7,300$                          7,250$                    ‐$                              7,250$                          7,250$                    0.0%
4047000 Workers Compensation 6,831$                          8,500$                    (379)$                            8,500$                          8,121$                    ‐4.5%
TOTAL Personnel Services 1,632,348$                  1,817,595$            37,245$                        1,787,050$                  1,854,840$            2.0%
4020500 Printing Service 581$                             200$                        ‐$                              200$                             200$                        0.0%
4021500 Postage 35$                                300$                        ‐$                              300$                             300$                        0.0%
4022000 Telephone 122,616$                     84,836$                  17,207$                        72,000$                        102,043$                20.3%
4022500 Lights /  Water / Gas 38,268$                        29,160$                  ‐$                              26,500$                        29,160$                  0.0%
4023000 CALEA/mileage reimbursement 5,200$                          3,500$                    ‐$                              3,750$                          3,500$                    0.0%
4024500 Subscriptions / Periodicals 299$                             450$                        (450)$                            450$                             ‐$                        ‐100.0%
4025500 Medical Exams 614$                             660$                        440$                             850$                             1,100$                    66.7%
4027001 Maintenance / Licensing 72,893$                        79,616$                  (642)$                            79,616$                        78,974$                  ‐0.8%
4027500 Repairs ‐ Building 10,102$                        12,500$                  ‐$                              10,000$                        12,500$                  0.0%
4028000 Legal Expenses 345$                             4,000$                    (1,000)$                         2,500$                          3,000$                    ‐25.0%
4028800 Miscellaneous Services 4,063$                          5,400$                    ‐$                              4,063$                          5,400$                    0.0%
4028900 In‐Service Training 5,847$                          9,205$                    9$                                  9,205$                          9,214$                    0.1%
TOTAL Contractual Services 260,863$                     229,827$               15,564$                        209,434$                     245,391$               6.8%
4030500 Office Supplies 1,929$                          1,614$                    ‐$                              1,614$                          1,614$                    0.0%
4031000 Printing Supplies 1,509$                          1,500$                    (500)$                            1,000$                          1,000$                    ‐33.3%
4039800 Other Supplies 2,267$                          2,110$                    230$                             2,110$                          2,340$                    10.9%
TOTAL Supplies & Materials 5,705$                          5,224$                    (270)$                            4,724$                          4,954$                    ‐5.2%
4042000 Dues 4,504$                          3,697$                    ‐$                              3,500$                          3,697$                    0.0%
4046000 Insurances 8,887$                          10,933$                  1,547$                          10,933$                        12,480$                  14.1%
TOTAL Fixed Charges 13,391$                        14,630$                  1,547$                          14,433$                        16,177$                  10.6%
4049001 Principal 32,500$                        32,500$                  ‐$                              32,500$                        32,500$                  0.0%
4049002 Interest 5,298$                          4,004$                    ‐$                              5,298$                          4,004$                    0.0%
4049008 Lease/Purchase 38,443$                        10,734$                  ‐$                              38,443$                        10,734$                  0.0%
TOTAL Debt Services 76,241$                        47,238$                  ‐$                              76,241$                        47,238$                  0.0%
4050500 Office Equipment 3,955$                          3,630$                    ‐$                              3,180$                          3,630$                    0.0%
4052800 Communication Equipment 66,487$                        16,128$                  61,526$                        88,917$                        77,654$                  381.5%
TOTAL Capital Outlay 70,442.00$                  19,758.00$            61,526$                        92,097$                        81,283.93$            311.4%
4099000 Contingency ‐$                              ‐$                        ‐$                              ‐$                              ‐$                        0.0%
Sub‐total 911 Committee 2,058,990$                  2,134,272$            115,611$                     2,183,979$                  2,249,883$            5.4%

Investment Revenue (677)$                            (500)$                      460$                             (500)$                      0.0%
Poland User Fee (dispatch and 911) (20,600)$                      (34,608)$                34,608$                        (36,017)$               
Rental Revenue (5,562)$                         (6,118)$                   5,400$                          (6,301)$                   3.0%
ASO IT surcharge (19,895)$                      (20,000)$                19,895$                        (20,000)$               
Fund Balance Carry Forward ‐$                       
TOTALS 2,012,256$                  2,073,046$            114,019$                     2,189,839$                  2,187,065$            5.5%
Appropriation by each Municipality 1,006,128$                  1,036,523$            57,010$                        1,094,920$                  1,093,533$            5.5%



FY 2014 Wages Retirement Benefits HEALTH INSURANCE LIABILITY
NAME DOH GRADE  PAY RATE ANNUAL  REGULAR HOLIDAY  FICA MSRS ICMA HEALTH INS HEALTH INS TOTAL   

WAGES HOLIDAY OVERTIME 1ST HALF 4% 2ND HALF 10%
Hall, Timothy 07/28/09 TC4/Supervisor 23.97$                  46,529.61$         2,109.36$           1,725.84$           3,852.91$          -$                   3,021.89$          3,391.92$           3,731.11$           7,123.03$           
Gammon, Bethany 12/02/99 TC4/Supervisor 23.97$                  46,529.61$         2,109.36$           1,725.84$           3,852.91$          3,928.45$          -$                   3,391.92$           3,731.11$           7,123.03$           
Arsenault, Celeste 07/07/08 TC4/Supervisor 23.97$                  46,529.61$         2,109.36$           1,725.84$           3,852.91$          3,928.45$          7,607.76$           8,368.54$           15,976.30$         
McCown, Randy 05/03/95 TC3/Supervisor 22.95$                  44,549.62$         2,019.60$           1,652.40$           3,688.95$          -$                   2,893.30$          -$                    -$                    -$                    
Howe, Joshua 08/08/11 TC3/Supervisor 22.61$                  43,889.63$         1,989.68$           1,627.92$           3,634.30$          3,705.56$          -$                   6,859.20$           7,545.12$           14,404.32$         
Cayer, Mark 01/30/11 TC3/Supervisor 22.61$                 43,889.63$        1,989.68$          1,627.92$          3,634.30$          2,850.43$         9,429.36$          10,372.30$        19,801.66$         
Vermette, Claire 05/16/83 dispatcher 21.67$                  42,064.94$         1,906.96$           1,560.24$           3,483.21$          3,551.51$          -$                   9,429.36$           10,372.30$         19,801.66$         
Pelote, Josephine 12/02/99 dispatcher 21.67$                  42,064.94$         1,906.96$           1,560.24$           3,483.21$          3,551.51$          -$                   6,859.20$           7,545.12$           14,404.32$         
Lessard, Debra 06/11/01 dispatcher 20.82$                  40,414.95$         1,832.16$           1,499.04$           3,346.58$          3,412.20$          -$                   9,429.36$           10,372.30$         19,801.66$         
Lebel, Jill 09/15/02 dispatcher 20.82$                  40,414.95$         1,832.16$           1,499.04$           3,346.58$          3,412.20$          -$                   4,203.60$           4,623.96$           8,827.56$           
Golden, Ashley 05/05/06 dispatcher 19.73$                  38,299.09$         1,736.24$           1,420.56$           3,171.38$          3,233.56$          -$                   4,203.60$           4,623.96$           8,827.56$           
Berube, Anita 03/24/08 dispatcher 19.07$                  37,017.92$         1,678.16$           1,373.04$           3,065.29$          3,125.39$          -$                   4,203.60$           4,623.96$           8,827.56$           
Pontbriand, Matthew 12/13/10 dispatcher 17.28$                  33,543.24$         1,520.64$           1,244.16$           2,777.57$          2,832.03$          -$                   4,203.60$           4,623.96$           8,827.56$           
Welch, Kellie 08/29/12 dispatcher 17.28$                  33,543.24$         1,520.64$           1,244.16$           2,777.57$          -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Plog, Jocelyn 02/06/13 dispatcher 16.24$                  31,524.44$         1,429.12$           1,169.28$           2,610.40$          2,661.58$          4,203.60$           4,623.96$           8,827.56$           
Fox, Jessica 06/24/13 dispatcher 16.24$                  31,524.44$         1,429.12$           1,169.28$           2,610.40$          2,661.58$          9,429.36$           10,372.30$         19,801.66$         
Cormier, Joseph 08/05/13 dispatcher 17.38$                  33,737.36$         1,529.44$           1,251.36$           2,793.64$          2,848.42$          6,859.20$           7,545.12$           14,404.32$         
Hart, Darrin 08/17/13 dispatcher 16.24$                  31,524.44$         1,429.12$           1,169.28$           2,610.40$          2,661.58$          6,859.20$           7,545.12$           14,404.32$         
Estabrook, Michelle 12/30/13 dispatcher 16.24$                  31,524.44$         1,429.12$           1,169.28$           2,610.40$          2,661.58$          
Vacant TBD vacant dispatcher 15.44$                  29,971.51$         1,358.72$           1,111.68$           2,481.81$          2,530.47$          9,429.36$           10,372.30$         19,801.66$         
Vacant TBD vacant dispatcher 15.44$                  29,971.51$         1,358.72$           1,111.68$           2,481.81$          2,530.47$          6,859.20$           7,545.12$           14,404.32$         
Vacant TBD vacant dispatcher 15.44$                 29,971.51$        1,358.72$          1,111.68$          2,481.81$          2,530.47$         4,203.60$          4,623.96$          8,827.56$           
OPERATIONS SUB-TOTAL 427.08$               829,030.61$      37,583.04$        30,749.76$        68,648.30$        55,767.01$       8,765.62$         121,056.00$      133,161.60$      254,217.60$       

       ADMINISTRATION
ANNUAL 
WAGES  FICA MSRS ICMA 1ST HALF 2ND HALF TOTAL

Gamache, Phyllis Director 76,992.20$         5,889.90$          4,619.53$          -$                    -$                    -                      
Delano, Gordon Systems Manager 59,575.32$          4,557.51$          3,574.52$          7,607.76$           8,368.54$           15,976.30           
Matt Charest IT Support Specialist 39,039.00$         2,986.48$          2,342.34$          5,533.92$           6,087.31$           11,621.23           
Copland, Robinson Administrative Assist. 36,075.00$         2,759.74$          -$                   7,607.76$           8,368.54$           15,976.30           
Koumou-Nete Custodian 8,985.74$           687.41$             -$                   -                      -$                    -                      
ADMINISTRATION SUB-TOTAL 220,667.26$       -$                    16,881.05$        -$                   10,536.39$        20,749.44$         22,824.38$         43,573.82$         
Salary Adjustments and Anniversary Steps 10,027.31$         767.09$             1,673.01$          579.06$             
Part-Time Personnel 864 13,409.28$          1,025.81$          
Sick Incentive 416 8,277.58$           633.23$             -$                   
EMD Coordinator $400 800.00$              61.20$               
CTO Stipend $2,912 4,367.61$           334.12$             -$                   
PERSONNEL SERVICES SUB-TOTAL 36,881.78$        -$                   -$                    2,821.46$          1,673.01$         579.06$            
TOTAL SALARY 1,124,162.69$   37,583.04$        30,749.76$        88,350.80$        57,440.02$       19,881.07$       141,805.44$      155,985.98$      297,791.42$       

OVERTIME FICA MSRS ICMA
Holiday DOT 188 9,123.98$           697.98$             547.44$             HEALTH INCENTIVES 27,673.00           
EMD Overtime 192 5,590.87$           427.70$             335.45$             LIFE INS Prem 513.20                
Training OT 176 2,731.52$           208.96$             163.89$             Total 911 Health Prem 325,977.62         
      Wellness / LIFE INS 18,200.00           
Sick OT 1,820 52,996.75$         4,054.25$          3,179.80$          
Vacation OT 2,860 83,280.60$         6,370.97$          4,996.84$          
OVERTIME SUB-TOTAL 184,473.47$      11,759.86$        9,223.42$         
TOTALS 1,308,636.17 100,110.67$      57,440.02$       29,104.49$       

Budget - Regular 1,124,162.69$    
Budget - Overtime 184,473.47$       

Average Hourly Rate 19.41$                
Average OT Rate 29.12$                
Part Time Hourly Rate 15.52$                



















Lewiston Auburn Transit Committee 
2.26.14 

Capital Improvement Plan 
 
 
 
Mayors and Councilors for the Cities of Lewiston and Auburn, 
 
As many of you already know, 2013 was a challenging year for the LATC.  Driven by insufficient transit 
capital funding, years of low-bid bus purchasing has left the LATC fleet with many poorly performing 
buses that have led to fleet instability and schedule uncertainty which rose to crisis levels over the last 
quarter of 2013. 
 
With the support of the two city councils, the LATC and WMTS took immediate action to hire nationally 
recognized consultant Halsey King to evaluate WMTS operations and the status of its deficient Blue Bird 
buses.  The Halsey King report made it clear that in order to address system instability today and going 
forward into the future, LATC would need to immediately invest funds to acquire used buses to increase 
our spare ratio (completed in Dec 2013); seek FTA approval to retire its Blue Bird fleet(awaiting 
approval); acquire additional used buses to replace the Blue Birds(will occur only upon approval from 
FTA to waive value of Blue Birds); and move to leverage available federal funding to replace the 
ElDorado cutaway that will reach its useful life in 2015. 
 
What was also apparent to the committee was the need to offer a well defined fleet replacement 
strategy articulating how the LATC capital improvement plan would leverage $80,000 ($40,000 from 
each city) in capital reserve funding to pursue a multi-pronged investment strategy that would blend 
purchases of new and used buses with a mix of “standard” 30 to 35ft low-floor, 12-year, heavy-duty 
buses with 7-yr, heavy duty cutaways; employ a mix of midlife rebuilds on new buses and overhauls on 
used buses to extend bus life; and reduce model mixing to lessen the need for large parts inventories, 
enhance maintenance training, and encourage system stability through the purchase of bus models that 
have demonstrated manufacturer’s parts support allowing for faster PM and repair turnaround times. 
 
Most importantly, pursuing this CIP will once and for all provide the kind of system stability that will 
completely eliminate the need for WMTS buses to serve CityLink customers.  Though the LATC is grateful 
for the willingness of WMTS to employ the use of its fleet to backfill CityLink system needs, the presence 
of a WMTS bus on a CityLink route does nothing to enhance customer confidence in the CityLink brand. 
The only way for LATC to successfully promote its brand is to have the brand on the road during all 
hours of operation.  Anything less will leave LATC short of its goal to achieving the kind of system 
stability that its very loyal riders deserve. Anything less will reduce its chances for growth in a system 
that has great potential for more growth. 
 
The enclosed spreadsheet reflects the consensus of the LATC committee which reviewed information 
about the status of small bus purchases in the U.S.; LATC ridership data which covered not only total 
passenger loads but peak ridership loads over four sampling periods between July 2013 and Jan 2014; 
and how the LATC might go about leveraging a capital reserve funding schedule that would require both 
cities to support funding at an $80,000 annual funding level ($40,000 for each city). A formal vote on the 
CIP will take place on March 14, 2014. 
 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



 
Fleet Status  

 
The following is a listing of our bus fleet; the date when these buses will meet their FTA “useful life” 
requirement; and relevant notes about the buses: 
 
Bus     Date Useful Life Met  Notes 
2002 Thomas SLF    2014   Not road-worthy 
2002 Thomas SLF    2014   Not road-worthy 
 
2006 Bluebird     2018   Asking FTA to reduce to 2016  
2006 Bluebird     2018   Asking FTA to reduce to 2016  
2006 Bluebird     2018   Asking FTA to reduce to 2016 
2006 Bluebird     2018   Asking FTA to reduce to 2016 
 
2008 El Dorado     2015   Will be replaced in 2015 and 
         retained as a spare 
2011 Gillig     2023   Midlife overhauls begin 2017 
2011 Gillig     2023   same   
2011 Gillig     2023   same 
 
1996 Gillig(40ft)    Useful life met   Recent purchase from METRO 
1997 Gillig    Useful life met   Recent purchase from METRO 
1997 Gillig    Useful life met   Recent purchase from METRO 
 
Notes:   
The two 2002 Thomas SLFs were deemed not road-worthy in 2013 because of excessive rust issues with 
the frames.  These buses have been replaced with the three Gilligs purchased from METRO but LATC will 
continue to keep the Thomas buses in service/spare status until they have fulfilled their 12 year 
requirement at the end of 2014. 
 
Maintenance issues with the four BlueBirds and extensive research conducted by Phil Nadeau has 
resulted in a request to FTA Region 1 to reduce the useful life from 12 years to 10 years, and to waive 
any remaining federal interest in the vehicles.  Similar requests have been/will be presented to at three  
FTA regions which may expand to five FTA Regional Offices. 
 

Ridership Information 
 

Ridership over the years has increased significantly. Since 1997, ridership has increased by 245,000 
riders or by 226%, and average of 13% per year. Our single biggest year of growth occurred between 
FY2011 and FY2012 when ridership grew by 23%. 
 
Though total ridership is a number that is most often discussed when assessing transit performance, a 
metric which has enormous impact on ridership speaks to “peak loading” or the ridership loading that 
produces the highest number of riders on a bus at a given point in time.  A spreadsheet has been 
enclosed which provides an analysis of peak loading during four sampling periods in 2013 and 2014.  
Over the course of one week during the months of Jul 2014, Aug 2013, Dec 2013 and Jan 2014, peak 
load numbers were identified for each day’s run to produce to peak metrics, “Average Peak” and “High 
Peak”.  Simply put, “Average Peak” represents the average of all high peak numbers over the course of a 
week in a given month (in which all 4 weeks are totaled to produce a single “Average Peak” number for 

Page 2 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



that route) and “High Peak” represents the single highest peak number in a given week which is then 
averaged for all 4 sample weeks as an average number. 
 
The data surprised even those of us who see this data on a monthly basis.  Consider the comparison’s to 
the Jan 2008 data.  Though there have been some modifications to routes since 2008, there were seven 
buses operating in 2008 covering no less than nine routes.  In 2013-14, we have seven buses covering 
nine routes. 
 
The comparisons between the 2008 and 2014 January data are revealing. Average peak loading for the 
two periods increased, on average, by 30% (note: average for Jan 2008 is for the entire month; for Jan 
2014 it is one week).  The average “High Peak” increased by an average of 18% for the 1st week in Jan 
2014.  It should also be noted that the 2008 average peak number never eclipsed 20 where in 2014 20 or 
more peak averages were realized 57% of the time. 
 
Though other 2008 peak data was not available for this report, the Jan numbers should provide some 
insight to the assumption that peak loading overall has most likely had a corresponding increase with 
ridership since 2008 on all routes (ridership for the period covering 2008 and 2013 increased by 53%). 
 
Some notable numbers from the 2013-2014 sample data: 

• Four routes had “AVE PK” (average peak loading) numbers that were equal to or greater than 21 
riders with the highest average peak ridership at 33 riders (Lisbon St). 

• Five routes had “HIGH PK” (highest peak loading hour of week) “Survey Ave.” numbers (average 
of four highest ridership over four months) that were equal to or greater than 24 riders with 
four exceeding 30 riders (the highest being 53—Lisbon St/Aug 2013) 

• Five routes had no less than two ridership weeks where peak loading were ≥ 30 riders  
• Six routes had no less than two ridership weeks where peak loading were ≥ 25 riders  

 
Using the peak and ridership metrics generated from the 2013-2014 data suggests that our system has 
no less than 4 routes (Main, Lisbon, Sabattus and the Auburn Mall) that have a combination of rider and 
peak loads that require a traditional transit bus (in our case 30-35ft low floor buses).  With the proven 
reliability of the El Dorado bus covering our Minot/Downtown Shuttle route, we believe that the New 
Auburn route’s total ridership and peak loading make it the next candidate for a El Dorado-type cutaway 
and is currently proposed for purchase in 2015 (leaving the 2008 El Dorado as a spare bus). 
 
The data also suggests that there may be room to utilize another cutaway in a support capacity in the 
future.  As our older buses age, the current CIP provides for an opportunity to switch out a 30-35ft 12-
year bus for a 7-year used cutaway in 2019.  That would change the mix of cutaways supporting our fleet 
of 13 buses from the current 7.6% to 16.6%(fleet-12) in 2015; 25% in 2016 (fleet 12); and 23% (fleet 13) 
through 2019. 
 
This CIP has also provided the last ridership report for December 2013 which also reflects the historical 
ridership data dating back to 1997. 
 

Lifecycle Cost Comparison – 2011 Gillig & 2008 El Dorado 
 
Given that this CIP will express its support for additional purchases of El Dorado (or similar) cutaway 
buses, the recommendations to purchase these buses must be measured against existing and potential 
future demand/peak capacity requirements for our routes. 
 
In a report sponsored by the FTA, the “TCRP (Transit Cooperative Research Program) Synthesis 41 – The 
Use of Small Buses in Transit Service” reveals that a significant majority of surveyed transit systems 

Page 3 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



believe that any decision to buy a small transit bus (30 feet or less) must consider two critical variables, 
the ability to match capacity with demand and the buses maneuverability on the street.  The report also 
states that statistically, if small buses are used strategically, they can save a transit system money when 
compared to slightly larger and heavier 30-35ft buses. 
 
This report provides information provided by Western Maine Transportation which demonstrates how 
the 2008 El Dorado has matched up well, relative to maintenance costs, with the 2011 Gilligs and has 
produced comparative savings in fuel consumption.  This is not surprising as it is consistent with the data 
that is provided in the TCRP report. 

 
Replacement Schedule 

 
Supporting the LATC’s CIP proposal will require that both cities maintain their respective $40,000 capital 
reserve contributions to maintain sufficient local funding levels to support the objective of restabilizing 
its fleet at the lowest possible costs. 
 
The plan to use a combination of purchasing, reduced fleet-mixing and rebuilding/overhaul strategies 
will provide for a path to accomplishing the fleet stabilization that will produce the greatest level of 
service and satisfaction for riders at the least possible cost to taxpayers. 
 
A summary of the enclosed CIP spreadsheet is below: 
 
City Fiscal Year 2015: 

• Purchase a new El Dorado 7 year bus “cutaway” bus.  Estimated cost of $190,000, funded with 
$150,000 in Federal funds and $40,000 in local funds.   

• 2008 El Dorado to be utilized as a spare. 
• If we are successful in reducing the useful life of the Bluebirds:  Attempt to purchase three used 

30-35ft Gilligs at a cost of approximately $20,000 each, funded with 100% local funds.  (Similar 
2004 Gillig buses from Virginia were available in the fall of 2013 and were purchased at auction 
for $50,000). 

 
City Fiscal Year 2016: 

• Begin the process of retiring the Metro Gilligs (two scheduled for retirement) 
• Purchase a new 12yr, heavy duty, 30ft low floor 
• Purchase a new 7yr, heavy duty, cutaway low floor 

 
City Fiscal year 2017: 

• Midlifes on 2011 Gilligs begins 
• First overhauls on used Gilligs begins 
• Purchase another used 30-35ft bus to support absence of overhauled used buses 

 
City Fiscal year 2018: 

• Midlifes on 2011 Gillig and new cutaway are scheduled 
• 1 used 30-35 ft bus/1 cutaway are purchased to replace retired 2008 ElDorado and last Metro 

Gillig 
 
City Fiscal year 2019: 

• Midlife on last new 2011 Gillig and 2016 cutaway 
• Overhaul on used bus 

 

Page 4 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



 ALL MIDLIFES WILL REQUIRE 80% FUNDING AVAILABILITY FROM FTA. IF FTA IS NOT 
AVAILABLE, THE REPLACEMENT SCHEDULE WILL REQUIRE MODIFICATION 

 
 ALL OVERHAULS WILL BE ELIGIBLE FOR 50% FUNDING FROM FTA 

 
 LATC IS COMMITTED TO LIMITING MODEL MIXING IN ITS FLEET. LATC WILL FOCUS 

LEVERAGING LOCAL DOLLARS TO TARGET GILLIG AND ELDORADO BUS MODELS SIMILAR TO 
THOSE IN FLEET 

 
 NEW BUS PURCHASES WILL BE SUBJECT TO 80% FEDERAL FUNDING WHICH WILL REQUIRE 

COMPETIVE BIDDING WHICH MAY IMPACT AWARD OF BUS MODEL 

Page 5 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



Page 6 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



LATC RIDERSHIP DATA SUMMARY - 2.28.14
2013 2012

College St free Mall Shuttle ridership - *62% of Mall Shuttle total ridership *Free Mall Shuttle 50366 53776
2013 2012

College Street 71977 71371
Mall Shuttle @ 62% 31227 33341 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
TOTAL BUS RIDERS 105217 104712 Lisbon St 53496 50738 Sabattus St 48683 43590 Main Street 34210 37316

COLLEGE ST LISBON ST SAB ST MAIN ST

JUL 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 2007 161 32.2 48 401.4 5 ROUTES 1042 192 38.4 47 208.4 5 ROUTES 928 141 28.2 38 185.6 5 ROUTES 597 90 18 25 119.4

AUG 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 2174 154 30.8 38 434.8 5 ROUTES 1079 197 39.4 53 215.8 5 ROUTES 1046 108 21.6 43 209.2 5 ROUTES 732 103 20.6 27 146.4

DEC 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 2202 146 29.2 34 440.4 5 ROUTES 1111 151 30.2 36 222.2 5 ROUTES 864 130 26 36 172.8 5 ROUTES 645 96 19.2 22 129

JAN 2014 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK ROUTE AVE
5 ROUTES 1360 107 21.4 30 272 5 ROUTES 794 120 24 28 158.8 5 ROUTES 748 111 22.2 27 149.6 4 ROUTES 694 61 15.25 22 173.5

OVERALL RANKING 1 2 3 5
RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT

COLLEGE ST 1 2 2 1 6 LISBON ST 2 1 1 2 6 SAB ST 4 3 3 3 13 MAIN ST 6 5 5 5 21
TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY

SURVEY TOTALS 568 113.6 150 1548.6 SURVEY TOTALS 660 132 164 805.2 SURVEY TOTALS 490 98 144 717.2 SURVEY TOTALS 350 73.05 96 568.3

SURVEY AVE 142 28.4 37.5 387.15 SURVEY AVE 165 33 41 201.3 SURVEY AVE 122.5 24.5 36 179.3 SURVEY AVE 87.5 18.2625 24 142.075

Minot Ave free Downtown Shuttle ridership Auburn Mall free Mall Shuttle ridership - *38% of Mall Shuttle total ridership
2013 2012 2013 2012

Minot Ave 5515 4366 Auburn Mall 31616 32039
Downtown Shuttle 32368 29217 2013 2012 Mall Shuttle @ 62% 19139 20435
TOTAL BUS RIDERS 37883 33583 New Auburn 24692 28191 TOTAL BUS RIDERS 50755 52474

SHTL-MIN AVE NEW AUB AUB MALL

JUL 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 736 111 22.2 30 147.2 5 ROUTES 427 75 15 19 85.4 5 ROUTES 827 69 13.8 17 165.4

AUG 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK ROUTE AVE TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
4  ROUTES 630 91 22.75 24 157.5 5 ROUTES 607 99 19.8 27 121.4 5 ROUTES 911 79 15.8 25 182.2

DEC 2013 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK ROUTE AVE TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 649 117 23.4 43 129.8 5 ROUTES 427 67 13.4 20 85.4 5 ROUTES 1144 95 19 26 228.8

JAN 2014 TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
5 ROUTES 523 87 17.4 26 104.6 5 ROUTES 343 57 11.4 14 68.6 5 routes 523 49 9.8 11 104.6

OVERALL RANKING 4 6 5
RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT RANKING '13 Riders AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT
SHTL-MIN AVE 5 4 4 6 19 NEW AUB 7 6 6 7 26 AUB MALL 3 7 7 4 21

TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY TOT PK AVE PK HIGH PK AVE DAY
SURVEY TOTALS 406 85.75 123 539.1 SURVEY TOTALS 298 59.6 80 360.8 SURVEY TOTALS 292 58.4 79 681

SURVEY AVE 101.5 21.4375 30.75 134.775 SURVEY AVE 74.5 14.9 20 90.2 SURVEY AVE 73 14.6 19.75 170.25

CURRENT CUTAWAY PROPOSED CUTAWAY 1st week 1st week

Jan-08 Jan-14 % change Jan-08 Jan-14 % change

Peak by Bus JAN 2008 Tot Peak Ave Peak Ave Peak HighPk *HighPk

2-Jan 3-Jan 4-Jan 7-Jan 8-Jan 9-Jan 10-Jan 11-Jan 14-Jan 15-Jan 16-Jan 17-Jan 18-Jan 21-Jan 22-Jan 23-Jan 24-Jan 25-Jan 28-Jan 29-Jan 30-Jan 31-Jan

Bus 1 Main St 16 17 23 12 12 14 14 13 6 13 14 14 14 6 11 18 12 16 22 12 12 15 306.0 13.91 15 7.84% 23 22 -4.35%

Bus 2 Sab St 19 15 25 15 18 24 13 10 7 18 14 21 11 11 20 17 10 12 13 16 11 20 340.0 15.45 22 42.35% 25 27 8.00%

Bus 3 Lisbon St 21 20 23 16 19 18 15 20 11 21 15 21 18 13 19 19 20 16 21 22 21 24 413.0 18.77 24 27.85% 23 28 21.74%

Bus 4 New Aub/CMCC 9 11 17 12 11 7 9 10 3 12 12 16 11 6 11 6 11 13 9 15 6 16 233.0 10.59 15 41.63% 17 14 -17.65%

Bus 5 Minot Ave/Aub Mall 8 6 10 8 7 7 9 10 3 9 7 7 9 6 11 11 7 8 9 7 4 6 169.0 7.68 10 30.18% 10 11 10.00%

Bus 6 Sab/College 24 20 22 20 19 22 27 14 10 21 21 20 14 20 15 18 18 22 17 20 11 25 420.0 19.09 21 10.00% 24 38 58.33%

Bus 7 Downtown Shuttle 15 21 19 27 17 14 19 18 9 20 20 12 14 9 21 20 15 19 21 18 15 16 379.0 17.23 26 50.92% 21 31 47.62%

Ave. 30.11% Ave 17.67%

*note - some route changes occurred in 2014

Page 7 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



WESTERN MAINE TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, INC.

EXPENSE COMPARISONS

ELDORADO VS GILLIG

Eldorado Gilligs

Bus # 0802 Bus #'s 1101-03

Total Life Miles (Average per Vehicle) 105,524           92,910             

Average Fuel Consumption per Vehicle, in Gallons.(Life) 17,943             23,497             

Average Miles Per Gallon 5.88 3.95 (1)

Insurance Cost per Vehicle:

   Monthly 175.58$           316.00$           

   Annual 2,106.96$        3,792.00$        

Total Maintenance Parts Expense  (Life) 39,077.22$      42,777.99$      (2)

Ave Parts Expense per Vehicle 39,077.22$      14,259.33$      

Number of Months Vehicles Have Been in Service 53.5 32.25 (3) (4)

Average Monthly Maintenance Expense per Vehicle, per Month 730.42$           442.15$           

Ave Parts Expense per Vehicle - First 32.25 months of life 21,761.56$      14,259.33$      

Ave Veh Maintenance Exp per Month - First 32 Months of Life 680.05$           442.15$           (5)

Total Life Miles (Average per Vehicle) - See Line 1 Above 92,910             

Number of Gilligs in Service 3

Total Life Miles for All Gilligs 278,730           

Divided by Eldorado MPG 5.88

Gallons That Would Have Been Consumed Based on Eldorado MPG 47,395.09        

Current Price Per Gallon 3.25$               

Cost of Fuel Using Eldorado MPG 154,034.04$    

Cost of Fuel Based on Gillig MPG 229,094.68$    

Calculated Savings over 2.75 years if Eldorado's Had Been Used 75,060.64$      

Estimated Annual Savings 27,929.54$      

Total Insurance Expense for Gilligs (32.25 months) 10,191.00$      

Est Insurance Expense for Same Period, Based on Eldorado Expense 5,662.46$        

Projected Insurance Savings Over 32.25 Months 4,528.55$        

Projected Annual Insurance Savings. 1,685.04$        

Notes:

 (1)  Current cost of Diesel at LPW is $3.25

 (2)  Includes a credit adjustment for faulty bus wrap installation ($13,500)

 (3) Eldorado (bus# 0802) placed in service 09-10-2009

 (4)  Gilligs placed in service 05-19-2011

 (5)  Eldorado includes a one time $8,200 Exp.  If this was deducted, the average monthly 

       expense would drop to $423.80

Page 8 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP



LEWISTON-AUBURN TRANSIT COMMITTEE - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROPOSAL
2.26.14 LEGEND:  "new"</= midlife; "OD" - overdue midlife(@80%) rebuild; "OV" - bus overhauled @ 50%(not a complete rebuild);

"newrb"- new rebuild; "spare" - limited service replacement for PM & repair; "spare-retired" - limited use then retired in 2019
2014 2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017 2018 2018 2019 2019

CAPITAL FUNDING 160,000$          +$80K 232,000$          +$80K 212,000$          +80k 152,000$          +$80k 146,000$            +$80k 155,000$            

0201 2002 THOMAS SLF - 12yr spare retired
0202 2002 THOMAS SLF - 12yr spare retired
0601 2006 BLUEBIRD - 12yr spare retired
0602 2006 BLUEBIRD - 12yr spare retired
0603 2006 BLUEBIRD - 12yr spare retired
0604 2006 BLUEBIRD - 12yr spare spare retired
1101 2011 GILLIG - 12yr fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new) midlife($130k) (26,000)$       fleet(newrb) fleet(newrb)
1102 2011 GILLIG - 12yr fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new) midlife($130k) (26,000)$        fleet(newrb)
1103 2011 GILLIG - 12yr fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(OD) midlife($130k) (26,000)$        
0802 2008 ELDORADO - 7yr fleet spare spare spare retired
9665 1997 GILLIG - 12yr fleet (2,000)$         spare spare spare retired
9766 1997 GILLIG - 12yr fleet (2,000)$         spare retired
9768 1996 GILLIG(40FT) - 12yr fleet (4,000)$         spare retired

NEW CUTAWAY($190000) - 7yr fleet(new) (40,000)$       fleet(new) fleet(new) midlife($50k) (10,000)$        fleet(newrb)
USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$       spare spare spare spare-retired
USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$       spare overhaul($40k) (20,000)$       spare(OV) spare(OV)
USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$       spare overhaul($40k) (20,000)$       fleet(OV) spare(OV)

NEW 30FT($400000) - 12yr fleet(new) (80,000)$       fleet(new) fleet(new) fleet(new)
NEW CUTAWAY($190000) - 7 yr fleet(new) (40,000)$       fleet(new) fleet(new) midlife($50k) (10,000)$        

USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$       fleet spare overhaul($40k) (20,000)$        
USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$       spare spare

USED CUTAWAY ($15000) - 12yr fleet (15,000)$        fleet
USED($20000) - 12yr fleet (20,000)$        fleet

USED CUTAWAY ($15000) - 7yr fleet (15,000)$        

CAPITAL FUNDING BALANCE 152,000$      132,000$      72,000$        66,000$        75,000$         84,000$         

year and fleet size 2014 - 13 2015-12 2016-12 2017-13 2018-13 2019-13
SPARE BUSES 6 5 5 3 4 4

Page 9 of 9 - LATC FY15 CIP









L/A Arts City of Auburn Proposal 2014-15: 
 
 L/A Arts seeks $17,064 in support from the City of Auburn to assist with overhead 
and programmatic costs around two initiatives which capture new visioning for the 
organization.  This funding will provide crucial assistance to Arts and Culture 
Lewiston/Auburn (ACLA), and Arts Agency Initiative entitled the New Tree Grid.    
 
 For costs associated with overhead and capacity, the funding will support key staff 
salaries associated with these two projects, to provide for administrative planning and 
fundraising.  As for direct costs, this income will go to pay for a portion of the materials, 
office expenses, and advertising and web expenses associated with these projects.   
 
 In recent planning, L/A Arts identified the need for consistent revenue streams 
applied to overhead, coupled with deepening and advocating for core programs, as crucial 
steps in rebuilding a sustainable, impactful organization.  These two central initiatives, which 
are aligned closely with its historical roots as the local arts agency of L/A, will allow the arts 
to become a more vibrant part of the region, and establish sustainable programming at L/A 
Arts for years to come.  With this prospective Auburn City support, L/A Arts will stay 
competitive toward achieving its important mission and goals.   
 
 These hometown arts initiatives will value and celebrate the individual voices of a 
rapidly changing cultural landscape in L/A, and help foster ongoing revitalization of the 
states second largest city.  From support for overhead to specific costs, this funding will 
provide crucial resources to allow L/A Arts to carve out a new sustainable future for the 
forty-year old organization. 
 

 L/A Arts Organizational History & Initiatives: 
 
 L/A Arts began in 1973 as LPL Plus, a program established by the trustees of the 
Lewiston Public Library.  Within a few years, the Auburn Public Library joined and it 
became known as LPL Plus APL.  In the early years, volunteers and library staff presented 
an impressive series of arts and humanities programs including: concerts, foreign films, art 
lectures, and public policy discussions. Gradually the organization developed Arts in 
Education initiatives in the twin cities' schools.  In 1988 the organization officially became 
known as L/A Arts, and a few years later, the designated local arts agency for Lewiston & 
Auburn.   
 
 Over the years, L/A Arts has earned local, regional, and national recognition for its 
model programs in education, performance, and in support of artists and arts organizations.  
Each year, the organization strives to reach its mission of engaging and inspiring a vibrant 
Lewiston/Auburn community (population 60,000 ) through the following sustainable, best 
practice, hometown arts and cultural programs: Lewiston/Auburn Artwalk & Community 
Galleries (www.artwalklewistonauburn.com) captures and celebrates the diverse vitality of the 
downtowns of Lewiston and Auburn by promoting self-guided tours of over twenty 
participating businesses and/or empty storefronts converted into visual arts galleries, many 
of which are curated by L/A Arts.  Downstage at L/A Arts supports the development of both 
professional and promising young artists through artistic performances and workshops at the 



organization's fifty seat downtown theater space.  L/A Arts transforms student learning and 
teacher practices with the rich academic, social and artistic value of its Arts in Education 
programs.  Ice Fest, Lewiston/Auburn (www.icefestla.com) is an extremely successful weekend 
fundraising event (2,500 participants in 2013), consisting of beautiful ice sculptures and bars, 
live music, creative foods, and family entertainment.  L/A Arts is a founding and facilitating 
member of Arts and Culture Lewiston/Auburn (www.artsandculturela.org), which is comprised 
of eighteen organizations in Central Maine tasked with advocating and marketing for arts 
and cultural experiences to the public.  Finally, the organization supports local artists and 
arts organizations through Arts Agency Initiatives, which bolster opportunities for public 
presentations of art, to increase their visibility and creative economic impact upon the twin 
cities.    



ACLA - L/A Arts Proposal Narrative: Auburn City Council 
 

L/A Arts is a founding and facilitating member of Arts and Culture Lewiston/Auburn  
(www.artsandculturela.org), which is a group of eighteen organizations in Central Maine 

tasked with advocating and marketing for arts and cultural experiences to the public.  In the 
past year, L/A Arts has deepened the scope and goals of ACLA, as it has taken a lead role in 

restructuring the organization, including developing leadership and project strategies to 
bolster it's visibility and impact.  ACLA has begun to develop audiences and increase 

awareness of arts and cultural experiences for the L/A community, by officially launching 
the group in a public press conference, helping to develop an online arts and cultural events 
calendar (http://www.artsandculturela.org), and fostering the coordination of partnership 

projects. 
 

For the time frame within this Auburn City funding, L/A Arts will continue to lead ACLA 
in two initiatives, the first being a campaign to install arts and culture kiosks in multiple city 

locations, and ACLA signage in all participating organizations throughout the cities.  In 
addition, ACLA will continue to plan with city and arts partners in the creation of a much 

needed central arts building, with potential administrative offices for multiple organizations, 
and a shared presentation/performance space.  The Auburn City allocation will go toward 

general operating costs associated with planning and raising funds for these projects, as 
direct costs associated with materials, promotion and project implementation. 

 
Until ACLA was formed, visibility of cultural experiences offered in Central Maine was 

limited to individual events calendars or subscribed newsletters. Through this collaboration, 
member groups are now mutually working together through a single forum to engage 

community members as well as explore partnerships that can benefit the ever expanding arts 
and cultural sector in Maine’s second largest metropolitan area. Arts & Culture Lewiston 

Auburn (A&C L/A) has garnered support from The Maine Arts Commission, The Cities of 
Lewiston and Auburn, The Androscoggin County Chamber of Commerce and The 

Lewiston Auburn Economic Growth Council due to the prospects for economic growth, 
community unification, Arts & Cultural development and leadership statewide. 

 
Members of ACLA include: 

The Androscoggin Historical Society, Art Walk Lewiston Auburn, Atrium Art Gallery at 
USM, the Auburn Community Concert Band, the Auburn Public Library, the Bates Arts 

Collaborative, the Bates Dance Festival, the Bates Museum of Art, Community Little 
Theater, the Franco-American Collection at USM, the Franco Center, L/A Arts, the 

Lewiston Public Library, the Lewiston Auburn Film Festival, Maine Music Society, the 
Midcoast Symphony Orchestra, Museum L-A, the Public theater, and the Youth Orchestra 

of Lewiston Auburn. 
 



New Tree Grid - L/A Arts Proposal Narrative: Auburn City Council 
 

 The New Tree Grid project facilitates the installation of a series of major permanent public art 
sculptures made by local artists (and/or already created historical pieces) along an artwalk 
connecting Lewiston and Auburn.  L/A Arts seeks funding from the City of Auburn to support 
overhead fees associated with raising funds and planning for the project (with city and regional 
organizational partners), and direct costs for promotion.  For the first year-long phase, a sculpture 
by artist Charlie Hewitt will be installed on a vacant lot in downtown Lewiston, where a fire in the 
spring of 2013 destroyed the former buildings which stood there.  Planning with Auburn and 
organizational partners has begun on the second, where already owned historical sculptures in 
Auburn, and new pieces from local artists will be placed along the riverwalk in L/A in the creation 
of a history and culture artwalk between the cities.  The entire initiative is expected to take three 
years to fully complete. 
 The objectives in the New Tree Grid's portfolio of strategies include the transformation of 
community identity and cohesiveness, support for the arts and local artists, and economic and 
cultural renewal of the downtown districts.  LA Arts, with partners including: Cities of Lewiston & 
Auburn, Androscoggin Valley of Governments (AVCOG), Lewiston/Auburn Economic Growth 
Council (LAEGC), the Androscoggin Valley Chamber of Commerce, Community Concepts, and 
Bates College, believe that this artwork will inject vitality and distinctiveness into L/A, and offset a 
negative local and regional image of the downtowns.  The project will fuel the creative economy by 
boosting tourism, increasing pedestrian traffic, and fostering potential investment in the cities.  The 
thousands of summer tourists on their way up the coast will want to stop and see these important 
works, making the New Tree Grid a regional destination.  Finally, an objective to engage people in the 
community from diverse cultures and backgrounds through participation in the project will be 
augmented by holding multiple public forums and symposiums around the work.  The work will 
capture and celebrate the area's rich heritage and culture, and further the revitalization of the state's 
second largest cities. 
 The New Tree Grid partners are taking steps to ensure the sustainability of this project.  
Having government officials as partners is an important step in this process, as many city officials 
and both Lewiston and Auburn are onboard with the initiative.  In addition, State Senator Susan 
Collins, and state representative Mike Michaud, have either sent representatives to meetings, or 
stated their support.  For continuing sustainability, planning around the submission of national 
grants for this project have begun, including NEA's Our Town in January of 2015.  The government 
of Lewiston has promised to allow L/A Arts the use of city owned lots free of charge, and Auburn 
has offered two historical statues it currently owns to contribute.  Additional grant writing to the 
Maine Community Foundation, Maine Arts Commission and other foundations, and solicitations to 
individual and corporate sponsors will augment fundraising efforts for the long-term. 
 The New Tree Grid activities already begun by the various partners of the initiative continue 
with the development of a complete timeline and sculpture implementation plan.  This includes the 
codification of legal parameters for placing art pieces on properties, outreach to additional local 
partners regarding the processes of fabrication and placement of works, and establishment of a 
groundbreaking date.  Historical Auburn sculptures have been identified, and the specific sites for 
the entire scope of the project are being be identified.  A public press conference will officially 
launch the initiative, and donor fundraising meetings will take place.  Releases online and to the 
press will highlight progress, and a major fundraising benefit will be held.  Promotion will detail the 
first downtown sculpture groundbreaking, and add subsequent ones as well.  A local partnering 
filmmaker will document the project throughout, and a series of public forums and symposiums will 
be held before and after installation to inform and engage the community in the project. 

1 
 



ACLA New Tree Grid Auburn City Funds
REVENUE
Auburn City Funding 17,064
Public Funding 5,000$                            
Foundations 6,000                              36,000                            
Individual Donations -                                     15,000                            
Corporate Sponsorships and Donations 2,500                              18,000                            
Donated Goods & Services 1,400                              16,500                            
Organizational Dues 900                                 
Ticket and Gallery Sales -                                     

Total Income 10,800                            90,500                            

EXPENSES
Admin. Wages - Planning & Fundraising 10,054                            15,198                            12,626
Artist Fees -                                     40,000                            
Inkind Expenses - Goods & Services 2,225                              9,912                              
Direct Costs - Art Materials & Finishing -                                     -                                     
Materials 1,750                              16,800                            875
Technology Fees/Web 1,050                              -                                     525
Finish & Paint -                                     3,000                              
Concrete -                                     5,000                              
Lights -                                     850                                 
Travel & Transport -                                     2,750                              
Office Expenses and Supplies 1,150                              1,700                              1,438
Travel & Meals - Staff & Volunteers 150                                 275                                 
Advertising/Marketing (incl. signs ACLA) 2,250                              950                                 1,600
Contracted Services & Travel - General -                                     3,000                              
Other Expenses 175                                 125                                 

Total Expenses 18,804                            99,560                            17,064                            

Net Deficit (8,004)$                           (9,060)$                           17,064

With Auburn Funding 0

L/A Arts Budget for Fiscal Year 2015
Buget for ACLA & New Tree Grid - Aubrn City Council



1 
 

Great Falls TV - 2014-2015 Budget Talking Points 

 
     Great Falls TV is located on the campus of Central Maine Community College in 
Auburn and continues its’ mission of delivering television and internet services to 
the greater Lewiston / Auburn area. In operation since November of 1999, GFTV 
provides coverage of government meetings, community services for local non-
profits in the form of television shows and public service announcements. GFTV 
provides training for community members who want to learn more about video 
production and works with local citizens producing locally developed shows.  
Additionally, we provide services for the Lisbon community by rebroadcasting 
their local government and school board meetings for a fee.  GFTV maintains 
satellite equipment to facilitate the delivery of regular NASA TV and the NASA 
educational network.  The Cable Advisory Television Committee continues the 
oversight of operations and budgetary provisions for GFTV. The board consists of 
professionals and community members from the Lewiston / Auburn area and 
administrative representatives from each city. Great Falls TV is financially 
responsible for maintaining the equipment and allocation of new equipment 
at the station and at both city halls. 
 

Going forward in fiscal year 2015 Great Falls TV staff will continue efforts to 
deliver a quality service to the public and to continue to improve the span and 
scope of services.  GFTV continues to offer content on 3 channels for Time Warner 
viewers.  Channel 7 (government channel) provides government meetings for 
Auburn, Lewiston and Lisbon residents as well as regular NASA TV. Channel 11 
(community channel) carries locally produced shows, PSA’s and the community 
bulletin board. Channel 22 (educational channel) airs live school board meetings 
for Auburn and rebroadcasts of Lisbon School Board meetings with NASA 
Educational TV airing the rest of the time. The 3 channels allow coverage for 
multiple government and community meetings and events and provide the 
community with quality programming from NASA TV.  We also continue to offer a 
diverse selection of programs that are informative, educational and entertaining.  
Internet services are provided by live streaming of government meetings and 
rebroadcasts through on demand services. Great Falls TV community bulletin 
board provides valuable information to citizens regarding government meetings, 
broadcast schedules, local events and serves as a resource for local non-profits. 
 



2 
 

      Increasing changes in technology and the increased demand for government 
services by both communities continues to be a challenge for Great Falls TV.  
With careful planning and research into the most efficient ways to allocate 
equipment, staff will make recommendations for improvements in the 
infrastructure.  This includes the studios at the community college 
and the broadcast facilities at both city halls. GFTV maintains a remote truck for 
covering community events with portable production equiment.  
 
     Budgetary considerations for fiscal 2014-2015 will be much the same as the 
previous year with the expected increases in rent (5%) and a 2% increase in  
employee related insurance costs. During fiscal 2013-14 GFTV is experiencing a  
50 % cut in the funding allocation from each city. This will cut the normal revenue 
by approximately $64,000.00.  The reduction will create a deficit of $82,000.00 
in fiscal year 2013-14 to our residual fund balance. Revenues tend to fluctuate 
from year to year because they are based on the number of subscribers in each 
community. In fiscal 2013-14 there has been a reduction in subscribers to Time 
Warner Cable which also will reduce our potential revenues. GFTV will have to 
cover the loss of funding by using a residual fund balance. The fund balance at the 
end of fiscal 2014 was at approximately $133,000.00.  The capital reserve funds 
were created by additional grants from cable companies during the initial 
establishment of local franchising agreements. The grants were established to 
allow for developing the infrastructure at GFTV and city government facilities as 
needed.   After reductions, the reserve account will have a balance of around 
$51,000.00 at the end of 2014-15 fiscal year.  The funding cuts were caused by 
budgetary difficulties in the municipal budgets in both cities making it necessary 
for the cities to reduce the funding allocations.  
 
     Despite the reductions in the funding for GFTV, serious deficits with production 
equipment need to be addressed. The equipment for production in Lewiston is 8 
years old and outdated. The equipment in Auburn is 7 years old and also needs 
updating.  Additionally, equipment that carries the signals from the respective city 
halls and the GFTV studio to the Time Warner Head end will also need to be 
upgraded to current technology. Some of the production equipment at the 
station is 13 years old and failing and is no longer relevant to current 
technologies. The GFTV board and staff are recommending a process that will 
upgrade the production equipment over time for the Auburn and Lewiston 
facilities and the GFTV studios. The normal life span of production equipment is 



3 
 

around 10 years depending on the changes in technology.  This year 
recommended equipment needs for GFTV will be the purchase of 1 production 
camera. We will also maintain a contingency in our proposed budget to address 
equipment failures that will need to be addressed throughout the year.  The total 
costs of upgrades will be around $5,000.00.   
 
Our budget will address the above concerns and will allow GFTV to improve its' 
infrastructure both at the studio and at the city halls and to meet the demands of 
the viewers we serve.  Maintaining our budget involves continuing the funding 
formula that was established when the station began with the 40% allocation of 
revenues from the agreement with Time Warner Cable.  It is of utmost 
importance that we maintain this formula to meet the requirements of funding 
the station, infrastructure and the staff.  GFTV would also encourage the cities to 
advocate for some additional funding in the refranchising process to facilitate 
capital improvements that will be needed going forward into the future.  We have 
addressed this need by controlling costs and using equipment as long as it is 
relevant and functional in delivering broadcasts and internet services.  Our 
current revenues allow us to cover expenses and address some of the need for 
additional technologies.  Additional cuts in the funding allocations from 
franchising agreements or local city resources create a significant handicap for 
GFTV in addressing the needs for services and technological improvements in 
upcoming years.  How we meet these challenges will depend on a number of 
factors including continued financial support and an environment of good 
communication and cooperation. 
 
      GFTV will continue the mission of delivering services in government offerings 
and community support services by offering programs that reflect the values and 
experiences of our community.  We will continue to work with volunteers who 
wish to learn skills and assist us in completing our goals. We will strive to improve 
our technology as our budget allows and perform research into the best ways we 
can meet the changes in the broadcast environment. Community TV is a reflection 
of local government and its’ operations and a look at the community from the 
perspective of citizens in the local environment. Working with both cities we hope 
to develop ways to present the L/A community by showcasing community events 
and all of the wonderful assets this great community has to offer. Challenges 
going forward will be the establishment of a new franchise agreement, an inter-



4 
 

local agreement between the 2 cities and to maintain revenues to develop the 
infrastructure needed to deliver services. Thanks to the longstanding relationship 
we have with the community college and the affordable rent they give us we have 
been able to keep costs down.  We value and appreciate this relationship as it 
provides a great asset the community as a whole. 
 
On behalf of our staff and dedicated board we will work together to meet the 
demands that are requested by city government and community members who 
utilize our services. We ask for your continued support and participation in the 
operations of Great Falls TV!  Please see the attached budget information for the 
specific financial considerations as well as a list of all the shows we carry at this 
time. We welcome you to visit our studios on the Central Maine Community 
College Campus in Auburn. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Philip Larlee / Station Manager 
Cable Advisory TV Board 
 
 
 
 



13 14 14 14 15
FY‐13 FY‐14 FY‐14 FY‐14 FY‐15
Actual Budget YTD 2/06/14 Expected Proposal

Actuals

Salaries 73,558.53$       73,558.53$       43,852.57$     73,558.53$     73,558.53$    
F.I.C.A./Medicare 5,624.16$         5,624.16$         2,813.72$       5,624.16$        5,624.16$      
Fringe Benefits Health  Ins. 85% 34,281.09$       29,799.00$       17,477.60$     31,300.00$     31,300.00$    
ICMA‐Retirement 6% ‐$                   ‐ 2,206.88$       4,395.00$        4,414.00$      
Advertising ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
Building Repairs ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
Vehicle Repairs  68.46$               500.00$            ‐$                150.00$           200.00$         
Equipment Repairs ‐$                   5,000.00$         ‐$                3,712.50$        3,000.00$      
Training & Tuition ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$               
Dues & Subscriptions 120.00$            600.00$            50.00$            500.00$           500.00$         
Rent Expense 4,120.93$         4,740.00$         4,326.98$       4,326.98$        4,543.33$      
Food 25.98$               600.00$            26.30$            200.00$           200.00$         
Office Supplies 578.18$            700.00$            306.56$          700.00$           800.00$         
Operating Supplies‐Studio 12,216.31$       6,000.00$         4,204.45$       6,000.00$        5,000.00$      
Operating Supplies‐Field 1,431.65$         2,000.00$         ‐$                2,000.00$        2,000.00$      
Vehicle‐gas/oil 297.06$            500.00$            60.00$            500.00$           500.00$         
Telephone/Communications 717.02$            710.00$            535.38$          695.00$           700.00$         
Capital‐Small Tools & Equip ‐$                   3,139.00$         ‐$                1,900.00$        5,000.00$       from capital reserve

133,039.37$ 133,470.69$ 75,860.44$     135,562.17$  137,340.02$ 

AUBURN FRANCHISE 52,921.80$       26,460.90$       26,460.90$     52,921.80$    
LEWISTON FRANCHISE 72,620.51$       36,310.26$       12,938.67$     36,310.26$     72,620.51$    
LISBON  6,010.00$         6,000.00$         3,000.00$       6,000.00$        6,000.00$      
MISC 168.00$            200.00$            100.00$          200.00$           200.00$         

131,720.31$     68,971.16$       16,038.67$     68,971.16$     131,742.31$ 

(1,319.06)$        (64,499.53)$     59,821.77$     (66,591.01)$   (5,578.71)$    

Beginning Fund Balance 134,893.22$     133,574.16$     69,074.63$     133,574.16$  66,983.15$    
Ending Fund Balance 133,574.16$     69,074.63$       9,252.86$       66,983.15$     61,404.44$    

20405962 628021

GREAT FALLS T.V.
2015  BUDGET 
REQUEST

EXPENDITURES

20405960 611000
20405960 617001
20405960 617002

20405962 620000
20405962 628019
20405962 628020

20405962 629000
20405962 632000
20405962 644000
20405963 628001
20405963 633000
20405953 633001
20405963 633002
20405963 633030
20405964 640000
20405965 656100

Total Expenditures

20405920 402800

Total Revenue

Net Increase (Decrease ) in Fund Balance



Canon XF 300 HD Camcorder 5,000.00$   

5,000.00$   

GREAT FALLS T.V. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS NEEDED FOR 2014

ACCOUNT NUMBER  DESCRIPTION / COST

20405965 656100

TOTAL



1 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

Budget Request to the City of Auburn – February 4, 2014 
 
Museum L-A comes to the City of Auburn asking for funding as a cultural and economic partner at the epicenter of 
our community. We have grown into a true Community Museum from a single focus subject of the textile mills to a 
dedicated community Museum—serving as an extended classroom, spurring economic growth, welcoming tourists 
and encouraging collaboration.  

Working toward our Board driven goals of deepening community engagement and achieving self-sustainability, the 
Museum itself contributed $4,900,000 of economic impact to the Cities since 2004. 100% of our Board of Directors 
and staff contribute themselves to our annual fund raising efforts and work hard to engage sources of support.  

In our 3-year old economic impact study, our consultant showed that staying with the single focus of Textiles and 
Industrial Revolution and a continued dependence on grants, sustainability would be difficult to achieve.  The past 
few years have shown a shift from grants to private donations and earned income.  Due to the temporary location 
we are in, our hands are tied for greater earned income possibilities at this time.  In 2013, we used up our reserves 
and had to make difficult decisions of letting key positions go.  The Executive Director is now at 20 hours a week 
doing the job of 4 full-time positions and an educator/volunteer coordinator at 15 hours a week.  The huge 
momentum that has been created is in jeopardy of being lost.  A review of existing vs. needed positions to bring us 
into the future was completed.  Open positions will allow us to make choices needed to connect new personnel 
needs to our move towards the future of innovation & technology.   
 
Rather than push ideas at our visitors, we strive to pull ideas from them.  Interesting objects and inventive 
technologies will foster inquisitiveness, discovery, and innovative thinking.  Thus, the importance of hiring a 
Community Engagement Coordinator  to push the interactivity of our website, mapping, all social media and new 
ways of creating community connections.  Rather then have the children come see completed exhibits, we will 
have them become part of producing the exhibits, i.e. the highly successful “Kids as Curators” program. Hiring an 
Education/Programming Coordinator will connect the importance of L-A to the regional & national scene and help 
create a new model of a relevant, interactive but hands on heritage museum and cultural attraction. 
 
Our location at 1 Beech Street, and the adjacent parks on both sides of the river, will reconnect our visitors to the 
Androscoggin River and its role in shaping Lewiston-Auburn as well as the engineering wonder that our canal 
system is—then and now.  It will also allow the telling of our stories of shoes & brick which made Auburn and 
textiles which made Lewiston.  Our brand will be well known in the local market as a valuable place to spend time 
and money; we will be on the “A-list” of must-see attractions in Maine. 
 
The Museum is seen as a key component and even a catalyst to the success of the revitalization of both 
downtowns.  We are approaching the City Councils of both Cities with a request to contribute $37,500 each for 
three years to help acquire needed personnel.  Lacking such funding will stymie the many programs that are crucial 
to moving us into the future.  This would ensure growth as we continue to work on our future site and 
sustainability.  NOTE:  If revenues were to come in higher then expected, the Museum would not have to draw 
upon city funds.  We are fully aware of the tough economic situation both of our Cities are facing themselves.  
 
We need your support in joining with other municipalities across the country in supporting the museums at the 
heart of their communities.  
 
Sincerely, 

 

Rachel Desgrosseilliers, Executive Director 



3 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

 

About Museum L-A  

 
Museum L-A has evolved alongside Lewiston and Auburn, Maine: the Twin Cities that we celebrate and love.  
Museum L-A is a private 501 (c) (3) non-profit organization.   We have been guided by our mission to strengthen 
community and connections between generations by documenting and celebrating the economic, social and the 
technological legacies of Lewiston-Auburn and its people. Museum L-A is not simply a history museum but one 
that has moved into the realm of celebrating heritage.  We are all about connections, i.e. connecting generations 
and visitors through the spirit, love of community and the soul of who we are as a people by linking its past 
heritage with inspiration for the future.  We do this while serving as a gathering place and creating engaging 
learning experiences for our community of near 60,000 and its visiting community of over 110,000 annually.  
 
Museum L-A opened to the public in 2004 as a 
Museum of the Textile Mills and Industrial 
Revolution.  The Oral History project brought out 
the needs and wants of the community pushing us 
into becoming the Community Museum.  Our role 
was showcasing the many facets of growth and 
development in Lewiston-Auburn—a much bigger 
and even more rewarding project than was initially 
started.  The Museum has become an integral part 
of the community through participation in many 
civic engagements and work in economic 
development.  We acquired a two (2) acre property 
on the riverfront, mortgage free and a totally green 
site-clear of blight; completed demolition of unsafe 
parts of the building; stabilized 17,500 sq.ft. of the 
original building and tower; and won national 
awards for exhibits, projects & programs. 

Its primary focus has been the study and 
understanding of generations and what made the 
community tick by mining its oral histories to capture the true spirit of the community. Over the past seven years, 
the museum has steadfastly collected over 260 oral histories along with well over 5,500 entrusted artifacts, 
documents and objects of this community’s industrious, business and cultural legacy. 
 
In September 2012, Museum L-A won the first national license awarded in Maine and second in New England for 
the L-A Mini-Maker Faire starting it on the road to its future creative direction.  Innovative youth programs, 
community workshops, dynamic exhibitions, lectures and vibrant public events welcome people to the museum. 
Echoes in Time, Bands on the Run, and the Mini-Maker Faire bring tourists from all over and ensure that this 
museum does not see walls as boundaries to appealing to multiple audiences.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

 
The Goal– BECOME a very desirable National Destination. Museum L-A has already received over 19,000 visitors 
from 42 states and 10 countries, bringing with it praises to and of the area. Museum L-A is currently housed in 
Lewiston’s historic Bates Mill and actively contributes to the economic and civic revitalization of the local 
community, with an impact to statewide tourism.  
 
Three years ago, during our economic impact study, our consultant showed that if we stayed with the single focus 
of Textiles and Industrial Revolution and a continued dependence on grants, sustainability would be difficult to 
achieve.  The past several years have shown a shift from grants to private donations and earned income is growing 
but due to the temporary location we are in, our hands are tied for greater earned income possibilities.  This past 
year we had to use up our reserves and make difficult decisions of letting key positions go. This left the Executive 
Director at 20 hours a week (having to cover 4 full-time jobs) and an educator/volunteer at 15 hours a week.  The 
huge momentum that had been created is in jeopardy of being lost. 
 
On the positive side, the organization has grown to where all systems need to be updated and reviewed to keep up 
with the growth, a process that the board has already started.  A review of existing positions vs. positions needed 
to bring us into the future was completed.  Having several positions open allows us to better connect these needs.  
 
That is why the Museum decided that contrary to the consultants 2007 Chart of where our focus should be – 
strong in curatorial (things & research opportunities), strong in community and very little in destination; we had to 
embrace the changes that the community was pushing for.  Sustainability in the future requires, as seen in our 
revised 2013 Chart, showing less focus on the curatorial and a much greater emphasis on community and 
destination (tourism) leading to economic impact for not only the Museum but for the area as a whole.   
 
A critical next step is to conduct an updated economic impact study for the Museum due to the change in vision as 
well as the change in demolition done, showing the viability and sustainability of Museum L-A as a destination.  
A local businessman and supporter has offered to raise the funds to make this happen as a necessary next step. 
 
Vision Evolution: 
 

2007      2013 

 



5 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

 

Key areas of ongoing discussion leading to national importance: 

A key area of focus that needed to be adjusted was that of becoming a destination attraction.  To make that 
happen we had to start thinking about what could be important to a national audience.  Following are major areas 
being worked on as treasures to focus on as well as new collaborations that could give huge significance to L-A.      

• History: In Lewiston-Auburn, we own the most complete archive and artifact collection of the industrial 
revolution in N.E., (maybe even America) according to the National Archives in Washington, D.C.  Last year we 
placed eighth in line for the Conservation Assessment Plan (CAP) national grant. This year, we already heard from 
them and are hoping to get two (2) national consultants to assess and create a plan of action for our collections 
which strengthens our possibilities for a grant to actually do preservation. 

• Music: Local musicians have decided they want to work with us to develop a Maine Museum of Music History in 
L-A to tell the story of music and the huge impact we had on the national scene.  This work will start early 2014. 

• Innovation: We are in the initial stage of discussions with 7 educational institutions (L-A school systems included) 
who want to engage with and possibly be part of the “innovation” future of the Museum.  In addition, the Maine 
College of Art has started to have their students in the Fashion & Textile Design courses work with the Museum 
because of its treasure trove of textile designs and fabrics. 

• Art: There is a possibility for a major local art collection to be a national draw.  This is in very early stages. 

Are we getting away from our original mission – absolutely not!  Just read our ancestors oral histories and find all 
of these aspects as being of extreme importance to their lives and that of their community. They were first in 
work, in art, in play, in music, in sports, in family life, in pushing culture.  So can we be. 

 
 
 

 
 



6 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

The Vision for Museum L-A 
 
MISSION: Museum L-A connects generations, strengthens community, and fosters creativity, discovery, and 
innovative thinking. 

VISION: Museum L-A inspires a strong, vibrant, and resilient community that sustains a strong identity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      Future Home of Museum L-A 

To achieve this mission and vision, Museum L-A… 

 Draws on the strong traditions of ingenuity and innovation found in Lewiston-Auburn in everything we do. 
 Reveals and celebrates the character, culture and resourcefulness of our people. 
 Raises the consciousness of local residents and visitors of our proud, diverse heritage, transcending the 

boundaries that separate people and groups. 
 Is a catalyst for positive change, contributing to the civic, cultural and economic development of the 

community. 
 Acts as a community think tank where residents can explore the past, deepen understanding of the 

present, and illuminate the future. 
 Celebrates Lewiston-Auburn’s distinctiveness, sense of place and competitiveness as a place to live, work, 

play and visit. 
 Is a museum that looks to the future while celebrating the past. 

 
Participants in our programs and exhibitions will… 

 Stretch their creativity and curiosity. 
 Engage in playful, dynamic and open-ended experiences. 
 Acquire tools to make better sense of the world and themselves. 
 Experience the meaning and dignity of work. 

 



7 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

Goals 
 
Goal One: COMMUNITY 
Reveal and celebrate the character, culture, heritage and resourcefulness of the people of Lewiston and Auburn 
in a regional and national context. 
 

 Continue temporary exhibitions, telling new chapters in the story of innovation, work and culture in the 
community. 

 Engage a wide spectrum of community members, including new and underserved audiences, in 
conversations that explore what it means to live and work in L-A now, in the past, and in the future. 

 Develop strong programming with and for younger adults. 
 Develop strong programming with and for youth. 

 
 

Goal Two: DOCUMENTING 
Ensure that the legacy of L-A’s history continues to be preserved and shared. 

 Ensure the growth and accessibility of the oral history collection. 
 Develop long term solutions for collections management, storage and access. 

 
 

Goal Three: ECONOMIC VITALITY 
Contribute to the civic, cultural and economic vitality of L-A 

 Work with partners locally and regionally to increase tourism to L-A to extend visitors’ stay. 
 Support community efforts to make L-A an attractive place to live, work and study and enhance its image.  
 Engage many community partners to achieve goals. 

 
 

Goal Four: NEW HOME 
Realize the Museum’s plans for a state of the art facility for exhibitions and programs in the new Museum 
building. 

 Begin programming at the new location to familiarize the community with the future home of the 
Museum. 

 Complete planning and open the permanent Museum.  
 Raise funds for building renovation, exhibition build-out and endowment 

 
 

Goal Five: CAPACITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 
Develop the organizational capacity to be an agent for positive change in L-A. 
 

 Develop a robust mix of revenue for annual operations, reducing reliance on raised revenue. 
 Develop and implement a comprehensive marketing plan. 
 Ensure that the Museum has necessary skills, experience, systems, tools, facilities and connections. 

 
 



8 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

Why a new Museum? 
 
Museum L-A has embraced the people who made Lewiston-Auburn, honoring their skills, paying tribute to their 
lives and showing their role in the nation’s heritage. As our institution grew—adding paid staff, mounting exhibits 
and developing programs—our mission grew. During this time the museum has been generously housed in the 
Bates Mill Complex. Our future home in the historic Camden Yarns Mill building—located on the Androscoggin 
River bonding Lewiston and Auburn together, at 1 Beech Street—sits at the juncture of the region’s proud 
industrial past and forward-thinking future: the nexus of Museum L-A’s work.  
 
Moving to Camden Yarns creates imperatives for us that reflect Museum L-A’s growing significance in the 
community as an interpretive institution. They include our:  
 

 Sustainability as an institution;  
 Capacity to contribute to Lewiston-Auburn’s distinctiveness, pride and sense of place, and 

competitiveness as a place to live, work and visit;  
 Endurance as a touchstone for contemporary audiences, even as demographic and cultural shifts make 

them a moving target.  
 
The opportunity goes beyond the additional square feet; Camden Yarns enables Museum L-A to expand activities 
while remaining consistent with our ongoing work. Museum L-A’s calling reflects commitment to:  
 

 Authenticity – telling real stories that celebrate real places and people, using real objects;  
 Sharing – understanding audiences for programs, exhibits and other museum initiatives—as well as 

understanding the people yet to discover the institution— because inspiring and educating people lies at 
the core of Museum L-A’s work;  

 Ongoing Relevance – ensuring that Museum L-A experiences give people tools to make better sense of 
the world and themselves, not merely transmit information;  

 Service as Community Change Agent – helping boost Lewiston-Auburn and encourage people to build on 
its past, celebrate the present and invest in its future.  

 
We are excellent at using local stories to illuminate Lewiston-Auburn. Camden Yarns offers the space and the 
platform to use those local stories to illuminate matters of national significance and universal human character. 
That, in turn, suggests that we, Museum L-A, can serve broader audiences, moving beyond our current 
patronage—those with a personal connection, be it the abiding interest of those with deep community roots or 
the fleeting consideration of a tourist—to engage anyone interested in the nature of work and its relationship to 
people and place. This expanded mantle enables us to increase our role as a destination and economic 
development driver. Moreover, it gives Museum L-A a launch pad to participate in community development 
affairs: to help shape the experience of Lewiston-Auburn today and tomorrow. 
 
Museum L-A faces several drawbacks due to fast growth and not being in the new site.  In a temporary facility - we 
cannot do many things we need to; most critically, we are losing many possibilities for various earned income 
streams that could help support our operations (i.e. Museum rentals, lease from café, % of caterer funds, and gift 
shop). Last fall while attending a webinar with Museums from across the country with over 400 Museums 
participating, a question was asked – what were our major sources of funding?  Only 3% were receiving no 
financial support from their municipalities.  85% were receiving from 35% to 75% of their funding from their 
municipalities. The major reason given was that they became major economic drivers for their areas.  

 
 



9 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

Programming and Flexible Exhibitions  
At 1 Beech Street 
 
As a regional community resource and cultural attraction, Museum L-A will offer exhibitions and experiences 
connecting people across generational, cultural, and physical boundaries. Our museum will serve to not only 
educate but also inspire people of all backgrounds and abilities to appreciate the story of Lewiston-Auburn, and 
relate it to that of New England and America.  
 
Our story will be told through diverse, first-hand perspectives (oral histories) in order to give it a face and a heart, 
thus making our history and heritage widely accessible, touching, and interesting.  Displaying collections and 
narrating the past will not be our primary goal; instead, we will aim to engage our visitors in playful, dynamic, and 
open-ended experiences.  
 
Interesting objects and inventive 
technologies will foster 
inquisitiveness, discovery, and 
innovative thinking.  Rather than 
push ideas at our visitors, we will 
strive to pull ideas from them. Thus, 
the importance of hiring a 
Community Engagement 
Coordinator  which would push the 
interactivity of our website and 
mapping, all social media and new 
ways of creating community 
connections.  
  
Rather then have the children come 
see completed exhibits, we will have 
them become part of producing the 
exhibits, i.e. the highly successful 
“Kids as Curators” program. By hiring 
an Education Programming 
Coordinator position which will 
connect how important Lewiston-
Auburn was to the regional and 
national scene and help develop “Showcasing the talents of our Young Adults”, our museum will succeed in 
creating a new model of a relevant, interactive but hands on heritage museum and cultural attraction. 
 
Our location at 1 Beech Street, and the adjacent park, will reconnect our visitors to the Androscoggin River and its 
role in shaping Lewiston Auburn as well as the engineering wonder that our canal system is—then and now.   
 
Our brand will be well known in the local market as a valuable place to spend time and money; we will be on the 
“A-list” of must-see attractions in Maine. We have set and will continue to set new benchmarks in the museum 
field for innovative programming. 
 
 
 



10 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

Community & Collaborative Partners 
  
The planning, growth and ultimate success of Museum L-A relies on the community, regional, statewide and 
national partnerships and resources that have been created. From exhibition development, professional advice, 
financial support, education resources, and collaborative initiatives – Museum L-A continues to make the most of 
innovative partnerships.

American Association of State & Local History 
American Association of Museums 
Androscoggin County Chamber of Commerce 
Androscoggin Valley Council of Governments 
Androscoggin Land Trust 
Arts & Culture Lewiston-Auburn  
Bates College 
Bates Mill No. 5 Task Force 
Biddeford Mills Museum 
Colby College  
Grow L+A 
Kaplan University 
L/A Arts 
L-A Future Forum 
Lewiston Adult Education/English Language Learner Program 
Lewiston-Auburn Economic Growth Council 
L.L. Bean 
Local & State Government 
Maine Archives and Museums 
Maine Arts Commission 
Maine Association of Nonprofits 
Maine College of Art 
Maine Community Foundation 
Maine Development Foundation 

Maine Historic Preservation Commission 
Maine Humanities Council 
Maine Lakes & Mountains Tourism Council 
Maine Manufacturing Association 
Maine Preservation 
Maine State Archives 
Maine Tourism Association 
National Endowment for the Arts 
National Endowment for the Humanities 
New England Museum Association 
Riverfront Island Master Plan Advisory Committee 
Saco Museum 
Schools – Local & Regional 
Smithsonian Institution 
Somali community leadership (Immigration Exhibit) 
Southern New Hampshire College 
Tree Street Youth 
Tribeca Film Institute 
University of Maine – Farmington 
University Maine – Orono 
University of Southern Maine/Lewiston-Auburn College 
Western Maine Labor Council 
YPLAA – Young Professionals of the Lewiston-Auburn Area 

 

Economic Impact 
Estimates of visitor attendance, one of the key underlying factors in the impact analysis we conducted, are 
dependent on the facilities, services and programs to be offered under our Museum L-A umbrella. In general, the 
larger our future programs, the longer the average visit and subsequently the greater the distance visitors will 
travel to visit (i.e. heritage festivals, exhibition openings, collaborative programs and special events, etc.). The 
ability to draw from greater distances broadens Lewiston-Auburn’s visitor appeal and increases the likelihood that 
it will attract overnight visitors who spend more money in our local economy.  With 225,000 residents within a 30 
mile radius and a projected $1m operating budget serving over 30,000 visitors annually, the L-A community would 
see an annual $1.5m economic impact from the museums operations. 
 (Americans for the Arts – Economic & Prosperity Calculator) 
 
Visitors & Outreach  
Year Visitors Outreach TOTAL 

2007 2,153  2,153 
2008 2,598 194 2,792 
2009 2,801 1,905 4,706 
2010 2,917 822 3,739 
2011 1,957 939 2,896 
2012 2,906 5,890 8,796 
2013 3,702 8,542 12,244 



11 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

1 Beech Street – New Home of Museum L-A 
 
In 2008, Museum L-A hired E. Verner Johnson and Associates to create a Camden Yarns Mill Revitalization Plan, 
developed in three phases: 1. Demolition, 2. Restoration, and 3. Museum Program Expansion. Initial designs from 
this concept produced cost estimates for a 50,000sf museum. Since 2009, we have completed Phase 1, including 
the removal of debris, hazardous material, exterior clean-up, and demolition of the mill. The demolition and 
stabilization was much more extensive than anticipated, so we are currently working on a redesign and updated 
cost estimates with the generous support of Platz Associates. The timeline, campaign, and future operating costs 
of the new museum will be developed in 2013 based on the redesign.  
 
TOTAL EXPENDED ON NEW SITE AS OF 12/31/2013   $1,242,718 
 
 
 

 
 



12 

  Request to Cities of Lewiston & Auburn – February 2014 
 

 
 
 
Operating Budget 
 
3 Year Operating Plan - Museum L-A
CONFIDENTIAL

Actual Projected Projected Projected
INCOME 2013 2014 2015 2016

Grants 1,000$             1,000$           -$                   -$                   
Contributed Support 209,016$         194,590$       204,000$     212,000$     

Earned  Income 86,095$           62,824$         60,800$        66,950$        
Events 19,000$           28,000$         30,000$        32,000$        

Municipal Funding:
Lewiston 37,500$         37,500$        37,500$        

Auburn 37,500$         37,500$        37,500$        
TOTAL INCOME 315,111$         361,414$       369,800$     385,950$     

EXPENSE
General/Administrative 27,292$           35,346$         36,163$        38,660$        

Programming 105,230$         123,950$       124,600$     130,440$     
Payroll 175,384$         107,283$       110,502$     113,815$     

Municipal Funding Positions:
Lewiston -$                      37,500$         37,500$        37,500$        

Auburn -$                      37,500$         37,500$        37,500$        
Professional Fees 11,045$           15,735$         18,735$        22,235$        

Events 25,484$           2,300$           3,000$          4,000$          
Occupancy 1,150$             1,200$           1,200$          1,200$          

1 Beech Street 1,113$             600$               600$             600$             
TOTAL EXPENSES 346,698$         361,414$       369,800$     385,950$     

NET INCOME (31,587)$         -$                    -$                   -$                    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

           
 
 

AUBURN PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 
The Auburn Public Library, a Maine not-for-profit corporation founded in 1890, is a full-service public 
library providing an organized collection of information resources made accessible to all Auburn 
residents for reference or borrowing. We provide physical or digital access to a wide variety of materials, 
including books, periodicals, newspapers, microform, CDs, DVDs, e-books, audiobooks, local history 
resources, and databases. We provide free computer and Wi-Fi access to all. We offer a variety of 
programming for all ages. We provide meeting spaces for small and large community groups.  We also 
offer a media lab, the first of its kind in a public library in New England. We collaborate with Lewiston 
Public Library and the Town of Minot.  Approximately 80% of the Library’s operating funds come from 
the City of Auburn. 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 
Auburn Public Library brings people, resources and ideas together to engage, enlighten and enrich 

community. 
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
Goal 1:  Help customers of all generations to learn, grow, and have fun. 
 Objectives: 

 Provide a variety of family programming that both entertains and educates our 
community. 

 Increase independent learning and research/reading skills among teens through the use 
of library resources including but not limited to books and online resources. 

 Teach technology skills to adults so that they may access information, apply for services, 
correspond with others, etc. in a virtual world. 

 Ensure that customers are able to find materials that satisfy their need for rewarding 
reading, viewing and listening experiences. 

 Establish services for customers unable to visit the library. 
 
 
 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Book
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Periodical
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Newspaper
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Microform
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Compact_disc
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/DVD
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/E-book
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Audiobook
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Database


2 | P a g e  
 

Goal 2: Prepare children to start school ready to learn. 
 Objectives: 

 Offer parents and teachers materials and programs to prepare children to succeed in 
school and in life. 

 Assist teen parents in providing early childhood education to their children. 
 
Goal 3: Foster an organizational and community culture of innovation. 
 Objectives: 

 Increase teen career and technological skills. 
 Offer programs that will provide opportunities for adult library users to demonstrate 

and enhance their abilities to create and innovate. 
 Encourage staff to broaden outlook and increase knowledge. 
 Support local authors. 
 Investigate feasibility of creating maker space in Library’s lower level. 

 
Goal 4: Promote community workforce and economic development. 
 Objectives: 

 Support teens in developing career and/or college goals. 
 Work with local agencies to educate small business owners, entrepreneurs and job 

seekers. 
 Create space and implement SBI process. (Dependent upon grant funds) 
 Support small business success in L/A area. (Dependent upon grant funds) 
 Prepare space and implement Tool Lending Library. (Dependent upon grant funds) 

 
Goal 5: Broaden and strengthen community connections. 
 Objectives: 

 Continue to partner with local area agencies who serve children in collaborating to bring 
library services to children. 

 Strengthen links and foster future partnerships with teen community resources. 
 Ensure that non-library users are aware of library resources and avenues of access to 

them. 
 Increase community interaction through website and social media. 

 
Goal 6: Maintain facilities, resources and systems. 

 Ensure security of building, contents and staff. 
 Minimize damage in the event of a natural disaster. 
 Work with vendors and custodians to ensure that all funded capital improvements are 

completed in a thorough and cost-effective manner. 
 Ensure that the Library facility is operated as cost-effectively as possible. 

 
Goal 7: Ensure stable and dependable funding. 

 Crate an annual special event that benefits APL. 
 Create and implement planned giving program. 
 Maximize use of fundraising technology to provide better data for fundraising purposes. 

 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

PROGRAMS 
Board of Trustees: The Auburn Public Library is operated under a thirteen member Board of Trustees.  
Ten members are elected by the Library’s corporators (including one designated Minot resident), one is 
the Mayor of the City of Auburn or his/her designee, one is appointed by Superintendent of the Auburn 
Education Department, and one is appointed by the Town of Minot’s Board of Selectman.  The Board is 
the governing body, responsible for policies and the overall operation of the Library through the Library 
Director.  The Board reviews the annual budget, major expenditures and investment of funds. Board 
members serve as active advocates; provide professional counsel and guidance; provide volunteer 
support, as needed; and assist in fundraising activities. Associated Goals:  3,4,5,7. 
 
Administration:   
 
Administration includes the Director, Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant, Development Director, and 
Maintenance Coordinator.  The Administration carries out the business aspects of providing public 
library services.  It provides support services to all other departments.  It generates public awareness 
and marketing campaigns and raises funds to ensure the institution’s financial security.  Public meeting 
rooms and art exhibit/display spaces are coordinated and scheduled.  Vendor/library operated food 
service and retail operations are managed by this department.  Building and ground maintenance is 
coordinated through this department. Administration, primarily through the Library Director, works on 
behalf of the Board to respond to community’s needs.  Administrative staff members are committed to 
serving the public and staff with excellent customer services. Associated goals:  1 – 7. 
 
Collection Services: Lending Services includes the Assistant Director for Resource Sharing, Innovation 
and Staff Development; Technology Systems, Collection Services, and Lending Services; the Collection 
Services Assistant, an Associate (shared with Lending Services), and shelvers.  The Collection Services 
Department supports the Library’s print and non-print collections and bibliographic online catalog. The 
department acquires titles to include in the circulating and reference collection, catalogs, and processes 
these materials.  It also has responsibility for periodical acquisition and management.  The collection 
includes books, audio books, videos, music CD’s, and online resources. This department also is 
responsible for the Technology Systems Coordinator who is responsible for maintaining the hardware, 
software, and associated programs to keep the Library’s technology in working order. Associated Goals: 
1,2,5,6 
 
Lending Services: Lending Services includes the Lending Services Manager, a Lending Services 
Technician, and Lending Services Associates.  This department offers the public one of the library’s 
traditional core services by providing lending services to the public including readers advisory.  Lending 
Services are responsible for the circulation desk and monitoring the activities of the main part of the 
Library.  The department manages the Library’s retail efforts. Associated Goals: 1,5,7. 
 
Children’s Services: Children’s Services includes the Children’s Services Manager, the Children’s Services 
Assistant, and Children’s Services Associates.  This department caters to the developmental needs of 
children with age appropriate collections, service, and programs.  It helps to satisfy children’s curiosity 
about the world around them and encourages literacy at all levels.  This department also provides 
academic and digital support with collections and services that supplement and enhance local schools.  
Associated Goals: 1,2,3,5 
 
Adult Services:  Adult Services includes the Adult Services Manager, the Teen Collaboration Librarian, 
and Associates.  This department contains the bulk of the adult nonfiction collection and electronic 



4 | P a g e  
 

resources, including those directed at teens.  The department’s core function is to assist people in 
finding information on a wide range of subjects related to their general interests and self-directed 
personal growth and development.  The department meets their needs by assisting them in effectively 
evaluating and using the information.  The department is the primary resource for assisting the public 
with technology.  This department is also responsible for the local history collection.  Adult Services 
offers programs, activities, and events relevant to the general public’s interest, including teens’ popular 
interests and academic goals, and support of entrepreneurs/local businesses. Associated Goals: 
1,2,3,4,5. 

BUDGET DRIVERS 
 

 Salary increase of 2%.  It has been 2 years since any increase was given. Overall savings are 
achieved for FY15 through staff realignment. 

 Materials budget increase of 3.6% to cover increased costs and demand for large print 
materials, as we are now providing direct services to senior residences; adding a language 
database 

 Program budget increase of 7.4% to cover increased demand for programming for all ages 
 Utilities budget increase of 3.2% to cover increasing rates and demand 
 

 

PROGRAM EXPENSES AND REVENUES 
 

Board of Trustees      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 0 0 0 0 0 

Operations  500 500 0 0 

Contracted Services  0 0 0 0 

Total: 0 500 500 0 0 

 
 

Administration      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 2.9 165318 132977 (32341) (20.0) 

Operations  75577 75784 207 0.9 

Contracted Services  15191 15191 0 0 

Total:  256086 223952 (32134) (12.5) 

 
Collection Services      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 4.1 196024 201633 5609 2.8 

Operations  75629 78439 2810 3.7 

Contracted Services  1266 1266 0 0 

Total:  272919 281338 8419 3.0 

 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

Lending Services      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 4.0 177103 184106 7003 3.9 

Operations  60314 61874 1560 2.6 

Contracted Services  12659 12659 0 0 

Total:  250076 258639 8563 3.4 

 
Children’s Services      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 3.5 138037 149736 11699 8.4 

Operations  53047 54554 1507 2.8 

Contracted Services  5908 5908 0 0 

Total:  196992 210198 13206 6.7 

 
Adult Services      

Description FTE FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Salaries 2.9 142257 160259 18002 12.6 

Operations  39603 41088 1485 3.7 

Contracted Services  7173 7173 0 0 

Total:  189033 208520 19487 10.3 

 
 

PROGRAM EXPENSES     

Description FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

Trustees 500 500 0 0 

Administration 256086 223952 1485 3.7 

Collection Services 272919 281338 0 0 

Lending Services 250076 258639   

Children’s Services 196992 210198   

Adult Services 189033 208520   

Total: 1165606 1183147 17541 1.5 

 
 

REVENUES     

Description FY 2014 
Approved 

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Inc./Dec. % Change 

City of Auburn 927237 942407 15170 1.6 

Endowment Income 55988 55988 0 0 

Investment Income 21344 21364 20 0 

Other Revenue 86637 86738 101 0 

Donations & Gains 74400 76650 2250 3.0 

Total: 1165606 1183147 17541 1.5 

 
 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

General Measures: 
 

 FY13 

Items Loaned 244,800 

Daily Average Visitors 750 

Total Computer Sessions 35700 

Study Room Reservations 1600 

Total Program Attendance 16200 

Volunteer Hours 3600 

 
FY14 Measures (through 12/31/13): 
 

Goal: Objective: Strategy: Results: 

Help customers of all 
generations to learn, 
grow, and have fun 

Provide family 
programming, increase 
independent learning; 
teach technology, 
establish services for 
customers unable to visit 
the Library 

Host movies, concerts, 
author visits, DIY 
programming, other 
educational 
programming 

Summer reading 
program, hosting 
monthly movies, 
hosting children’s and 
adult authors, Young 
Engineers Club, DIY 
Tweens and Teens, 
lending services 
established for senior 
residences; ongoing  
computer classes and 
help sessions for adults 

Prepare children to 
start school ready to 
learn 

Offer parents/teachers 
materials and programs; 
assist teen parents 

Offer family literacy 
events; promote 
BookReach program 
for daycares; offer 
mini-sessions for teen 
parents 

Weekly storytimes for 
ages 0 to 6; special 
programming such as 
“Let’s Pretend;” Math 
Night for Head Start 
parents; teen 
parenting skills 
program lined up for 
Spring 2014 

Foster a culture of 
innovation 

Increase teen career and 
technology skills; assist 
adults in enhancing 
abilities to create and 
innovate; encourage staff 
to broaden outlook and 
increase knowledge; 
support local authors; 
create a makerspace 

Offer DIY programs for 
all ages; encourage use 
of Media Lab; conduct 
workshops for staff; 
support local authors; 
create a makerspace 

DIY programs for crafts 
and STEM projects; 
Media Lab bookings 
are strong; staff 
attending online 
workshop and regional 
conferences; 
makerspace area 
identified with 
planning and funding 
the next step. 



7 | P a g e  
 

Promote community 
workforce and 
economic 
development 

Support teens in 
career/education goals; 
work with local agencies 
to educate small business 
owners/entrepreneurs/job 
seekers; create small 
business incubator space; 
support small business 
success in L/A area 

Partner with Lewiston 
PL to offer Teen 
Opportunities Fair; 
work with high school 
guidance counselors; 
work with small 
business agencies; 
construct business 
incubator space within 
the Library; create tool 
lending library 

Opportunities Fair 
scheduled; hosted 
college fair; continued 
association with SCORE 
to provide business 
counseling; offering 
technology and social 
media classes for 
entrepreneurs; delayed 
implementation of 
incubator space to look 
at bigger economic 
development 
opportunities; 
represented at Start Up 
Weekend in Portland; 
tool library plans put 
on hold to address 
logistics concerns 

Broaden and 
strengthen community 
connections 

Continue partnerships 
with local agencies serving 
children and special 
needs; strengthen links 
and foster future 
partnerships with teen-
oriented groups; ensure 
non-library users award of 
library resources 

Continue collaboration 
with school 
department and other 
educational 
organizations; work 
with PAL; work with 
district customized 
learning team; have 
presence at 
community locations; 
increase use of website 
and social media 

Teen librarian serves 
on PAL board; 
Children’s Services is 
represented at 
customized learning 
meetings; high school 
librarian is APL trustee; 
participated in Winter 
Festival, holiday 
parade, and Dempsey 
Challenge; 
presentations given to 
Rotary groups; 
marketing and social 
media plan being 
developed 

Maintain facilities, 
resources and systems 

Ensure security of 
building, content, and 
staff; minimize effects of 
natural disaster; work with 
vendors and custodian to 
ensure capital 
improvements are 
completed; ensure facility 
is operated cost-
effectively 

Work with internal 
security team to 
address issues and 
maintain readiness; 
create disaster plan; 
create project 
calendar; review 
vendor relationships 
on an on-going basis 

Safety webinars 
viewed; fire drill 
conducted; disaster kit 
in preparation; building 
repairs scheduled and 
in progress; project 
calendar prepared and 
reviewed; vendor 
relationships reviewed 
and adjusted to reflect 
cost savings; able to 
purchase computers at 
significant cost savings 



8 | P a g e  
 

Ensure stable and 
dependable funding 

Maintain and build solid 
fundraising programs 

Organize Great Falls 
Yoga Festival;  create 
planned giving 
program; maximize use 
of fundraising 
technology to provide 
better data 

Festival held in Sept.; 
development director 
attended planned 
giving seminar; initial 
contacts made; 
fundraising software 
installed and new 
reports are being 
generated; 
development director 
left APL in Jan., 
working with 
consultants to 
revitalize fundraising 
efforts; revised 
development director’s 
position to be filled in 
FY15 

 



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0230 Public Library    

 
Public Library                                954,836 927,237 968,292 942,407 0 15,170 2%

 
TOTAL 954,836       927,237 968,292      942,407        ‐                  15,170          1.6%

3/12/2014 ‐‐  10:48 AM FY15 Budget Summary Page    15



City of Auburn
Library

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Public Library                              Total  927,237       942,407         ‐            

Estimated Detail of All Accounts    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Public Library                            
FY14 FY15 Change  (FY15‐

FY14)

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

Revenues  
City of Auburn 927,237$    942,407$      15,170$        942,407$     
Donations 74,400$      76,651$         2,251$           
Endowment Income 55,988$      55,988$         ‐$                
Investment Earnings 21,343$      21,364$         21$                 
Other 86,638$      86,738$         100$              

1,165,606$    1,183,148$       17,542$              
Expenses   
Automation Expense 13,209$      13,800$         591$            
Commodities 26,200$      26,050$         (150)$           
Financial  23,550$      23,550$         ‐$              
Insurance 10,138$      10,138$         ‐$              
Library Materials 90,565$      94,100$         3,535$         
Maintenance 93,055$      94,097$         1,042$         
Miscellaneous 1,700$        1,700$           ‐$              
Personnel 820,009$    828,713$      8,704$         
Personnel Development 2,500$        3,000$           500$            
Programs 13,680$      14,700$         1,020$         

3/12/2014 --  10:46 AM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1

Utilities 71,000$      73,300$         2,300$         
  ‐$                1,165,606$    1,183,148$       17,542$              

942,407$      ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    
Library: See Above. 

3/12/2014 --  10:46 AM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



3/11/20143:54 PM

APL REVENUE ESTIMATE FY 15

FY13 FY14 Annual Received Percent Percent Left Revenue
Description Actual  Budget JULY-DEC '13 Balance Received to Receive  FY15

40501-City 979,262.74$    $927,237.00 $463,618.50 $463,618.50 50.00% 50.00% 942,406.99$   15,169.99$     requested increase from City
40801-Endowment Income 55,988.16$      $55,988.16 $7,116.00 $48,872.16 12.71% 87.29% 55,988.16$     1.64% percent of increase from City

Totals 1,035,250.90$ $983,225.16 $470,734.50 $512,490.66 47.88% 52.12% 998,395.15$   
41.00$            per capita

Investment Earnings
40101-Checking Interest & Investment 26,725.55$      $21,339.00 $10,498.88 $10,840.12 49.20% 50.80% 21,339.00$     
41101-Savings 40.40$             $5.00 $3.58 $1.42 71.60% 28.40% 25.00$            

Totals 26,765.95$      $21,344.00 $10,502.46 $10,841.54 49.21% 50.79% 21,364.00$     

Other Revenue
40701-Copier & Printer 5,316.62$        $7,200.00 $2,899.75 $4,300.25 40.27% 59.73% 5,000.00$       
40301-Video/DVD Rental 12,254.88$      $4,500.00 $6,443.62 ($1,943.62) 143.19% -43.19% 9,000.00$       
40401-Audio Book Rentals 5,006.33$        $3,938.00 $2,772.30 $1,165.70 70.40% 29.60% 3,938.00$       
41001-Fines 15,022.84$      $16,000.00 $7,821.33 $8,178.67 48.88% 51.12% 16,000.00$     
41201-Lost & Defaced 3,389.70$        $2,300.00 $1,457.72 $842.28 63.38% 36.62% 2,300.00$       
41512-Services to Minot 20,000.00$      $21,000.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 50.00% 50.00% 21,000.00$     
41601-Non Resident Fees 4,606.33$        $4,000.00 $2,192.61 $1,807.39 54.82% 45.18% 4,000.00$       
41621-Fees & Other Charges 7,457.50$        $7,000.00 $3,380.00 $3,620.00 48.29% 51.71% 7,000.00$       
41701-Booksale - Library 4,592.48$        $5,100.00 $1,750.15 $3,349.85 34.32% 65.68% 5,000.00$       
41711-Programs Admission -$                 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 100.00% -$                
41751 - Gift Cart Sales 3,575.75$        $6,100.00 $1,661.50 $4,438.50 27.24% 72.76% 4,000.00$       
42002 - Café Rental 9,755.53$        $9,500.00 $4,918.77 $4,581.23 51.78% 48.22% 9,500.00$       

Totals 90,977.96$      $86,638.00 $45,797.75 $40,840.25 52.86% 47.14% 86,738.00$     

Donations & Gains
40402-Adult Print 200.00$           $250.00 $100.00 $150.00 40.00% 60.00% $250.00
40403-Juv Print 2,379.25$        $250.00 $350.00 ($100.00) 140.00% -40.00% $500.00
40404-Juv Non-Print 100.00$           $400.00 $200.00 $200.00 50.00% 50.00% $400.00
41501-Memorial Donations 560.00$           $500.00 $3,150.00 ($2,650.00) 630.00% -530.00% $500.00
45502- A P L Book Sale $1,500.00 $937.50 $562.50 62.50% 37.50% $1,500.00
45504-Library Partners Program 585.00$           $6,000.00 $2,700.00 $3,300.00 45.00% 55.00% $6,000.00
46001-Grants (Cash) $25,000.00 $3,301.50 $21,698.50 13.21% 86.79% $25,000.00
46002-Unrestricted Annual Fund 21,867.26$      $30,000.00 $16,316.17 $13,683.83 54.39% 45.61% $31,500.00
46003-Annual Fund Activities 1,495.99$        $7,500.00 $6,456.87 $1,043.13 86.09% 13.91% $7,500.00
46004-Silent Auction Income 50.00$             $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 0.00% 100.00% $2,500.00
46007-Inhouse Fundraiser $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 100.00% 500.00$          
46008-Sunshine Fund 355.70$           $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00% 100.00% $500.00
46009-Prime Time Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 100.00% -$                
40601-Contributions/Gifts $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 100.00% -$                

Totals $27,593.20 $74,400.00 $33,512.04 $40,887.96 30.65% 69.35% $76,650.00

Total Revenues $1,180,588.01 $1,165,607.16 $575,010.18 $629,101.44 49.33% 50.67% $1,183,147.15

Expenses 1,183,147$       
          Budget increase 17,541$      

% increase 1.50%
         City Share of budget 942,407$    

% city share 79.65%
% city increase 1.64%



3/11/2014 3:54 PM

APL EXPENSE ESTIMATE FY 15

FY13 FY14 Annual Expended FY15 Annual Difference % of Notes
Line Item Actual Operating July-Dec 2013 Balance %Expend % UnExp Operating increase
Personnel Budget Budget

60201-Health Insurance 121,283$      $137,478 $64,594 $72,884 47% 53% 135,563$           (1,916)$        -1% 10% premium increase and budgeting for add'    
62401-Salaries 658,160$      $628,030 $311,651 $316,379 50% 50% 635,212$           7,182$         1.1%
62521-Accr. Unp'd Leave Exp $1,000 $581 $419 58% 42% 1,000$               -$                 0.00% Amt. determined by auditors
63201-Social Security 54,871$        $53,231 $26,045 $27,185 49% 51% 53,188$             (43)$             0% Salaries plus buyout
64301-Job Search $0 $0 $0 0% 100% -$                   -$                 
64501-Wellness Plan 3,549$          $0 $0 $0 0% 100% 3,750$               3,750$         N/A

Total 837,862$      $819,738 $402,871 $416,867 49% 51% 828,712$           8,974$         1.09%

Maintenance & Repair

60401-Bldg & Grounds 28,642$        $40,000 $16,863 $23,137 42% 58% 40,000$             -$                 0% maintenance hours, additional salt/sand and sn
60421-Cleaning services 40,771$        $42,197 $21,057 $21,140 50% 50% 42,197$             -$                 0% Year 2 of 3- yr. contract
60901-Equipment repair 2,643$          $3,400 $1,360 $2,040 40% 60% 3,400$               -$                 0%
60911-Major bldg repair $0 $0 $0 0% 100% -$                   -$                 0%
61101-Furniture & fixtures exp 1,332$          $3,000 $141 $2,859 5% 95% 3,000$               -$                 0% includes 2 refurbished laptops for Children's R
61901-Maintenance supplies 3,588$          $4,459 $2,783 $1,675 62% 38% 5,500$               1,041$         23%

Total 76,979$        $93,055 $42,205 $50,850 45% 55% 94,097$             1,041$         1.12%

Utilities -$                 
60801-Electricity 36,582$        $46,000 $17,561 $28,439 38% 62% 41,000$             (5,000)$        -11%
61001-Heat 21,396$        $18,500 $6,345 $12,155 34% 66% 25,800$             7,300$         39%
63101-Water/Sewer 3,914$          $5,500 $2,113 $3,387 38% 62% 5,500$               -$                 0%
63401-Telephone 1,158$          $1,000 $579 $421 58% 42% 1,000$               -$                 0%

Total 63,050$        $71,000 $26,598 $44,402 37% 63% 73,300$             2,300$         3.24%

Insurance -$                 
61401-Ins - Property/Liability 5,867$          $7,000 $3,890 $3,110 56% 44% 7,000$               -$                 0%
61501-Ins - Workers' comp 3,422$          $3,138 $1,330 $1,808 42% 58% 3,138$               -$                 0%

Total 9,289$          $10,138 $5,220 $4,918 51% 49% 10,138$             -$                 0.00%

Financial
61701-Investment mgmt fees 13,484$        13,000$              $3,466 $9,534 27% 73% 13,000$             -$                 0%
64811-Accounting 8,750$          9,250$                $9,250 $0 100% 0% 9,250$               -$                 0% No increase per auditor
64901-Bank service charge 1,354$          1,300$                $629 $671 48% 52% 1,300$               -$                 0%
64821-Legal -$                 

23,588$        
Total $23,550 $13,345 $10,205 57% 43% 23,550$             -$                 0.00%

Commodities
60701-Copier expenses 4,833$          $5,000 $2,495 $2,505 50% 50% 5,200$               200$            4%
61801-Library supplies 11,203$        $13,000 $3,687 $9,313 28% 72% 12,000$             (1,000)$        -8%
62701-Postage 4,602$          $4,400 $2,172 $2,228 49% 51% 4,600$               200$            5% Postage costs increase set by USPS
63301-Office supplies 1,618$          $2,300 $1,548 $752 67% 33% 3,000$               700$            30%
64101-Printing 675$             $1,500 $414 $1,086 28% 72% 1,250$               (250)$           -17%
64500-Gift cart goods 103$             $0 $0 $0 0% 100% -$                   -$                 

Total 23,034$        $26,200 $10,317 $15,884 39% 61% 26,050$             (150)$           -0.57%



3/11/2014 3:54 PM

Library Materials
60001-AV - Adult 12,604$        $12,000 $6,518 $5,482 54% 46% 12,700$             700$            6%
60301-Books - Fiction 19,263$        $21,265 $8,641 $12,624 41% 59% 23,000$             1,735$         8% Cost of materials; cost of ebooks; add'l outreac   
60311-Books - Nonfiction 24,098$        $24,500 $10,134 $14,366 41% 59% 25,000$             500$            2%
60331-Juvenile Materials 18,718$        $19,700 $11,981 $7,719 61% 39% 20,000$             300$            2%
60341-Teen Material - YA 6,049$          $6,670 $2,565 $4,105 38% 62% 7,000$               330$            5%
62601-Magazines & Newspape 6,294$          $6,700 $1,999 $4,701 30% 70% 6,400$               (300)$           -4%

Total 87,025$        $90,835 $41,838 $48,997 46% 54% 94,100$             3,265$         3.59%

Programs
62801-Adult/Teen 5,036$          $5,197 $1,163 $4,034 22% 78% 5,700$               503$            10% Increasing program attendance,
62901-Juvenile 4,581$          $4,337 $2,039 $2,297 47% 53% 4,800$               463$            11% increasing booking costs, 
62921-Bookreach 2,136$          $4,146 $1,719 $2,428 41% 59% 4,200$               54$              1% supplies, etc.

Total 11,753$        $13,680 $4,921 $8,759 36% 64% 14,700$             1,020$         7.46%

Personnel Devel -$                 
63501-Tuition and Dues 2,041$          $2,500 $2,461 $39 98% 2% 3,000$               500$            20% Increasing dues (ALA, PLA, MLA, NELA, MMA  

staff development needs
Total 2,041$          $2,500 $2,461 $39 98% 2% 3,000$               500$            20%

Automation
64601-Automation services 4,877$          $13,209 $6,504 $6,705 49% 51% 13,800$             591$            4.47% $200 increase in Minverva dues; $400 increas       

Total 4,877$          $13,209 $6,504 $6,705 49% 51% 13,800$             591$            4.47%

Miscellaneous
62201-Collection Agency Fee 1,504$          $1,200 $115 $1,085 10% 90% 1,200$               -$                 0%
64201-Lost & Defaced expense 381$             $500 $0 $500 0% 100% 500$                   -$                 0%

Total 1,882$          $1,700 $115 $1,585 7% 93% 1,700$               -$                 0%

Grand Total $1,117,792 $1,165,606 $556,395 1,183,147$        
Increase 17,541$             

1.50%

 



3/11/20143:54 PM

FY15 - Personnel Budget
FY15 FY15 FY 15

Wkly FY14 Raise Proposed Yearly Hourly Weekly
Hours Salary 2.00% Salary Hours Rate Salary

James Allard 17.5 12,530.96$              250.62$          12,781.58$             910.0 14.05$    $245.80
Joshua Barnhard 12 4,680.00$                93.60$            4,773.60$               624.0 7.65$      $91.80
William Chapman 17.5 10,920.00$              218.40$          11,138.40$             910.0 12.24$    $214.20
Debora Cleveland 37.5 44,538.00$              890.76$          45,428.76$             1,950.0 23.30$    $873.63
Sarah Cunningham 20 17,860.00$              357.20$          18,217.20$             1,040.0 17.52$    $350.33
Myra Ellrich 37.5 40,072.76$              801.46$          40,874.22$             1,950.0 20.96$    $786.04
Deb Erickson 25 20,839.00$              416.78$          21,255.78$             1,300.0 16.35$    $408.77
Martin Gagnon 37.5 42,178.76$              843.58$          43,022.34$             1,950.0 22.06$    $827.35
Dawn Helton 20 9,360.00$                187.20$          9,547.20$               1,040.0 9.18$      $183.60 *
Melissa Johnson 17 11,633.44$              232.67$          11,866.11$             884.0 13.42$    $228.19
John Kelley 37.5 55,770.00$              1,115.40$       56,885.40$             1,950.0 29.17$    $1,093.95
Mamie Ney 37.5 65,000.00$              1,300.00$       66,300.00$             1,950.0 34.00$    $1,275.00
Sylvie Martin 37.5 33,052.76$              661.06$          33,713.82$             1,950.0 17.29$    $648.34
Nancy Morrow 14 9,464.00$                189.28$          9,653.28$               728.0 13.26$    $185.64
Anne Pontbriand 17 11,633.44$              232.67$          11,866.11$             884.0 13.42$    $228.19
June Roberts 14 9,464.00$                189.28$          9,653.28$               728.0 13.26$    $185.64
Heather Runnels 20 14,747.20$              294.94$          15,042.14$             1,040.0 14.46$    $289.27
Corinna Soucie 37.5 27,729.00$              554.58$          28,283.58$             1,950.0 14.50$    $543.92
Joan Savage 14 9,464.00$                189.28$          9,653.28$               728.0 13.26$    $185.64
Suzanne Sullivan 37.5 50,407.76$              1,008.16$       51,415.92$             1,950.0 26.37$    $988.77
Brian Usher 37.5 51,402.00$              1,028.04$       52,430.04$             1,950.0 26.89$    $1,008.27
Donna Wallace 37.5 40,226.76$              804.54$          41,031.30$             1,950.0 21.04$    $789.06
Dev. Director 20 35,055.75$              701.12$          21,018.40$             1,040.0 20.21$    $404.20
Adult/Children's Services PT 15 -$                         -$                9,360.00$               780.0 12.00$    $180.00

Total 618.00   628,029.59$            12,560.59$     635,211.72$           2% raise $12,215.61

*Increase to 20 hrs./wk @$9/hr due to increased responsibilities a/o 3/1/14



3/11/20143:54 PM

FY 2015 ESTIMATED EXPENSES FOR GROUP INSURANCE

CAL YEAR
CAL YEAR CAL YEAR FY'15 BUDGET
2014 RATE JUL-NOV '14 EST. 2015 Rates DEC-JUN '15 12 MONTHS EST COST

5 MONTHS 7 MONTHS PREMS AT 85%
Deb Cleveland -$              -$              -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Myra Ellrich -$              -$              -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Deb Erickson -$              -$              -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Martin Gagnon 1,848.88$          9,244.40$     2,033.77$       14,236.39$     23,480.79$      19,958.67$      
John Kelley 824.23 4,121.15$     906.66$          6,346.62$       10,467.77$      8,897.60$        
Sylvie Martin -$              -$              -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Mamie Ney 824.23 4,121.15$     906.66$          6,346.62$       10,467.77$      8,897.60$        
Corinna Soucie -$                   -$              -$                -$                -$                 -$                
Heather Runnels 824.23 4,121.15$     906.66$          6,346.62$       10,467.77$      8,897.60$        
Suzanne Sullivan 824.23 4,121.15$     906.66$          6,346.62$       10,467.77$      8,897.60$        
Brian Usher -$                   -$              -$                -$                 -$                
Donna Wallace 1,848.88$          9,244.40$     2,033.77$       14,236.39$     23,480.79$      19,958.67$      
Sarah Cunningham -$                   -$              -$                -$                 -$                
Dev Director -$              -$                -$                 -$                

Total 6,994.68$     34,973.40$   7,694.18$       53,859.26$     88,832.66$      75,507.76$      

Buyout $60,054.94
Total Heath Insurance 135,562.70$    



3/11/20143:54 PM

FY 2015 ESTIMATED EXPENSES FOR INSURANCE BUY OUT

ESTIMATE
4/1/2013 - 10/1/2014 10/1/2013 - 1/1/2014 4/1/2015 12 MOS
9/30/2013 PAYMT. 12/31/2013- 3/31/2014 PAYMT BUDGET

COV STAT ACT PREM X 6 MOS 0.4167 ACT PREM X 3 MOS X 3 MOS 0.4167 6/30/2014

Deb Cleveland FAM FT $1,848.88 11,093.28$   4,622.57$     $1,848.88 5,546.64$ $2,033.77 $6,101.31 $4,853.70 9,476.27$         
Donna Wallace FAM FT $0.00 -$             -$              $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$                  
Myra Ellrich 2 FT $1,848.88 11,093.28$   4,622.57$     $1,848.88 5,546.64$ $2,033.77 $6,101.31 $4,853.70 9,476.27$         
Deb Erickson 1 PT $824.23 4,945.38$     2,060.74$     $824.23 2,472.69$ $906.66 $2,719.98 $2,163.79 $4,224.53
Marty Gagnon $0.00 -$             -$              $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
John Kelley $0.00 -$             -$              $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Director $0.00 -$             -$              $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sylvie Martin 2 FT $1,848.88 11,093.28$   4,622.57$     $1,848.88 5,546.64$ $2,033.77 $6,101.31 $4,853.70 $9,476.27
Heaher Runnels 1 PT $824.23 4,945.38$     2,060.74$     $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Corinna Soucie FAM FT $1,848.88 11,093.28$   4,622.57$     $1,848.88 5,546.64$ $2,033.77 $6,101.31 $4,853.70 $9,476.27
Suzanne Sullivan $0.00 -$             -$              $0.00 -$          $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Brian Usher FAM FT $1,848.88 11,093.28$   4,622.57$     $1,848.88 $5,546.64 $2,033.77 $6,101.31 $4,853.70 $9,476.27
Sarah Cunningham 1 PT $824.23 4,945.38$     2,060.74$     $824.23 $2,472.69 $906.66 $2,719.98 $2,163.79 $4,224.53
 Dev Director FAM FT $824.23 4,945.38$     2,060.74$     $824.23 2,472.69$ $906.66 $2,719.98 $0.00 $4,224.53

Total $10,892.86 $65,357.16 $27,234.33 $10,892.86 ######### $11,075.51 $33,226.53 $28,596.08 $60,054.94

*Covered at Lower Rate FICA 0.0765 $4,594.20
Total $64,649.14



3/11/20143:54 PM

FY 2015 BUDGET WELLNESS EXPENSE

Basic $225.00
Match $150.00

 BUDGET
FY 2015

Deb Cleveland 375.00$        
Myra Ellrich 375.00$        
Marty Gagnon 375.00$        
John Kelley 375.00$        
Sylvie Martin 375.00$        
Mamie Ney 375.00$        
Corinna Soucie 375.00$        
Suzanne Sullivan 375.00$        
Brian Usher 375.00$        
Donna Wallace 375.00$        
Total 3,750.00$ 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Economic Development Department 

 
 

Economic Development Department Program Budget FY15 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 
The Department of Economic Development is responsible for the coordination, direction 
and leadership of all economic development activities in the City. The Economic 
Development staff works closely with the City Manager, Elected Officials, State and Federal 
Agencies, non-profit organizations such as AVCOG, LAEGC, business partners both 
current and prospective as well Auburn citizens in the promotion and recruitment of 
Auburn businesses that grow our tax base as well as give our residents employment 
opportunities with some of the most prestigious businesses in America. The Department 
oversees the development of our numerous industrial parks, Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Districts, downtown business sector and all other economic development activity within 
Auburn.  

 

MISSION  
 
The Auburn Economic Development Department is committed to creating and maintaining 
a vibrant community environment and enhancing the quality of life for our residents, 
businesses, customers and partners. We accomplish this endeavor by providing 
exceptional facilities, programs and services that our citizens desire in a fiscally 
responsible manner. 
 
 
VISION 
 
The many restored mill buildings in the downtown, and the potential for business park-type 
growth around the city’s outskirts, make Auburn a tantalizing target for all types of 
businesses – from independent start-ups to large corporations. Auburn is part of one of 
the most desirable regions in New England – the Cities of the Androscoggin – yet Auburn 
is still the affordable City. Whether you are starting, relocating, or expanding a business in 
Auburn, you’ll find the price is right for your enterprise – and for the families you employ. 
 
Auburn offers opportunities for all types of businesses. Prime downtown, and even 
waterfront, locations are still available, and perfect for retail, office space, and service 
enterprises. 
 
Several industrial and business parks lie just outside the downtown. Opportunities here 
range from manufacturing and industry, to warehousing, shipping, service industries, 
office space, retail, and more. All offer major highway access and many have rail access. 



Page 2 
 

 
Auburn is within easy reach of our airport that is a designated Foreign Trade Zone location. 
From Auburn, you can do business with the enterprise next door, nationwide, or around 
the world. 
 
Auburn’s workforce is highly educated, skilled, and committed. In fact, Auburn has the one 
of the premiere educational systems in the state. Our mill heritage has imbued us with a 
strong work ethic, and the innovation and drive to continually reinvent ourselves and move 
forward. When the mills declined, Auburn could have become another sad story of faded 
glory. But that was not the case. The people of Auburn sought new enterprises, new ways 
to make the mills flourish, and an identity far beyond being just a “mill town.” The result 
has been a city reborn. Our downtown is gaining attention and unheralded momentum. Our 
waterfront is alive with commerce, with recreation, with families enjoying parkland. Auburn 
is strong, growing, with a future of unlimited potential. 
 
The Economic Development Department is motivated to meet or exceed citizen 
expectations through accountability, transparency, ethical practices, excellence, and 
constant communication.  The Department is committed to improving efficiencies in all 
interactions with citizens, businesses both current and potential and all of our partners. 
The Department will continue to maintain and improve existing programs and services in a 
cost effective and efficient manner. As the Chief Economic Development Officer I will 
ensure that the City of Auburn is prepared for new growth opportunities and creating 
relationships that will benefit and strengthen the City. I am committed to providing a 
positive work environment in which employees can share in the overall health, safety, and 
welfare of the community. Each employee is a member of the Auburn Economic 
Development Team and will always strive to represent the City in a professional, courteous 
manner.  
 



Page 3 
 

PROGRAMS 
 
1. Operations: Oversight and management of all economic development operations to ensure compliance 

with all local, state and federal guidelines, coordinate marketing efforts with our economic development 
partners, assist businesses on TIF applications, recruitment, retention, site location, etc. Staffing is at an 
appropriate level that delivers services in accordance with my expectations, goals are achievable yet at 
the same time create opportunities to develop new skills and improve service levels, objectives that are in 
coordination with City initiatives and coordination with all departments. This program accounts for 40% 
of the total Economic Development Department Budget.  

 
2. Policy Implementation: Coordinate and implement the policies of the City Council. Provide staff with 

direction on Council policy objectives and report regularly to the Council on progress.  
This program accounts for 10% of the total Economic Development Department Budget. 

 
3. Fiscal Responsibility: Regularly report to the City Manager on the City’s economic development 

activities, draft, present, implement and oversee an annual budget and capital improvement plan 
consistent with the City Charter and all applicable state and federal laws. This program accounts for 4% 
of the total Economic Development Department Budget. 

 
4. Strategic Planning: Facilitate and coordinate with the City Manager, Economic Development partners to 

formulate short and long term strategic goals. Implement these goals with staff.  
This program accounts for 46% of the total Economic Development Department Budget. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 
 

 

PROGRAM BUDGET 
 

PROGRAM BUDGET 

PROGRAM FTE FY 2015 Proposed FY 2015 Adopted 
Operations (40%) 

Salaries 
Operations and Maintenance 

Organization Support 
TIF Offset (100%) 

Total  

 
2.25 

 
$147,985.00 

20,660.00 
0.00 

-168,645.00 
$0.00 

 

Policy Implementation (10%) 
Salaries 

Operations and Maintenance 
Organization Support 

TIF Offset (100%) 
Total 

 
2.25 

 
$14,596.00 

5,165.00 
0.00 

-19,761.00 
$0.00 

 

    
Fiscal Responsibility (4%) 

Salaries 
Operations and Maintenance 

Organization Support 
TIF Offset (100%) 

Total 

 
2.25 

 
$5,839.00 
2,066.00 

0.00 
-7,905`.00 

$0.00 

 

Strategic Planning (46%) 
Salaries 

Operations and Maintenance 
Organization Support 

TIF Offset (100%) 
Total 

 
2.25 

 
$0.00 
0.00 

172,353.00 
-172,353.00 

$0.00 

 

    
TOTAL 2.25 $369,963.00  



Page 5 
 

 

BUDGET DRIVERS 
Economic Development Department 

 
Regular Salaries:  None-   
 
Operations and Maintenance: 
Purchased Services General- Department is recommending hiring an outside firm to help develop a 
work plan for a Downtown Program Land Use Code.  
Office Supplies- None 
Telephone- None 
Training/Tuition- None 
Mileage- None 
 
Organization Support 
Dues and Subscriptions-Continue to contribute funding our Economic Development Partners at 
LAEGC, AVCOG, L/A Chamber of Commerce, ABA, MEREDA, EDCM and Maine Biz at our agreed 
upon rates.  
 
TIF Offset: 
TIF Revenues offset the Economic Development Budget 100%. Each program is eligible under TIF 
guidelines.  
 
 



Page 6 
 

 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES  
 

• Provide Professional leadership and integrity in the operational and administrative 
functions of the Economic Development Department; so as to instill confidence 
within the community. 

• Develop complete, unbiased and timely information for the City Council to allow 
informed decisions in a transparent environment.  

• Organize marketing efforts with our non-profit partners to promote Auburn as a 
leader in Economic Development throughout New England.  

• Continue to assist our business so they can grow and prosper.  
• Spearhead efforts to develop our downtown through citizen input and engagement.  
• Seek grant opportunities to develop niche industry in our Industrial Park. 
• Continue to work with our sister City Lewiston in creating a superior infrastructure 

to move goods and services throughout North America and beyond.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND WORKLOAD INDICATORS 
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

MEASURE 
Goal 

FY 2014 
Actual YTD 

FY 2014 
Goal 

FY 2015 
Actual 

FY 2015 
1. Coordinate with ABDC the permitting 

and opening of the new Industrial Park 
on Poland Road.  

100% 100% 100%  

2. Work with LAEGC on attracting and 
recruiting and assisting potential 
businesses to Auburn. 

100% 100% 100%  

3. Attend all City Council meetings that 
address economic development  100% 100% 100%  

4. See that all laws, provisions of the 
Charter, and acts of the City Council 
subject to enforcement by the City 
Manager or by officers subject to the City 
Manager’s direction and supervision are 
executed.  

100% 100% 100%  

5. Prepare and submit to DECD all TIF 
documentation in a timely well organized 
manner.  

100% 100% 100%  

6. Educate the public on all economic 
development that will impact the City and 
the tax base.  

100% 100% 100%  

 
 

WORKLOAD INDICATORS 

MEASURE 
Actual YTD 

FY 2014 
Actual 

FY 2015 
1. Number of City Council meetings attended.    
2. Number of Committee meetings attended such as LAWPCA, LATC, 

ATRC, LAR, LAEGC, AVCOG, etc.  
  

3. Number of emails from the public requesting information. 
 

  

4. Number of emails from elected officials. 
 

  

5. Business retention/recruitment/placement   
6. TIF District creation and or amendments   
7. Meeting goals of the Comprehensive Plan   

 



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0110 Economic Development  

 
Regular Salaries                            115,724 144,280 144,280 145,960 0 1,680 1.2%
PS ‐ General                                  0 50 50 50,050 0 50,000 100000.0%
Office Supplies                              50 100 75 100 0 0 0%
Comm ‐ Telephone                      0 360 360 360 0 0 0%
Training & Tuition                        2,827 1,690 1,600 1,040 0 (650) ‐38%
Travel‐Mileage                              82 100 50 100 0 0 0%
Dues & Subscriptions                  255 172,353 172,353 172,353 0 0 0%

 
TOTAL 118,938       318,933 318,768      369,963        ‐                  51,030          16.0%

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    31



City of Auburn
Economic Dev

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Regular Salaries                       Total  144,280     145,960       ‐            
PS ‐ General                              Total  50               50,050         ‐            
Office Supplies                         Total  100            100              ‐            

Estimated Detail of Regular Salaries                                 

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Regular Salaries                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Economic Development Specialist (non‐union) 56,431$      
Administrative Assistant (see Finance)(union) 9,640$        
Director of Economic Development (non‐union) 79,889$      

145,960$    ‐$           
TIF Offset  100% ‐$           
Net Cost   ‐$            

Estimated Detail of PS - General                                               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

PS ‐ General                                
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Purchased Services 50,050$      
50,050$       ‐$           

TIF Offset 100% ‐$

Note: The wages of the Director of Economic 
Development the ED assistant and admin 
asst are paid for 100% by TIF Revenues.  

TIF Offset  100% $           
Net Cost   ‐$            

Estimated Detail of Office Supplies                                            

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Office Supplies                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

General Office Supplies 100$           
100$            ‐$           

TIF Offset  100% ‐$           
Net Cost   ‐$            

Line Item Narrative    

Last Dept. Manager

Regular Wages:  

Purchased Services‐ General:  This is a miscellaneous line item including printing, business lunches, training, etc. The 
addition is for contract services for Downtown Program Land Use Code. 

Office Supplies: This account is used for general office supplies, signs, etc.  

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Economic Dev

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Comm ‐ Telephone                    Total  360            360              ‐            
Training & Tuition                    Total  1,690         1,040           ‐            

Estimated Detail of Comm - Telephone                                           

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Comm ‐ Telephone                    
Cost / Month

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

Economic Development Director 30.00$        360$           
360$            ‐$           

TIF Offset 100% 360$          
Net Cost   ‐$            

Estimated Detail of Training & Tuition                              

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Training & Tuition                        
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

ABA Monthly Meetings ‐$             ‐$           
Chamber Awards Dinner  50$             
Chamber Breakfast  100$           
EDCM Quarterly Meetings 240$           
LAEGC Awards Dinner  ‐$             ‐$           
LAEGC B to B Trade Show ‐$             ‐$           
MEREDA Trade Show & Seminars 650$           

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2

MEREDA Trade Show & Seminars 650$           
1,040$         ‐$           

100% 1,040$       
  ‐$            

Line Item Narrative   

 

Last Dept. Manager

Communications:  Cell phone usage .

Training & Tuition:  This account funds the training needs for the Economic Development staff. 

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2



City of Auburn
Economic Dev

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Travel‐Mileage                            Total  100            100              ‐            
Dues & Subscriptions              Total  172,353     172,353       ‐            

Estimated Detail of Travel-Mileage                                             

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Travel‐Mileage                             
 

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

Miscellaneous Department Mileage 100$           
100$            ‐$           

TIF Offset 100% 100$          
Net Cost   ‐$            

Estimated Detail of Dues & Subscriptions                                       

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Dues & Subscriptions                  
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Auburn Business Association (ABA)  60$             
AVCOG 26,000$      
L/A Chamber of Commerce 1,200$        
Lewiston Auburn Economic Growth Council (LAEGC) 144,618$    
Economic Development Council of Maine (EDCM)  100$           
Maine Biz  100$           
Maine Real Estate & Development Association (MEREDA) 275$           

172,353$    ‐$           

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3

172,353$    $           
TIF Offset 100% 172,353$   
Net Cost   ‐$            

Line Item Narrative    
Travel‐Mileage:Miscellanous department mileage.

Dues & Subscriptions:  This account funds the dues for the Economic Development Director and various 
memberships as well as LAECG .

2/18/2014 ‐‐  2:31 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3













































































































City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
City Manager Department 

 
 

City Manager Department Program Budget FY15 
 

DESCRIPTION 
 
The Department of the City Manager is responsible for the coordination, direction and 
leadership of all administrative and operational functions of the City, except for the 
Department of Education. The City Manager works closely with the Mayor and City Council 
to advise and inform them and the community on key issues or policies within municipal 
government. The Department oversees operations, City Council policy directives, labor 
relations and employment matters, fiscal matters (specifically budget and capital 
improvement presentations) and strategic planning.  

 

MISSION  
 
The Auburn City Manager Department is committed to creating and maintaining a vibrant 
community environment and enhancing the quality of life for our residents, businesses, 
customers and partners. We accomplish this endeavor by providing exceptional facilities, 
programs and services that our citizens desire in a fiscally responsible manner. 
 
 
VISION 
 
The City Manager’s Department is motivated to meet or exceed citizen expectations 
through accountability, transparency, ethical practices, excellence, and constant 
communication.  The Department is committed to improving efficiencies in all departments 
and with each employee. The Department will continue to maintain and improve existing 
programs and services in a cost effective and efficient manner. As the Chief Administrative 
Officer I will ensure that the City of Auburn is prepared for new growth opportunities and 
creating relationships that will benefit and strengthen the City. I am committed to providing 
a positive work environment in which employees can share in the overall health, safety, 
and welfare of the community. Each employee is a member of the Auburn Team and will 
always strive to represent the City in a professional, courteous manner.  
 
  



 Page 2 
 

PROGRAMS 
 
1. Operations: Oversight and management of all City Departments (with the exception of the Education 

Department) to ensure work plans are created and implemented, staffing is at an appropriate level that 
delivers services in accordance with my expectations, goals are achievable yet at the same time create 
opportunities to develop new skills and improve service levels, objectives that are in coordination with City 
initiatives and coordination with all departments. This program accounts for 45% of the total City Manager 
Department Budget.  

 
2. Policy Implementation: Coordinate and implement the policies of the City Council. Provide staff with 

direction on Council policy objectives and report regularly to the Council on progress.  
This program accounts for 25% of the total City Manager Department Budget. 

 
3. Labor Relations and Employee Relations: Annually evaluate Department Directors, evaluate 

department performance, negotiate with collective bargaining units, and advise Human Resources 
Department and the affected Department Director on employment matters that include but not limited to 
discipline, hiring, retention, corrective action, dismissal and recruitment. This program accounts for 10% of 
the total City Manager Department Budget. 

 
4. Fiscal Responsibility: Regularly report to the City Council on the City’s financial standing, draft, present, 

implement and oversee an annual budget and capital improvement plan consistent with the City Charter 
and all applicable state and federal laws. Coordinate with Department Directors on compliance with 
performance budgets. This program accounts for 10% of the total City Manager Department Budget. 

 
5. Strategic Planning: Facilitate and coordinate with the City Council to formulate short and long term 

strategic goals. Implement these goals with staff. This program accounts for 5% of the total City Manager 
Department Budget. 

 
6. Coordination and Planning: Serve as the lead coordinator of Planning and Development functions as 

part of the executive structure of the City. This program accounts for 5% of the total City Manager 
Department Budget. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 3 
 

 

PROGRAM BUDGET 
 

 
 

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Operations (45%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries 1.35 91,327$    102,956$ 11,629$    12.73%
Contracted Services 315$          315$          -$               0.00%
Operations 15,865$    9,007$      (6,858)$    -43.23%
TIF Offset (12,375)$  (12,375)$  
General Fund -$             95,132$    99,903$    4,771$      5.02%

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Policy Implementation (25%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries .75 50,737$    57,198$    6,461$      12.73%
Contracted Services 175$          175$          -$               
Operations 8,814$      5,004$      (3,810)$    -43.23%
TIF Offset (7,425)$     (7,425)$    
General Fund -$             52,301$    54,952$    2,651$      5.07%

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Labor and Employee Relations (10%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries .3 20,295$    22,879$    2,584$      12.73%
Contracted Services 70$            70$            -$               0.00%
Operations 3,526$      2,001$      (1,525)$    -43.25%
General Fund -$             23,891$    24,950$    1,059$      4.43%

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Fiscal Resposibility (10%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries .3 20,295$    22,879$    2,584$      12.73%
Contracted Services 70$            50,070$    50,000$    71428.57%
Operations 3,525$      2,001$      (1,524)$    -43.23%
General Fund -$             23,890$    74,950$    51,060$    213.73%



 Page 4 
 

 
 

BUDGET DRIVERS 
 
 PS General – Increase $50,000, to allow City Manager to bid consultant services for help with 

Priority Based Budget complete implementation. 

 Special Events- $18,000 reduction  

 Training and Tuition- $2,500 for National League of Cities Convention in Washington D.C. and $200 
for ABA Monthly Meetings 

 TIF Offset: 

TIF Revenues offset City Manager budget by $24,750 based upon the City Manager coordinating and 
cooperating with staff and agencies 20% of overall duties. 

 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES  
 

• Provide Professional leadership and integrity in the operational and administrative 
functions of the City; so as to instill confidence within the community. 

• Develop complete, unbiased and timely information for the City Council to allow 
informed decisions in a transparent environment.  

• Coordinate and foster a positive work environment to ensure the highest level of 
performance from add departments and employees.  

• Institute procedures and structure to conform to the Charter to deliver fiscal stability 
to the City of Auburn and facilitate performance budgeting principles.  

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Strategic Planning (5%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries .15 10,147$    11,439$    1,292$      12.73%
Contracted Services 35$            35$            -$               
Operations 1,763$      1,001$      (762)$        -43.22%
TIF Offset (2,475)$     (2,475)$    
General Fund -$             9,470$      10,000$    530$          5.60%

 PROGRAM BUDGET - Coordination and Planning (5%)

Description FTE
FY 2013 
Actual

FY 2014 
Approved

FY 2015 
Proposed

Increase/
Decrease % Change

Salaries .15 10,147$    11,439$    1,292$      12.73%
Contracted Services 35$            35$            -$               
Operations 1,763$      1,001$      (762)$        -43.22%
TIF Offset (2,475)$     (2,475)$    
General Fund -$             9,470$      10,000$    530$          5.60%



 Page 5 
 

• Engage the community and citizens by informing them of policy decisions and 
operational functions to foster collaborative approaches in community planning and 
education.  

• 2013-2014 Council Directives to the City Manager from the Work Plan: 
 Create and implement a Community Economic Development Plan focused on 

Auburns  
 Assets 
 Develop a citizen engagement program to develop lines of communication 

with citizens. 
 Act on all necessary steps to a successful opening of a new arena.  
 Develop a program and implement a new Council Orientation Plan.  
 Improve communications and updates to Council on policies and projects.  
 Participate and assist during the Edward Little High School planning process. 
Addendums: 

 LA Community Forest Board Ordinance Review. 
 Downtown Auburn Transportation Center 
 Recreation/Fields Assessment 
 Recycling Review 
 Ward Redistricting 
 Joint meetings with Lewiston 
 Council tours of facilities/City 
 Charter review discussion 

  



 Page 6 
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

MEASURE 
Goal 

 
Actual  

FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
1. Attend all City Council meetings. City 

Manager has the right to take part in all 
discussions but shall not vote.  

100% Yes  

2. Prepare and submit by the first day of May 
the annual budget and capital program for 
the ensuing fiscal year and an 
accompanying message to the City Council 
and implement the final budget approved by 
the City Council to achieve the goals of the 
City.  

Prior to May 1st Yes Yes 

3. The City Manager and Superintendent of 
Schools shall jointly prepare and submit to a 
joint meeting of the City Council and School 
Committee a multi-year capital program no 
later than one (1) month before the final 
date for submission of the budget. 

Prior to April 1st Yes Yes 

4. Submit to the City Council and make 
available to the public a complete report on 
the finances and administrative activities of 
the City as of the end of each fiscal year. 
Audit and CAFR  

No later than Dec 
15th Yes N/A 

5. Assist the City Council to develop long term 
goals for the City and strategies to 
implement these goals.  

Annually January 
 

January 
 

 
 
 



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0110 City Manager  

 
Regular Salaries                            297,136 202,948 202,948 228,790 0 25,842 12.7%
PS ‐ General                                  1,851 700 800 50,700 0 50,000 7142.9%
Office Supplies                              766 700 685 700 0 0 0%
Comm ‐ Telephone                      1,395 1,680 1,680 1,680 0 0 0%
Special Events                               1,359 20,000 20,000 2,000 0 (18,000) ‐90%
Training & Tuition                        1,860 5,275 5,000 7,975 0 2,700 51%
Travel‐Mileage                              3,746 5,600 5,500 5,600 0 0 0%
Dues & Subscriptions                  1,762 2,000 2,000 2,060 0 60 3%

 
TOTAL 309,875       238,903 238,613      299,505        ‐                  60,602          25.4%

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:47 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    2



City of Auburn
City Manager

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Regular Salaries                       Total  235,783     228,790       ‐            
PS ‐ General                              Total  450            50,700         ‐            
Office Supplies                         Total  700            700              ‐            

Estimated Detail of Regular Salaries                                 

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Regular Salaries                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

City Manager (non‐union) 99,000$      
Assistant City Manager  (non‐union) 85,000$      
Executive Assistant (non‐union) 44,790$      

228,790$    ‐$           
TIF Offset  25% 24,750$     
Net Cost   204,040$   

Estimated Detail of PS - General                                               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

PS ‐ General                                
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Purchased Services 50,700$      
50,700$       ‐$           

Note: 25% of the City 
Manager's wages 
are paid for by TIF Revenues.  

Estimated Detail of Office Supplies                                            

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Office Supplies                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

General Office Supplies 700$           
 700$          -$           

Line Item Narrative    
Regular Wages:  This line item has decreased due to the transfer of the Economic Development Department being 
shown in a separate budget and 20% of the City Manager being funded by TIF revenue.

Purchased Services‐ General:  This line item includes printing, business lunches, training, etc.  The increase in this 
line Item is to fund a consultant to assist the City in immediate development of a  priority based budget.

Office Supplies: This account is used for general office supplies, signs, etc.  

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
City Manager

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Comm ‐ Telephone                    Total  1,974         1,680           ‐            
Special Events                           Total  20,000       2,000           ‐            

Estimated Detail of Comm - Telephone                                           

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Comm ‐ Telephone                    
Cost / Month

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

City Manager 70.00$        840$           
Assistant City Manager 70.00$        840$           

1,680$         ‐$           

Estimated Detail of Special Events                                    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Special Events                               
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Special Events  2,000$        
2,000$         ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    
Communications:  Cell phone usage and one replacement phone, if necessary.

Special Events:  This account funds for special events and supplies, such as Christmas tree lighting,  Holiday 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2

 

Communications:  Cell phone usage and one replacement phone, if necessary.

Special Events:  This account funds for special events and supplies, such as Christmas tree lighting,  Holiday 
Luncheon, plaques, etc.

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2



City of Auburn
City Manager

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Training & Tuition                      Total  5,275         7,975           ‐            
Travel‐Mileage                            Total  5,600         5,600           ‐            

Estimated Detail of Training & Tuition                                         

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Training & Tuition                        
 

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

ABA Monthly Meetings 200$           
Chamber Awards Dinner  100$           
Chamber Breakfast  275$           
ICMA Conference 3,000$        
National League of Cities 2,500$        
LAEGC Awards Dinner ‐ Staff Table & Awards Winners Table 200$           
MMA Convention 200$           
MTCMA Conference 1,000$        
Other Events 500$           

7,975$         ‐$           

Estimated Detail of Travel-Mileage                                             

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3

Travel‐Mileage                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

City Manager Vehicle Stipend per contract 4,800$        
Miscellaneous Department Mileage 800$           

5,600$         ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    

 

Training & Tuition:  This account funds the training needs for the City Manager's office. 

Travel & Mileage:  The City Manager's Employment Contract calls for a vehicle stipend of $400 per month. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3



City of Auburn
City Manager

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Dues & Subscriptions                Total  2,200         2,060           ‐            

Estimated Detail of Dues & Subscriptions                                       

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Dues & Subscriptions                  
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Auburn Business Association (ABA)  60$              ‐$           
ICMA Dues 1,600$        
Maine Biz  100$           
MTCMA Dues 300$           

2,060$         ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    

 

Dues & Subscriptions:  This account funds the dues for the City Manager, and Assistant City Manager. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    42/20/2014 ‐‐  2:48 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    4



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0110 County Tax  

 
County Tax 2,006,244 2,029,513 2,029,513 2,046,880 0 17,367 1%

 
TOTAL 2,006,244    2,029,513 2,029,513  2,046,880    ‐                  17,367          0.9%

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:45 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    32



City of Auburn
County Tax

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

County Tax   Total  2,029,513 2,046,880       ‐              

Estimated Detail of County Tax    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

County Tax
      Dept. Request

Manager 
Proposed

‐$                 ‐$             
‐$                 ‐$             

Line Item Narrative    
County Tax: 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:44 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    12/20/2014 ‐‐  2:44 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0320 Fringe Benefits  

 
Health Insurance                          2,418,389 2,468,124 2,465,840 0 (2,284) 0%
FICA/Medicare                              495,193 568,909 566,499 0 (2,410) 0%
MSRS Retirement                         746,431 733,643 967,803 0 234,160 32%
ICMA Retirement                         151,960 192,774 162,000 0 (30,774) ‐16%
City Pension                                  155,683 170,000 160,000 0 (10,000) ‐6%
Cafeteria Plan                               165,465 187,000 175,550 0 (11,450) ‐6%
Life Ins(Retirees)                          23,175 23,175 23,175 0 0 0%
Salary Reserves                             42,084 53,960 250,000 0 196,040 363%
Health Reimbursement Accoun 0 0 174,250 0 174,250 0%

 
TOTAL 4,198,380    4,397,585 ‐              4,945,117    ‐                  547,532         12.5%

 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:49 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    20



City of Auburn
Fringe Benefits

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Health Insurance                                          Total  2,468,124 2,465,840       ‐              
FICA/Medicare                                             Total  568,909     566,499           ‐              

Estimated Detail of Health Insurance                                

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Health Insurance                     Rate City Share
Employee 
Share

Health Ins. Waivers Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Non Union 304,596$    57,132$      361,728$        
MSEA 395,506$    33,552$      429,058$        
Police 416,087$    58,413$      474,500$        
Fire 480,337$    153,108$    633,445$        
Public Works 467,289$    44,820$      512,109$        
OMC Wellness Program 55,000$          
    2,465,840$     ‐$             

Rates ‐ PPO 500   85% 15%
Single 561$      477$            84$            
Employee/Child 916$      779$            137$            
Family 1,259$  1,070$         189$          

Estimated Detail of FICA/Medicare                                    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

FICA FICA OT Medicare
Medicare  Manager 

Note: The City's premium is based upon two 
pools; 50% our own pool, and the other 50% 
with all other Maine Municipal Association 
participants. Our premiums increased 2% for 

calendar year 2014. 

FICA/Medicare                                          FICA FICA OT Medicare
OT Dept. Request Proposed

Non Union 120,482$     31,971$     
MSEA 95,381$       12,000$      22,307$      6,000$       
Police ‐$            40,035$      12,000$     
Fire ‐$            40,391$      18,000$     
Public Works 110,687$     26,000$      24,245$      7,000$       

  326,550$     38,000$       158,949$     43,000$      
FICA Percentage 6.20% 364,550$        
Medicare Percentage 1.45% 201,949$        

  566,499$         ‐$             
Line Item Narrative    
Health Insurance: Our health provider is the Maine Municipal Association.  In order to participate, the City must be a 
participating member, hence the membership fee in the Mayor & Council Budget. Employees who participate in the 
Health Promotion Plan pay 15% of the monthly insurance premiums.  The City offers to pay a waiver to employees who 
opt out of the program in lieu of receiving a 3 month premium cashout.  There are about 187 out of about 226 
employees who participate. 

FICA/ Medicare: See Above.

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Fringe Benefits

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

MSRS Retirement                                      Total  733,643     967,803           ‐              
ICMA Retirement                     Total  192,774     162,000           ‐              

Estimated Detail of MSRS Retirement                                            

 Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

MSRS Retirement                       Debt MSRS OT & Other Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Non Union 110,105$    110,105$        
MSEA 68,806$      9,000$        77,806$          
Police 229,168$    30,000$      259,168$        
Fire 335,103$    55,000$      390,103$        
Public Works 39,527$      15,000$      54,527$          
Pension Obligation 126,094$    76,094$          

967,803$         ‐$             

Estimated Detail of ICMA Retirement                                            

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

ICMA Retirement                                          
Retirement Overtime Dept. Request

Manager 
Proposed

Non Union 51,500$      ‐$             
MSEA 39,500$     
Public Works 65,000$      6,000$       

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2

Employer Contribution 156,000$    6,000$        162,000$        
162,000$         ‐$             
 

Line Item Narrative    
MSRS: Maine State Retirement increased the employer's contribution from 6.5% to 7.3% for non‐public safety 
employees and 7.9% to 8.3% for public safety employees. 

ICMA Retirement:  Employee contributions are generally matched equally by the City.  This is in addition to Social 
Security.

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2



City of Auburn
Fringe Benefits

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

City Pension                                              Total  170,000     160,000           ‐              
Cafeteria Plan                                            Total  187,000     175,550           ‐              

Estimated Detail of City Pension                                               

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

City Pension                                                Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Participants  160,000$        
160,000$         ‐$             

Estimated Detail of Cafeteria Plan                                             

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Cafeteria Plan                                            Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Non Union 34,200$          
MSEA 37,600$          
Police 41,600$          
Fire 39,650$          
Public Works 22,500$          

175,550$         ‐$             
Line Item Narrative    
City Pension:  This is a pre‐existing retirement plan with 14 remaining participants.  Nine spouses are paid $1,200 per 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3

 

City Pension:  This is a pre‐existing retirement plan with 14 remaining participants.  Nine spouses are paid $1,200 per 
year for a total of $10,800.  Five employees are paid an average of $11,600 per month with an additional increase as 
paid to current employees.

Cafeteria Plan: The City contributes between $400 and $950 annually, depending upon the bargaining unit to a 
bonafide IRS Cafeteria Benefit Plan.  Employees contribute $150 through payroll deduction. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    3



City of Auburn
Fringe Benefits

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Life Ins(Retirees)                                        Total  23,175       23,175             ‐              
Salary Reserves                                           Total  53,960       250,000           ‐              
Health Reimbursement Account Total  ‐             174,250           ‐              

 
Estimated Detail of Life Ins(Retirees)                                         

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Life Ins(Retirees)                       Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

See Below. 23,175$          
23,175$           ‐$             

Estimated Detail of Salary Reserves                                            

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

    Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Salary Reserves                                           250,000$        
250,000$         ‐$             

Estimated Detail of Health Reimbursement Account   

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    4

    Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Health Reimbursement Account 174,250$        
174,250$         ‐$             

Line Item Narrative    
Life Insurance:  Life Insurance is the annual payment on a term policy purchased for retirees.  The final payment will be 
in FY 2014

Salary Reserves:  This line item is used to allow the City to cash out employees upon retirement or resignation.  It also 
funds the cost of what Cola or Performance allowance the City Council approves of and related benefit increases.

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    4



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0140 Legal Services  

 
PS‐Legal                                         46,460 100,000 35,200 85,000 0 (15,000) ‐15%

 
TOTAL 46,460         100,000 35,200        85,000          ‐                  (15,000)          ‐15.0%

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:50 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    8



City of Auburn
Legal

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

PS‐Legal                                        Total  100,000     85,000         ‐            

Estimated Detail of PS-Legal                                              

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

PS‐Legal                                     
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Legal Services 42,500$      
Legal Services‐Reserve Fund 42,500$      

85,000$       ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    
Legal:  Legal representation resulting from claims made upon the city is determined by the insurance companies. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1

 

Legal:  Legal representation resulting from claims made upon the city is determined by the insurance companies. 
When the City hires legal representation, it's largely based upon the type of legal representation required. For 
example, it may be land use, personnel, board of appeals, real estate, general, etc.  

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

          

0105 Mayor and Council

Regular Salaries                            16,600 16,600 16,600 16,600 0 0 0.0%
PS ‐ General                                  22,380 32,000 32,000 35,500 0 3,500 10.9%
Office Supplies                              495 0 0 500 0 500 0.0%
Travel‐Mileage                              0 200 200 200 0 0 0.0%
Dues & Subscriptions                  49,793 22,279 22,279 25,732 0 3,453 15.5%
Communication ‐ Tel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Joint Services                                0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

   
TOTAL 89,268         71,079 71,079        78,532          ‐                  7,453            10.5%

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:52 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    1



City of Auburn
Mayor & Council

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Regular Salaries                        Total  16,600       16,600         ‐            
PS ‐ General                               Total  32,000       35,500         ‐            
Office Supplies                          Total  ‐             500              ‐            

Estimated Detail of Regular Salaries                                 

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Regular Salaries                     
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Mayor 4,000$        
City Councilors  12,600$      
  16,600$       ‐$           

     
Estimated Detail of PS - General                                        

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

PS ‐ General                                
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Community Event Registation (LAEGC, Chamber, ABA) 2,000$        
Annual City Audit 26,500$      
Community/Employee Recognition 3,500$        
Council Dinners, Chamber Breakfasts, Water, etc.  3,500$        

35,500$       ‐$           

Estimated Detail of Office Supplies                                   

Wards 1‐5
Mayor

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1

pp
Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Office Supplies                           
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

General Office Supplies 500$            ‐$           
500$            ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    
Regular Salaries:  Established by Charter.

Purchases Services General: This account includes the cost of the annual audit and for the Mayor and Council to 
attend community events, give community and employee recognition, send flowers, cards, and certificates, etc.

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Mayor & Council

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

Travel‐Mileage                            Total  200            200              ‐            
Dues & Subscriptions                Total  22,279       25,732         ‐            
Joint Services                            Total  ‐             ‐               ‐            

 
Estimated Detail of Travel-Mileage                                    

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Travel‐Mileage                             
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Mileage Reimbursement for Mayor and Councilors 200$           
200$            ‐$           

Estimated Detail of Dues & Subscriptions                        

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Dues & Subscriptions                
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Maine Development Foundation 350$           
Maine Service Center Coalition 2,767$        
Mayor's Coaltition 1,000$        
Maine Municipal Association 21,615$      

25,732$       ‐$           

Estimated Detail of Joint Services                                     

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2

p y y g g g

Joint Services                                
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Public Safety Deparment Task Force ‐$             ‐$           
‐$             ‐$           

Line Item Narrative    
Travel & Mileage:  This account is used for mileage reimbursement. 

Dues & Subscriptions:  These organizations are support services to our City, whether it be transportation, business, 
lobbying, resources, training, or representation. 

Joint Services:  This account was used to fund the Public Safety Department Task Force Study. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:51 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2



City of Auburn
Master List

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Account Title
 FY 2013 
Actual 

FY 2014 
Approved

 FY 2014 
Projected 

 FY 2015 
Dept. 

Request 

FY 2015 
Manager 
Proposed

 Increase/ 
Decrease 

%

0315 Workers Compensation  

 
WC Operating Transfer               415,000 431,446 415,000 468,081 0 36,635 8%

 
TOTAL 415,000       431,446 415,000      468,081        ‐                  36,635          8.5%

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:52 PM FY15 Budget Summary Page    19



City of Auburn
Workers Compensation

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Proposed

WC Operating Transfer                            Total  431,446     468,081       ‐            

Estimated Detail of WC Operating Transfer                      

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

WC Operating Transfer                            
 

Dept. 
Request

Manager 
Proposed

Expenses
Salaries 32,396$      
Operating Supplies 300$           
Training and Tuition  200$           
Mileage 100$           
Purchased Services:
   Annual Actuarial 6,950$        
   Third Party Admin ‐ Willis 28,685$      
   Loss Control Services ‐ Willis 8,640$        
Dues and Subscriptions:
   State Admin Assessment for Self Insurance  25,000$      
   Fee to operate State W/C Board    3,410$        
   Renewal application fee  400$           
   State Supplemental Benefits Fund 4,000$        
Claims 300,000$    
Insurance    58,000$      
Capital Costs ‐$            

Total 468,081$    ‐$           

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:53 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1

Line Item Narrative    
Workers Compensation:  The City is self‐insured and therefore the management of this program must follow and be 
in accordance  with Maine State Title 39‐A.  According to 39‐A MRSA 154 (4), every self‐insured employer must pay 
an assessment on aggregate benefits paid, which is called the State Admin Assessment for Self Insurance.  Due to 
years of underfunding, the City of Auburn has a Workers Compensation deficit of $887,289.53, that has drawn on 
the City's Undesignated Fund Balance to create the necessary and statutory self‐insured reserve balance. 

2/20/2014 ‐‐  2:53 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Recreation Programs

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

  
 

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Recreation Programs                         
Revenues Expenses Variance

Youth Programs
Fishing Derby 1,550$        1,181$         369$          
Football (3rd‐6th grade) 8,050$        6,100$         1,950$       
Football Camp 525$           260$            265$          
Football (Flag, 1st‐2nd) 1,220$        782$            438$          
Football (7th‐8th) 5,200$        8,074$         (2,874)$      
Golf Lessons 540$           461$            79$            
Indoor Soccer 2,600$        2,277$         323$          
Lacrosse (1st‐2nd grade) 520$           361$            159$          
Lacrosse (3rd‐4th grade) 1,340$        1,400$         (60)$           
Lacrosse (5th‐6th grade) 2,340$        1,552$         788$          
Lacrosse (Middle school) 2,850$        1,992$         858$          
Soccer Camp (Spring) 1,165$        897$            268$          
Soccer Camp (Summer) 740$           570$            170$          
Soccer (Peewee) 2,500$        2,290$         210$          
Pillo Hockey 1,020$        325$            695$          
Recess Warriors 600$           132$            468$          
Softball Pitching 101 750$           515$            235$          
Running Club 380$           248$            132$          
Summer Camp 138,450$   104,830$    33,620$     
Spring Soccer 4,705$        4,080$         625$          

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

T‐Ball 1,820$        1,537$         283$          
Track and Field 10,950$      8,849$         2,101$       
Skills & Drills Basketball Camp 770$           235$            535$          
Pre‐K/K Instructional Basketball 675$           210$            465$          
Youth Basketball 12,500$      11,548$       952$          
Skating Instruction I 2,925$        3,420$         (495)$         
Skating Instruction II 4,470$        3,420$         1,050$       
Skating Instruction III 2,425$        3,420$         (995)$         

Youth Programs Subtotal 213,580$   170,966$    42,614$     

Adult Programs Revenues Expenses Variance
Dodgeball 1,200$        530$            670$          
Mens Basketball A League 6,200$        5,124$         1,076$       
Mens Basketball B League 6,525$        5,691$         834$          
Mens Basketball C League 4,350$        3,724$        
Co‐ed Softball 12,880$      8,046$         4,834$       
Men's Softball 25,600$      13,823$       11,777$     
Womens Basketball 5,800$         4,292$         1,508$        

Adult Programs Subtotal 62,555$      41,230$       21,325$     

2/20/2014 --  2:53 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Recreation Programs

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 3.18.2014

Revenues Expenses Variance
Special Events

Fright Fest 500$           500$            ‐$           
Hot Shot Competition ‐$            150$            (150)$         
Spring Celebration 400$           400$            ‐$           
Family Fun Day 600$           600$           
Wednesdays in the Park 2,250$        2,250$         ‐$           
Box Car Drive‐in Movie 250$           250$            ‐$           
Valentines Day 1,600$        780$            820$          
Holiday Celebration 1,300$        1,300$         ‐$           
Winter Festival 3,000$         3,000$         ‐$            

Special Event Subtotal 9,900$        9,230$         670$          

Grand Totals 286,035$    221,426$    64,609$      

Line Item Narrative

Projected Revenues and Expenses: Revenues are calculated by registration fees, concession sales, and 
sponsorships or donations. Expenses include equipment, day camp employees, coaching stipends, part time 
employees, shirts/jerseys, concession inventory, league fees, referees/umpires, awards,  prizes, school rental fees, 
and portable toilets.

2/20/2014 --  2:53 PM FY15 Municipal Budget Page    2



CITY OF AUBURN
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
As of June 30, 2014

(as of January 31, 2014)
1901 1902 1904 1905 1908 1909 1910 1911 1912 1913 1914 1915 1916 1917
Police Great Falls Winter Mt Kittyhawk Community Fire Prevention EMS Police Fitness Oak Hill Fire Training Ahrens Wellness

Outside Jobs Riverwatch School Festival Apatite Park Service Trailer Billing Equipment Cemeteries Building Fox Grant
Fund Balance 7/1/13 59,733.28$             1,119,140.60$  (273,443.56)$        5,320.98$            4,405.88$          599,895.98$       3,464.57$          4,544.65$             (5,115.91)$          5,960.03$        23,377.18$        2,257.69$                     42.83$             7,782.53$                   

Revenues FY14 38,269.40$        -$                        1,500.00$            -$                    -$                      (203.17)$            -$                       -$                  600.00$              -$                               -$                 4,068.62$                   

Expenditures FY14 20,000.00$             118,301.09$      1,500.00$            -$                    9,136.99$            282.90$              -$                      -$                  59.90$                           -$                 5,023.87$                   

Fund Balance 6/30/14 39,733.28$             1,039,108.91$  (273,443.56)$        5,320.98$            4,405.88$          590,758.99$       2,978.50$          4,544.65$             (5,115.91)$          5,960.03$        23,977.18$        2,197.79$                     42.83$             6,827.28$                   

1922 1924 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934 2000 2001
Walmart Lucy Insurance Fire 211 PW Police Fire 

Risk/Homeless Hood Reimbursement Vending Prevention Fairview Donations Surplus Vehicles Surplus City Donation
Fund Balance 7/1/13 3,361.04$               861.04$              (5,083.26)$             285.03$               6,094.56$          (566,303.71)$      4,409.06$          2,567.94$             (101,792.88)$      5,500.00$        (45,318.15)$       356.75$                         

Revenues FY14 5,115.05$               -$                    20,795.53$            433.48$               -$                    -$                      -$                    1.47$                     -$                      -$                  48.90$                -$                               

Expenditures FY14 4,368.27$               -$                    24,085.98$            (50.04)$                2,374.28$          -$                      970.68$              396.36$                 -$                      5,500.00$        -$                    -$                               

Fund Balance 6/30/14 4,107.82$               861.04$              (8,373.71)$             768.55$               3,720.28$          (566,303.71)$      3,438.38$          2,173.05$             (101,792.88)$      -$                  (45,269.25)$       356.75$                         

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2013 2014 2015 2017 2018
Byrne Seatbelt Homeland Thermal Imaging State Drug OUI Speed Juvenile Drug Free Substance

FEMA JAG ATRC MDOT PEACE Grant Security Camera Money Grant Grant Firesetter Commuities Abuse Prevention
Fund Balance 7/1/13 61,388.95$             (388.96)$            64,198.91$            (417,877.17)$      11,109.40$        1,107.00$            131,208.25$      8,721.94$             24,398.18$          9,937.78$        2,944.00$           2,192.94$                     1,763.82$        10,523.67$                 

Revenues FY14 -$                         19,421.79$        -$                        150,000.00$       -$                    -$                      241.43$              -$                       92,997.00$          4,739.97$        4,920.00$           -$                               5,975.00$        -$                             

Expenditures FY14 -$                         13,392.77$        -$                        1,273,980.91$    -$                    -$                      199,458.94$      250.00$                 19,191.43$          4,706.95$        3,304.00$           -$                               4,557.00$        -$                             

Fund Balance 6/30/14 61,388.95$             5,640.06$          64,198.91$            (1,541,858.08)$   11,109.40$        1,107.00$            (68,009.26)$       8,471.94$             98,203.75$          9,970.80$        4,560.00$          2,192.94$                     3,181.82$        10,523.67$                 

2019 2020 2021 2023 2025 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037
Law Enforcement Brownfield Evidence Community Weed & Domestic Holiday Safe School/ Enforcement Bulletproof

Training CDBG Grant Liquidation Cords Seed Violence Parking Grant HEAPP Health Underage Drinking ARRA COPSAP Vests
Fund Balance 7/1/13 12,051.36$             4,496,408.43$  (9,105.24)$             1,881.54$            25,473.77$        4,318.49$            352.53$              79,059.96$           3,009.00$            (1,782.50)$       (4,296.25)$         (10,076.38)$                  20,586.00$     32,151.86$                 (3,407.50)$                  

Revenues FY14 1,042.00$               275,851.24$      -$                        73.72$                 5,916.92$          -$                      -$                    66,631.07$           -$                      -$                  2,997.16$           3,112.50$                     -$                 -$                             7,929.18$                    

Expenditures FY14 11,006.45$             822,727.25$      -$                        -$                      7,113.20$          -$                      -$                    70,681.59$           -$                      1,218.00$        1,729.00$           1,036.00$                     -$                 -$                             -$                              

Fund Balance 6/30/14 2,086.91$               3,949,532.42$  (9,105.24)$             1,955.26$            24,277.49$        4,318.49$            352.53$              75,009.44$           3,009.00$            (3,000.50)$       (3,028.09)$         (7,999.88)$                    20,586.00$     32,151.86$                 4,521.68$                    

2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2201 2500 2501
Community Energy Grant Great Falls Blanche High Federal Drug Forest Joint Land Use American Tree Days Teen EDI Parks & Recreation
Action Team Energov TV Stevens Visibility Money Management Study FireFighters Grant Driver Safety Grant Recreation Donation

Fund Balance 7/1/13 2,117.66$               (1,723.94)$         133,574.16$          47,118.48$          3,528.71$          19,682.77$          4,865.15$          (59,068.41)$          -$                      -$                  -$                    -$                               257,087.43$   1,737.00$                   

Revenues FY14 16,778.50$             -$                    16,038.67$            3,460.00$            -$                    15,967.74$          -$                    41,080.00$           -$                      10,520.00$      -$                    -$                               90,790.11$     -$                             

Expenditures FY14 53,832.88$             -$                    75,411.34$            2,285.98$            -$                    23.95$                 -$                    18,764.30$           84,411.69$          10,095.90$      -$                    296,803.11$                 150,711.65$   -$                             

Fund Balance 6/30/14 (34,936.72)$            (1,723.94)$         74,201.49$            48,292.50$          3,528.71$          35,626.56$          4,865.15$          (36,752.71)$          (84,411.69)$        424.10$            -$                    (296,803.11)$               197,165.89$   1,737.00$                   

2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 Total
Tambrands J Enterprises Tambrands II J & A Properties Formed Fiber Mall Downtown Safe Handling Auburn Industria Auburn Plaza Auburn Plaza II Webster School Bedard Pharm Special

TIFS TIF 4 TIF 5 TIF 6 TIF 7 TIF 8 TIF 9 TIF 10 TIF 11 TIF 12 TIF 13 TIF 14 TIF 16 TIF 17 Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/13 (663,883.50)$          (21,612.42)$       3,928.48$              609,772.31$       (24,740.50)$      1,472.09$            1,140,114.02$  845,415.12$         7,151.46$            (239,837.35)$  388,355.96$      (466,387.50)$                360.36$           389.30$                      7,409,574.77$            

Revenues FY14 -$                         -$                    907,113.28$               

Expenditures FY14 281,104.11$      356,802.29$         -$                      124,281.26$    63,628.15$        510,852.15$                 13,647.44$     4,668,959.97$            

Fund Balance 6/30/14 (663,883.50)$         (21,612.42)$       3,928.48$              609,772.31$       (24,740.50)$      1,472.09$            859,009.91$      488,612.83$         7,151.46$            (364,118.61)$  324,727.81$      (977,239.65)$               (13,287.08)$    389.30$                      3,647,728.08$            



CITY OF AUBURN
RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE PROGRAMS
As of June 30, 2014

(as of January 31, 2014)
RA002 RA003 RA004 RA005 RA006 RA007 RA008 RA009 RA010 RA011 RA012 RA014 RA015 RA017 RA020 RA022 RA025

Auburn Municipal Outdoor Special Recess Spring Pee Wee Tee Summer Track Fishing Tennis Day MPS Soccer Football Pillo
Community Band Beach Education Events Warriors Running Soccer Ball & Field Derby Lacrosse Lessons Camp Camp Football Cheering Hockey

Fund Balance 7/1/13 4,186.34$                1,200.00$           432.90$                  3,736.74$          466.62$              1,514.70$          2,046.45$            2,706.86$           5,444.75$              2,462.81$            9,549.12$       468.54$           62,860.04$         (4,239.16)$       8,105.65$        2,780.86$          552.33$                

Revenues FY14 -$                          -$                     -$                         696.00$              -$                    -$                    2,370.91$            97.50$                1,914.91$              -$                      236.98$           -$                 15,418.85$         107.25$            11,759.23$      -$                    987.79$                

Expenditures FY14 50.00$                      -$                     -$                         712.54$              -$                    -$                    2,164.52$            -$                     5,800.55$              -$                      34.82$             -$                 71,618.01$         110.00$            16,026.94$      -$                    312.45$                

Fund Balance 6/30/14 4,136.34$                1,200.00$          432.90$                  3,720.20$          466.62$              1,514.70$          2,252.84$            2,804.36$          1,559.11$              2,462.81$            9,751.28$       468.54$          6,660.88$           (4,241.91)$       3,837.94$        2,780.86$          1,227.67$            

RA026 RA028 RA030 RA031 RA032 RA035 RA037 RA040 RA042 RA044 RA047 RA048 RA049 RA050 RA053 RA054 RA055 Total
Softball Youth Indoor Spring Golf Adult Adult Open Seniors Seniors Facility Mad Ticket Skating Special

Pitching 101 Basketball Lg Soccer Soccer Lessons Basketball Lg Softball Gym Meals Cribbage/Trips Excursions Vending Scholarships Rentals Science Sales Instruction Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/13 1,654.04$                25,959.52$        4,056.97$               (336.76)$             997.96$              42,098.70$        38,927.85$          1,201.30$           (2,106.06)$             2,191.95$            734.50$           8,841.65$       (2,702.19)$          38,447.63$       (225.00)$          (6,930.18)$         -$                    257,087.43$        

Revenues FY14 -$                          12,724.76$        1,844.91$               100.02$              398.46$              20,602.09$        285.23$                -$                     2,599.29$              185.25$                -$                 500.80$           10.00$                 4,507.00$         -$                  8,960.81$          4,482.07$          90,790.11$          

Expenditures FY14 629.06$                   9,075.89$           337.50$                  -$                    550.00$              12,271.93$        14,033.41$          120.00$              2,066.38$              139.54$                -$                 179.49$           1,495.00$           2,154.62$         -$                  10,459.00$        370.00$              150,711.65$        

Fund Balance 6/30/14 1,024.98$                29,608.39$        5,564.38$              (236.74)$            846.42$              50,428.86$        25,179.67$          1,081.30$          (1,573.15)$            2,237.66$            734.50$          9,162.96$       (4,187.19)$         40,800.01$      (225.00)$          (8,428.37)$         4,112.07$          197,165.89$        



Programs Budget  2015  
Norway Savings Bank Arena CITY OF AUBURN 

 

JM 02/11/2014  

DESCRIPTION: 
Norway Saving Bank Arena is an Enterprise Fund of the City of Auburn, Maine.  It operates 
financially as the Ice Arena Enterprise Fund dba Norway Savings Bank Arena, and is responsible 
for the coordination, direction and implementation of a profit center for the City of Auburn.  The 
General Manager of the Enterprise reports directly to the City Manager and oversees the 
operation, maintenance, fiscal oversight (specifically budget creation and capital improvements) 
and long range planning of the Enterprise. 
 
 
MISSION: 
The “Norway Savings Bank Arena” is designed to serve the Auburn Community and the region 
through opportunities for skating activities. The Arena shall provide exceptional, year round, 
affordable ice skating opportunities in a safe, healthy, community based skating environment.  
We shall provide for a comfortable, well designed, skating and events center that serves as a 
community gathering place: focused primarily on ice related recreational activities and its 
viewership. 

VISION/PURPOSE:  “Serving Our Community through Skating” 
In the spirit of community; through teamwork, safety, and sportsmanship, we shall seek a high 
quality level of programming and facilities to teach and support the sports of ice hockey, figure 
skating and other ice related activities for people of all ages. 

The Arena shall provide safe, stable and reliable recreational skating opportunities to area 
residents, with regularly scheduled recreational skating, shinny hockey and “stick & puck” time 
that is open to all.  
 
In addition to its commitment to the community, the arena shall support multiple local user 
groups including the Twin City Titans Youth Hockey Association, Maine Gladiators Youth 
Hockey, Edward Little High School Hockey, St. Dominics Academy Hockey, Poland-Gray/New 
Gloucester High School Hockey, Leavitt Area High School Hockey, Southern Maine Middle 
School Hockey League, and Community based recreational opportunities with multiple other 
local, regional and national user groups. Norway Savings Bank Arena shall operate as a year 
round facility.  Marketing, promotions and the scheduling of ice time and other programming 
shall be scheduled to maximize the directive of the mission statement, provide financial stability 
and provide a balance among the many regional skating and viewing interests.    The Arena shall 
strive to be the premier ice surfaces in the state and New England. 
 
 
  



Programs Budget  2015  
Norway Savings Bank Arena CITY OF AUBURN 

 

JM 02/11/2014  

PROGRAMS 

1. OPERATIONS:  

Oversight of all events, activities, and related programming of the Enterprise to ensure 
proper staffing, goals, objectives, and coordination for the operation of a multipurpose, 
multi-use ice skating facility.  Management of staff which includes a Director of 
Operations and Scheduling, Olympia Drivers and all part time staff. Coordinating the 
Activities include but are not limited to: scheduling of events, activities, negotiate, 
maintain and evaluate third party contracts for leased/contracted space.  Provide a clean, 
safe and friendly environment for patrons in accordance with all facility policies and 
procedures.  Operations consist of the bulk of staff time, preparing, maintaining and post 
event activities.  
 

2. FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION:   

Provide financial oversight and administration of all activities of the facility.  Together, 
the General Manager and the Administrative Assistant monitor budgets, accounts payable 
and receivable in conjunction with the municipal finance department to maintain the 
economic viability and fiscal responsibility of the Arena. Developing a budget and fee 
based structure that provides excellent services at a minimal cost. Reports consistently to 
City Manager and City Council financial budgeting quarterly, and cooperates monthly 
with financial health of the Enterprise in the monthly financial reports as presented by the 
Finance Department.  Consistently review the value of the long term economic impact on 
the facility on the community.   

 

3.  MARKETING AND ADVERTISING: 
 
The Marketing and Advertising within the facility is the responsibility of the General 
Manager with assistance from the Administrative Assistant.  By building and managing 
local, regional and national marketing and advertising partnerships, the GM is 
responsible for the overall economic viability and fiscal responsibility of the Arena. 
Annual advertising and marketing of these partnerships within the facility and for special 
events, activities the local and regional participation provide for unlimited exposure and 
additional resources for the facility.  Website development and promotion provide for 
electronic media growth and additional avenues for promoting the facility.  Through 
programming and development of tournaments, and other regional events and activities, 
the Arena works to serve as an Economic Development opportunity for the community; 
bringing people from outside of the region supporting local businesses and community as 
a whole. 
 
 



Programs Budget  2015  
Norway Savings Bank Arena CITY OF AUBURN 

 

JM 02/11/2014  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

• Provide a premier safe, affordable, entertainment experience for customers, participants 
and spectators. Instituting procedures and a culture to engage and welcome the 
community. 

• Develop an internal programming and rental base that provide consistent revenue stream 
to properly maintain the facility and grow economic opportunities in the region 

• Provide clean and quality services throughout the facility. 
• Build staffing levels to maximize efficiency and operation of the facility. 
• Operate 100% as an Enterprise Fund, using a budget model based on using zero community 

tax based revenue. 
• Develop a fee based structure that is commensurate to the operation, minimizing 

expenditures, maintaining a high quality delivery of services. 
• Monitor and coordinate Utility expenses to remain on budget 
• Maintain a positive social and electronic media interface to interact and communicate with 

our users, including updated website and point of sale. 
• Develop and implement a Marketing strategy for branding Arena activities, events and 

rental uses. 
 

  



Programs Budget  2015  
Norway Savings Bank Arena CITY OF AUBURN 

 

JM 02/11/2014  

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

PERFORMANCE 
MEASURES 

MEASURE GOALS FY 2013 FY 2014 
 

Achieve 100% Enterprise 
Sustainability 
 Develop financial budgets and policies intended 

on operating without municipal tax assistance, 
while maintaining fees commensurate to the 
operation/market demand. 

N/A 

 
 
 
 

Unknown 
 
 
 
 

 
Ice Commitments 
 

Maximize prime time ice rental, achieving 85-90% 
of all primetime ice rental filled, generating 
ice/facility rental income of $800,000 

N/A Monitoring 

 
Advertising Revenue 
 

 
To attain 95%-100% revenue renewal rate from 
advertising partnerships equivalent to or greater 
than $185,000 annually 

N/A At Least 
$188,350 

Utilities and Services Monitor and coordinate utility expenses to 
maintain a strong level of customer satisfaction, 
while remaining on budget. Finding new ways to 
reduce utility expenses. 

N/A N/A 

Tournament Play/ 
Economic Development 

Provide a minimum of 5 stay and play tournament 
opportunities, generating a minimum of $40,000 in 
annual income, and 350 hotel nights within the 
community. 

N/A Monitoring 

 

BUDGET DRIVERS 
 

1. Rent: The triple net lease with Slapshot LLC, ($528,408), represents 44% of the overall budget 
for the facility.  The largest financial commitment of the facility is a fixed expense and shall 
remain in place through the entirety of the lease agreement. 
 

2. Utilities:  Utilities are a function of operation and time.  Efforts are made to monitor and reduce 
utility costs, and are currently based upon projections of current use and trends.  Fluctuations in 
commodity pricing create vulnerability in the budget process and are a significant portion of the 
remaining 56% of budget expenditures. (17% or $209,146) 

 
3. Regular Salaries/ Additional Labor:  Staffing levels are maintained at a minimum to provide 

the level of service and maintenance to the facility.  Efforts are made to reduce overtime, 
maximize the skills of the staff, but consist of approximately 26% ($318.446) of the overall 
budget.  



Programs Budget  2015  
Norway Savings Bank Arena CITY OF AUBURN 

 

JM 02/11/2014  

 
 

 
 

 

 

PROGRAM BUDGET-Operations  

Full Time 
Equivalent 

4.5 
Budgeted  
FY 2014 

Actual  
FY 2014 

Budgeted 
FY 2015 

Revenue   $988,710 

Salaries    $155,199 

Contracted Services   $24,500 

Operations   $850,554 

PROGRAM BUDGET-Finance and Administration 

Full Time 
Equivalent 

1.05 
Budgeted  
FY 2014 

Actual  
FY 2014 

Budgeted 
FY 2015 

Revenue   $0 

Salaries    $63,922 

Contracted Services   $500 

Operations   $1000 

PROGRAM BUDGET-Marketing and Advertising 

Full Time 
Equivalent 

0.85 
Budgeted  
FY 2014 

Actual  
FY 2014 

Budgeted 
FY 2015 

Revenue   $237,225 

Salaries    $59,748 

Contracted Services   $13,500 

Operations   $2,844 



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Arena Summary

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 2.18.2014

  

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances
Norway Savings Bank Arena

FY14 FY15 Change Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Total Revenues   1,221,935$      
Total Expenses 1,208,500$      

Profit (Loss) ‐$                  13,435$              13,435$              ‐$                  ‐$            

Debt Service
Principal Interest Dept. Request

Manager 
Proposed

‐$               
‐$               

‐$                     ‐$                     ‐$                  ‐$            

Ingersoll Arena Revenue Summary
FY14 FY15 Change Dept. Request

Manager 
Proposed

Revenues  
Ice Rental Income 753,260$          
Sign Advertisements 233,225$          
Programs/Tournaments   172,450$          
Subleased Space 38,500$            
Events/Facility Rentals 24,500$            

‐$                    1,221,935$        ‐$                       ‐$                  ‐$            

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    1

Line Item Narrative    
Projected Revenues and Expenses: 

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    1



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Arena Summary

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 2.18.2014

  Last Dept. Manager
Line Items     Year Request Request

Norway Savings Bank Arena   Proposed Projected

Ingersoll Arena Expense Summary
FY14 FY15 Change Dept. Request

Manager 
Proposed

Expenses   
Full Time Employee (Salary and Fringe) 316,572.00$    $     277,446.00  (39,126)$            277,446$        
Part‐time Salaries 41,000.00$       41,000$             41,000$          
Insurance Premiums 7,500.00$      25,000.00$       17,500$             25,000$          
Rent Payment ‐$                528,408.00$     528,408$           528,408$        
Advertising 10,000.00$     12,000.00$       2,000$               12,000$          
Professional Services 2,500.00$      3,500.00$          1,000$               3,500$            
Utilities‐Total 209,146.00$    
Repairs ‐ Buildings 2,500.00$      5,000.00$          2,500$               5,000$            
Repairs ‐Vehicles 1,000.00$      1,500.00$          500$                  1,500$            
Repairs ‐ Equipment 5,000.00$      7,500.00$          2,500$               7,500$            
Repairs ‐ Maintenance Contracts 2,824.00$      3,500.00$          676$                  3,500$            
Training & Tuition 2,500.00$      2,500.00$          ‐$                     2,500$            
Travel ‐ Mileage Reimbursement 1,500.00$      1,000.00$          (500)$                 1,000$            
Travel ‐ Seminar Costs ‐$                ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$               
Subscriptions & Dues 2,850.00$      2,500.00$          (350)$                 2,500$            
Office Supplies 1,500.00$      1,500.00$          ‐$                     1,500$            
Other Supplies ‐ Operating 6,250.00$      5,000.00$          (1,250)$              5,000$            
Other Supplies ‐ Safety 250.00$         500.00$             250$                  500$               
Other Supplies ‐ Concessions 22,750.00$     ‐$                   (22,750)$            ‐$               
Other Supplies ‐ Pro Shop ‐$                ‐$                   ‐$                     ‐$               

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    2

Other Supplies   Pro Shop $                $                   $                     $               
Other Supplies ‐ Programs 500.00$         1,500.00$          1,000$               1,500$            

Capital ‐ General ‐$                25,000.00$       25,000$             25,000$          
Capital Blg Improv. ‐$                35,000.00$       35,000$             35,000$          
Capital ‐ Small Tools  ‐$                5,000.00$          5,000$               5,000$            

      Machinery and Equipment 15,000.00$     15,000.00$       ‐$                     15,000$          
400,996.00$ 1,208,500.00$  598,358.00$     999,354.00$  

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    2



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Arena Ice Revenu

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 1.10.2014

  

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances
Norway Savings Bank Arena FY14 FY15 Change

Ice Revenue Detail 964,210$  
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Ice Rental Income 753,260$   753,260$    
     Youth Hockey 387,750$  387,750$    

High School Teams 162,150$  162,150$    
L/A Seniors‐Adult 67,680$    67,680$       
Private Rentals 32,900$    32,900$       
Russeau Clinics 28,905$    28,905$       
Boston Kremes 22,560$    22,560$       
MHD Womens League/rentals 9,400$      9,400$         
Summer Camp Rentals 11,250$    11,250$       
Middle School Hockey League 10,575$    10,575$       

    Stride Envy 6,450$      6,450$         
Grahame Townsend 5,640$      5,640$         

    Pro Ambitions Sports Camp 4,000$      4,000$         
Youth Activities 4,000$      4,000$         

Programs/Tournaments 172,450$  172,450$    
     USA Hockey‐Festivals 7,050$      7,050$         
     USA Hockey‐ Regionals 6,110$      6,110$         
     Great Falls Shootout 90,240$    90,240$       
     Public Skate 32,500$    32,500$       

Shinny/Stick and Puck Hockey 18,500$    18,500$       

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    3

Shinny/Stick and Puck Hockey 18,500$    18,500$       
Skating Instruction 11,000$    11,000$       

    Birthday Parties 7,050$      7,050$         
‐$             

Subleased Rental Space 38,500$    38,500$       
Concession/Conference 30,000$    30,000$       

     Pro Shop 8,500$      8,500$         
‐$             

Events/Facility Rentals 24,500$       24,500$       
Graduation 7,000$         7,000$         
Dance Recital 3,500$         3,500$         
Room Rental 4,000$         4,000$         
Concert/Shows 10,000$       10,000$       
Line Item Narrative  -$             

Projected Revenues and Expenses: 

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    3



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Arena Addtl Rev

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 1.10.2014

  

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances
Norway Savings Bank Arena FY14 FY15 Change

Norway Savings Bank Arena Revenue Detail
Dept. 

Request
Manager 
Proposed

Advertising Revenue 174,275$       233,225$          
    Naming Rights ‐ Norway Savings Bank  50,000$         80,000$            
   Concessions License ‐ Pepsi 10,000$         5,000$              
    Concessions License ‐Tim Hortons 8,000$            10,000$            
    Corporate Marketing and Ad Space 106,275$       138,225$          

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    4

 

Projected Revenues and Expenses: 

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    4



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Arena HR

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 1.10.2014

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances
Norway Savings Bank Arena
Line Items   FY 14 FY 15 Last Year
Norway Savings Bank Arena     Proposed Projected Change Manager 
Human Resource Expenses $278,218  $277,446  ($772) Dept.  Proposed

Full Time Salaries: by Position
         General Manager 61,500$       62,500$       1,000$        
      Director of Operations 54,639$       54,639$       ‐$            

        Administrative 35,802$       35,802$       ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 24,907$       24,907$       ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 22,064$       22,064$       ‐$            
FICA (6.2%) by Position ‐$            

        General Manager 3,813$         3,875$         62$             
      Director of Operations 3,388$         3,388$         ‐$            

        Administrative 2,220$         2,220$         ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 1,544$         1,544$         ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 1,368$         1,368$         ‐$            
Medicare (1.45%) by Position ‐$            

         General Manager 892$             906$            15$             
      Director of Operations 792$             792$            ‐$            

        Administrative 519$             519$            ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 361$             361$            ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 320$             320$            ‐$            
Health Insurance Coverage by Position (individual selections) ‐$            

         General Manager (waived) 3,776$         3,776$         ‐$            
      Director of Operations 12,838$       12,838$       ‐$            

        Administrative 12,838$       12,838$       ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 5,724$         5,724$         ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 5,724$         5,724$         ‐$            
Cafeteria Plan by Position (individual selections) ‐$            

         General Manager 950$             950$            ‐$            
      Director of Operations 950$             950$            ‐$            

        Administrative 950$             950$            ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 950$             950$            ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 950$             950$            ‐$            
Retirement Plan by Position (individual selections) ‐$            

         General Manager MPERS 6.50% 3,998$         4,063$         65$             
      Director of Operations None 0% ‐$              ‐$             ‐$            

        Administrative 6.00% 2,148$         2,148$         ‐$            
        Maintenance Supervisor 6.50% 1,619$         1,619$         ‐$            
        Olympia Operator 6.50% 1,434$         1,434$         ‐$            

MSEA Uniform Allowance 1,050$         1,050$         ‐$             1,050$     
Overtime Salaries 7,176$         5,500$         (1,676)$       5,500$     
Overtime Benefits  14.15% 1,015$         778$            (237)$          

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    5



City of Auburn
Norway Savings Utilities

Fiscal Year 2015
Proposed 1.10.2014

  

Actual expenses may vary according to changing circumstances

Norway Savings Bank Arena
FY14 

Proposed
FY15 

Proposed

Norway Savings Bank Arena Expense Detail  $     224,615   $ 209,146  Change Dept. Request
Manager 
Proposed

Expenses     
Utilities ‐ Water & Sewer 12,000$        11,750$     (250)$        11,750$            
Utilities ‐ Electricity 156,000$      142,200$   (13,800)$  142,200$          
Utilities ‐ Natural Gas 46,115$        36,600$     (9,515)$    36,600$            
Utilites ‐ Propane  (AmeriGas) 9,000$          6,200$       (2,800)$    6,200$              
Utilities ‐ Security Monitoring  1,500$          1,500$       ‐$          1,500$              
Utilities ‐ Communications 8,596$       8,596$      8,596$              
Utilities ‐ Waste Disposal 2,300$       2,300$      2,300$              

Projected Revenues and Expenses for FY15

2/18/2014 --  4:07 PM Superior Services at an Affordable Cost FY12 Municipal Budget Page    6



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Authorize the City Manger to forward a letter of support for the initiation of a “Hotel (night) Train” 

service between Montreal & Boston which would pass through Auburn. 

 

 

Information: Androscoggin-Oxford-Coos Counties Passenger Rail Corridor Committee was formed to promote 

passenger railroad service through western Maine.  This committee has been approached by two private entities 

that wish to pursue the establishment of a service using the Canadian National and Saint Lawrence & Atlantic 

tracks between Montreal, Portland & Boston.  A gentleman named Francois Rebello has brought forward a plan 

for a “Hotel (night) Train”.  He is not asking for any funding and only has requested that communities along the 

rail corridor give letters of support for his concept. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion during the workshop. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

 

Attachments:  

Letter of support from Lewiston’s Mayor Macdonald 

Agenda request form signed by Councilors LaFontaine and Hayes 

Document - Wake Up On The Beach with the Train Hotel … 

Draft resolve 

Council Workshop Date:  March 17, 2014 Item  B 

Author:   Roland Miller 







Wake up on the beach
with the train hotel...



TABLE OF CONTENTS

A. THE PROJECT 
 Making time disappear............................................................................................................3
 Multiple routes ........................................................................................................................4
 Tickets ....................................................................................................................................5

B. THE MARKET 
 1st opportunity: travel market .................................................................................................6
 2nd opportunity: public transit .................................................................................................7
 3rd opportunity: train popularity ..............................................................................................8

C. THE TEAM .........................................................................................................................9

D. THE FINANCIAL PLAN 
 Maine Contribution/Benefi ts Analysis ...................................................................................10 

E. ANNEXES        

ble of Coble of Co
TABLE OF CONTENTS

ble of Co
TABLE OF CONTENTS



HOW TO MAKE 
TIME DISAPPEAR?

Take your time - eat - work - sleep - enjoy!

YOU CAN GO FASTER OR YOU CAN SLEEP…

DISAPPEARHOW TO MAKE DISAPPEARHOW TO MAKE 
TIME DISAPPEAR?

DISAPPEAR
TIME DISAPPEAR?

BOSTON 
9 AM

OLD 
ORCHARD 

7 AM

MONTREAL
6 PM

“With high-speed rail out of the picture for the foreseeable future a new overnight train modeled on 
successful sleeping car services overseas is the next best option to improve international travel.”

— Benjamin Turon, Espa’s November-December Newsletter

NEW 
YORK 
9 AM

3



Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Coaticook

Windsor

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington
Richmond

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Coaticook

Windsor

Richmond

Island Pond

Gorham

Island Pond

Gorham

MULTIPLE ROUTESROUTESMULTIPLE ROUTESROUTESMULTIPLE ROUTES

New York route 1

New York route 2

New York route 3

Boston route 

Right of way without tracks

The right of Amtrak to access any railroad in exchange 
for compensation was confi rmed by the Supreme Court. 

Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont

Farnham

Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin

Bethel

Auburn

Portland

Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Saint-HyacintheSaint-Hyacinthe

Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont

MagogMagog

SherbrookeSherbrooke

Richmond

SherbrookeCoaticook
Farnham

Sutton

Newport
Island PondRichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin

Gorham
Bethel

Auburn

Portland

Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Richmond

Acton Vale WindsorWindsorActon Vale

Island Pond

Gorham

4



TICKETSTICKETSTICKETSICKETSTICKETS

$410

$300

$200 $180 $180

Air

Train

Couchette Coach Early bird
mid-week

coach

Bus

TICKETS: DIFFERENT PRICES FOR DIFFERENT CLASSES

SLEEPER CAR: 

10 individual and 6 double bedrooms

5



1ST OPPORTUNITYMARKET1MARKET1STMARKETST OPPORTUNITYMARKET OPPORTUNITY

TRAVEL 
MARKET

Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Rutland

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

White
River

Junction

Berlin
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Quebec

Maine
Vermont

Massachusetts

New York

New
Hampshire

Quebec Visitors to US

Northeast US visitors 
to Montreal

Tourists from France

1.1M visitors

$500M expenditures

300,000 visitors

700,000 visitors

$156M expenditures

600,000 visitors

328,000 visitors

$45M expenditures
58,000 visitors

$27M expenditures

310,000 visitors

$45M expenditures

310,000 visitors

$45M expenditures

6



2ND OPPORTUNITYPUBLIC  2PUBLIC  2NDPUBLIC  ND OPPORTUNITYPUBLIC   OPPORTUNITY

PUBLIC TRANSIT

35%

55%

35%

55%

Montreal Public Transit 
Market Share

+ 10%
2003-2008

+ 8%
2000-2010

New York Public Transit 
Market Share

Young Adults 
with Driver’s License

Top tier public transit clients with income

over $ 75,000 / year 

= 20%

7

1983
87%

2001
70%



TRAIN POPULARITY

3RD OPPORTUNITYPOPULAR3POPULAR3RDPOPULARRD OPPORTUNITYPOPULAR OPPORTUNITY

Rutland

White
River

Junction

Coaticook

Windsor

Richmond

Rutland

White
River

Junction

Coaticook

Windsor

Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

Berlin
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Saint-Hyacinthe
Montréal

St-Jean-sur-Richelieu
Bromont Sherbrooke

Farnham
Sutton

Newport
RichfordRouses Pont

Plattsburgh St-Albans

Burlington

Montpelier

I sland Pond

Concord

Manchester

Albany
Pittsfield

BostonWorcester

Springfield

ProvidenceHartford

New London
New Haven

New York

Berlin

G orham
Bethel

Auburn

Portland
Old Orchard

Portsmouth

Richmond

Island Pond

Gorham

Train: 54%
AMTRAK profi t: $20 / passenger

Train: 0%
Bus: 15%
Air: 19%
Auto: 66%Train: 1%

Bus: 5%
Air: 15%
Auto: 77%

Flying Phobia: 15%

Flying Anxiety: 30%

(Jonathan Bicker, Washington University)

Singles: 40% of the population

ACTUALLY

15% 
travel alone

45% 
romantic travel

Increasing Value of Quality Sleep

in-fl ight bedding on-train bedding

8



THE TEAMTHE TEAMTHE TEAMTHE TEAMTHE TEAM
Francois Rebello is a well-known entrepreneur and politician from Montreal, Quebec. From 2008 to 2012 he was elected as a 
member of the National Assembly of Quebec, representing the riding of La Prairie on the South shore of Montreal. As a member 
of Parliament, Rebello was active in the Council of State Government (CSG) where he had the opportunity to build close ties with 
a number of US states representatives and senators. He was particularly involved in the Transportation Commission promoting 
passenger rail in North America.

Prior to entering provincial politics, Rebello worked as an economist and founded Groupe Investissement Responsable in 2000, a 
company offering services for assessing the ethics of companies as well as the management of voting rights connected to shares 
held in the portfolios of many institutional investors. He sold his controlling position in 2007.

He was also a columnist for the monthly business magazine Commerce and fi nalist in the columnist category in the 2007 Grands 
Prix competition held by the Association québécoise des éditeurs de magazines, a magazine publishers’ association.

Rebello is a graduate of the Université de Montréal. He holds a bachelor’s degree in political sciences and a master’s degree in 
economic sciences. He was elected as President of the Quebec Federation of University Students, from 1994 to 1996. He also 
founded the group Force Jeunesse, where he strongly defended youth issues and causes.

Francois Rebello

9

From 2006 to 2010, Richard A. Bennett served as President and CEO of The Corporate Library, one of the three businesses that 
merged to form GMI Ratings in 2010. Mr. Bennett has an extensive background in politics and government service as well as a 
wide range of private sector experience. He worked as Director of Corporate Governance for Lens Investment Management from 
1997 to 2002.

He is an independent director of Biddeford Internet Corporation and a non-executive director of Trucost, Plc, a U.K.-based fi rm 
offering products and services that allow companies, governments and fund managers to better understand their environmental 
performance. A former president of the Maine State Senate, Mr. Bennett served four terms in the Maine Senate and two terms in 
the state’s House of Representatives. Since 2009, he has served on the Board of Governors of the International Corporate Gov-
ernance Network.

Mr. Bennett has been written about in Pensions & Investments, The Daily Deal and Barron’s, and has been cited in numerous 
publications including BusinessWeek, USA Today, Fortune and The Wall Street Journal. In each year since 2008, he has been 
recognized by Directorship magazine in its list of the 100 “most infl uential people in corporate governance and the boardroom.” 
In December 2010 he was named by Global Proxy Watch as one of the “10 people around the world who had the most impact on 
corporate governance in the previous year”. Mr. Bennett has spoken about corporate governance issues at the U.S. Securities 
and Exchange Commission, Columbia University, the USC Marshall School of Business and The Conference Board, among other 
institutions. He serves on the Advisory Board of the John L. Weinberg Center for Corporate Governance at the University of Dela-
ware. He is a member of the board of trustees of Hebron Academy. He was a member of the President’s Commission on White 
House Fellowships from 2005 to 2009. He graduated with honors from Harvard College in 1986 and received his M.B.A. from the 
University of Southern Maine in 2000.

Richard Bennett



MAINE CONTRIBUTION/BENEFITS ANALYSISBENEFITMAINE CONTRIBUTION/BENEFITS ANALYSISBENEFITMAINE CONTRIBUTION/BENEFITS ANALYSIS

CONTRIBUTION: 

Agreement with 
NNEPRA, SLA and Pan Am

BENEFITS:

Sales tax: +357,000$
4,000 passengers 

(80% occ. rate, 1,000$ avr. spending)

10



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE 04-03172014 

 
RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to draft and send a letter of support for the establishment of a 

Hotel Train service that would pass through Auburn. 
      



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: PAL Center building Lease Agreement at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Information: City Council requested a formal Lease Agreement be executed between the City of Auburn and 

the Auburn PAL for building use at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Financial: n/a 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Authorization from City Council to City Manager to execute a Lease 

Agreement for the PAL Center building at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:    

July 30, 2010 – City Manager Weekly Review – Item 5, PAL concept introduced 

August 2, 2010 – Workshop - best use of 24 Chestnut Street 

August 2, 2010 – Council Meeting – authorizing use of 24 and 31 Chestnut Street 

July 1, 2011 – CDBG approved grant to renovate property at 24 Chestnut Street 

 

 

Attachments:  

 PAL Center Lease Agreement at 24 Chestnut Street 

 July 30, 2010 – City Manager Weekly Review – Item 5, PAL concept introduced 

 August 2, 2010 – Workshop – best use of 24 Chestnut Street / Council Meeting – authorizing use of 24 

and 31 Chestnut Street 

 July 1, 2011 – CDBG approved grant to renovate property at 24 Chestnut Street 

Council Workshop Date:  March 17, 2014 Item  C 

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 













































Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 24-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the lease agreement for the PAL Center 

building at 24 Chestnut Street, Auburn, ME. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Temporary Sign Placement for Safe Voices Walk/Run to End Domestic Violence 

 

Information: Safe Voices will be holding the Walk/Run to End Domestic Violence on Sunday, June 1, 2014 at 

Simard-Payne Police Memorial Park in Lewiston. They are requesting permission to place temporary signs in 

Auburn approximately two weeks before the event and will remove them the afternoon of the event (June 1, 

2014). 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly request from this organization 

 

Attachments:  

Letter of request 

Order 20-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  20-03172014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire  







Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 20-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes Safe Voices to place temporary signs for its 2014 Walk/Run 

to End Domestic Violence to be held on Sunday, June 1, 2014 at the locations listed below so long as their 

placement does not affect sight distance for streets or adjacent driveways. 

 

• Corner of Minot Ave. and Hotel Rd. 

• Corner of Court St. and Minot Ave. 

• Corner of Academy and Main St. 

• Corner of Court St. and Union St. 

• Corner of Court St. and Mount Auburn Ave. 

• Corner of Turner St. and Mount Auburn Ave. 

• Corner of Turner St. and Center St. 

• Overpass entrance and exit from Center St. 

• Auburn Turnpike exit onto Washington Ave. 

• Rotary Way (Island) 

 

The signs are to be placed approximately two weeks prior to the event and removed the afternoon of the event. 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Temporary Sign Placement for the Kora Shrine Circus 

 

Information: The Kora Shrine Committee is requesting permission to place temporary signs in Auburn for their 

2014 Kora Shrine Circus. They would like to place the signs approximately 10-14 days before the event and 

will remove them upon completion of the circus. The event will take place April 18
th

 and 19
th

 at the Colisee in 

Lewiston. 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly request from this organization 

 

Attachments:  

Letter of request 

Order 21-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  21-03172014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire  





Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 21-031720147 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the Kora Shrine Committee to place temporary signs for 

their 2014 Kora Shrine Circus which takes place April 18 and 19, 2014 so long as their placement does not 

affect sight distance for streets or adjacent driveways. The signs will be placed approximately 10-14 days before 

the event and will be removed upon completion of the event. Placement of the signs will be as follows; 

 

Court and Minot Ave – 2 signs 

Center St and N. River Road – 1 sign, northbound 

Center St and Mall – K Mart entrance - 2 signs, north and south 

Turner Street Entrance to Walmart – 1 sign 

Turner St and Mount Auburn Ave – 3 signs 

Court St and Park Ave - 1 (two sided) sign 

Minot Ave and Poland Rd out – 1 sign 

Minot Ave and Hotel Rd intown – 1 sign 

Washington St at Turnpike – 1 sign 

Washington St at Rotary northbound – 1 sign 

Broad St going across bridge - 1 (two sided) sign 

Broad St – So Main - 1 (two sided) sign 

Upper Cook St and So. Main – 1 sign 

Riverside Dr – 1 sign 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Temporary Sign Placement for the Auburn Business Association for the Auburn Citizen of the Year 

signs. 

 

Information: The Auburn Business Association would like to request approval to place 3 temporary signs at 

the locations stated in the attached letter. Signs will be installed April 1, 2014, one month before the event and 

will be removed by May 8, 2014, one week after the event. 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly request from this organization 

 

Attachments:  

Letter of request 

Template of sign 

Order 22-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  22-03172014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire  







Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 22-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby authorizes the Auburn Business Association to place 3 temporary signs 

to promote the Auburn Citizen of the Year Event to be held on May 1, 2014. The signs are to be installed at 

Norway Savings Bank, 31 Court Street, Better Homes and Gardens, The Masiello Group, Center Street, and the 

Androscoggin Bank, 683 Minot Avenue so long as their placement does not affect sight distance for streets or 

adjacent driveways. The signs will be installed on April 1, 2014 and removed by May 8, 2014. 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Change in Maine Public Employees Retirement Plan for the Fire Department Employees 

 

Information: On January 21, 2014 the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute the Collective 

Bargaining Agreement with I.A.F.F.  (International Association of Firefighters) Local 797.  The contract is 

effective 7/1/13 through 6/30/16. The contract includes a provision for a change from the current 2C Plan (25 

year/50% pension/no minimum age plan) to the 3C Plan (25 year/66%/no minimum age) effective 7/1/14 for all 

firefighters with less than 25 years of service. In order to implement the plan, MePERS (the Maine Public 

Employees Retirement System) requires the adoption of the new plan by Council vote.  

 

Financial: The cost of the new program is $86,000, however these costs are offset by savings in the health 

insurance and staffing.  This contract is sustainable with respect to wages and benefits.  

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: The City Manager recommends passage. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: The Firefighter contract was discussed in previous Executive Sessions and 

was approved at the regular Council meeting of 1/21/14. 

 

 

Attachments:  

Order 23-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  23-03172014 

Author:   Deborah Grimmig, Human Resources Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 23-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the new retirement plan that was approved as part of the 

collective bargaining agreement which includes a provision to change from the current 2C Plan (25 year/50% 

pension/no minimum age plan) to the 3C Plan (25 year/66%/no minimum age) effective 7/1/14 for all 

firefighters with less than 25 years of service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









City of Auburn, Maine 
___________________________      ______ 

Office of the City Manager 
 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Council  

FROM: Frank Roma, Fire Chief 

RE:   Update on EMS Resolve & Discussions with UAS, CMMC and St. Mary’s  

  Hospital 

DATE: March 7, 2014 

 

Since bringing forth a resolve to Council on August 16, 2013, on the development of a full service 
EMS transport plan here is a summation of where we are to date; 
 

 Resolve # 04-06032013 is brought before and accepted by Council on 8-16-13 for the 
development of an operational plan for the Auburn Fire department to provide full service 
EMS emergency/911 transport service. 

 October 7, 2013 a report outlining options to meet the direction Resolve # 04-06032013 is 
presented to Council. The AFD is asked to engage UAS, CMMC and St.Mary’s in 
discussions to see if there are opportunities for partnerships. 

 Since that time, we have had numerous meetings with UAS, CMMC and St.Mary’s that have 
included the CEOs of the hospitals, the CEO of UAS, the City Manager, the Mayor and the 
Chief and Deputy Chief of the AFD. 

 We have asked UAS for financial data so that we might compare costs and revenues in an 
apples to apples manner. These revenues have not been made available or are not able to be 
calculated by UAS. 

 We have asked UAS for specific costs to provide two 911 dedicated response ambulances to 
the city of Auburn. We have not received this information. 

 We have recently worked up a list of five service delivery options to bring before the larger 
body of the CEOs of the hospitals, UAS, the City Manager, Mayor, Chief and Deputy Chief 
of the AFD for discussion. 

 It is my belief, that after this next meeting, as yet to be scheduled, we will be ready to come 
back to Council to discuss this odyssey and provide our recommendations for consideration. 

 This process has taken much longer then I would have liked due to the AFD being directed 
to engage in a process that while having been interesting and educational, has taken us off 
line from what our initial stated objectives were and direction was from Resolve # 04-
06032013. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
City Manager Department 

 
 
Date:  13 March 2014 
 
To:  Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
 
From:  Howard Kroll, Assistant City Manager 
 
RE:  Assessing Department Review 
 
Clint: 
 
You tasked me with reviewing Assessing Department structure in municipalities across Maine and New 
England.  
 
I have communicated with Peter Crichton, County Administrator- Cumberland County Administrator and 
John O’Donnell, CEO of John O’Donnell & Associates. Both are well versed in Assessing practices both in 
the public and private sector. 
 
Cumberland County has created a County Assessor position that is currently under contract with the 
Towns of Yarmouth, Cumberland and on 1 July 2014 the Town of Falmouth.  
 
Mr. Crichton spoke to me about the length of time this project has been discussed and the recruitment 
process of selecting a qualified candidate. He also confirmed that each community has seen a decrease in 
customer service and will not see any significant savings as they are looking for stability and a leader in the 
assessing industry. Also to note was that each community provides full time staff at their town office for 
customer service and clerical support for the Assessor.  
 
Most of the state of Maine is made up of communities whose population is less than 2000. With the 
exception of a few that have full time assessors most have assessing agents or a contracted assessor.  
 
One of the most respected Assessing Professionals in Maine has a firm in New Gloucester. Mr. John 
O’Donnell spoke with me regarding what his firm provides to his many clients. Currently he is the 
Assessing Agent/Contracted Assessor in nearly 30 communities; most within a 50 mile radius of Auburn. It 
should be noted that he currently assists our Assessing Department with personal property appraisals.  
 
In New England I was able to compare municipalities of similar population and valuation. During this review 
I discovered a few communities in New Hampshire, Merrimack and Dover, that contract out the Assessor 
and appraiser positions to qualified Appraisal firms.  
 
There are options the City should explore for long term assessing needs. I think further discussion with 
Assessing professionals, both private and public, should take place to further evaluate the department’s 
efficiency and cost.  
 
I look forward to your direction regarding this endeavor. Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thank you.  



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    February 2014 Financial Report 

DATE:  March 17, 2014 
 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s February financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 

The City has completed its eighth month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking 
purposes, revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 66.7% of the annual budget.  
However, not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items 
can vary based upon cyclical activity.    
 

Revenues 
 

Revenues collected through February 28th, including the school department were $45,554,376, or 
62.92%, of the budget. The municipal revenues including property taxes were $33,197,576, or 63.54% 
of the budget which is more than the same period last year by 0.69%. The accounts listed below are 
noteworthy. 

 

A. The current year tax revenue is at 62.2% higher than last year by 0.68%.  
 

B. Excise tax through the month of February is at 70.38%. This is a $157,376 increase from 
FY 13. Our excise revenues for FY14 are 3.71% above projections as of February 28, 
2014.  

 

C. State Revenue Sharing at the end of February is 68.74% or $1,133,903. This is 31.7% 
decrease this year from last February. 
 

D. Licenses and Permits are behind last year at this time, but still within budget 
projections.  

 



 2 

 
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through February 2014 were $27,642,376 or 76.49%, of the budget. This is 4.13% 
more than the same period last year. Noteworthy variances are: 
 

A. Debt Service is higher than last year since the March 1st interest payments were posted in 
February this year since March 1st was a Saturday. 

B. The transfer to Worker’s Compensation was made in February and last year it was made later. 
C.  

 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of February 28th.  Currently the City’s funds are 
earning an average interest rate of .22%. 
 
 
 
         
        Respectfully submitted, 

        
          

Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED
Feb 28 Jan 31 Increase JUNE 30
2014 2014 (Decrease) 2013

ASSETS

CASH 7,446,791$           8,110,464$         (663,673)$             11,268,551$       
RECEIVABLES -                        
  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 704,864                761,606              (56,742)                 1,178,345           
  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 15,758,033           18,437,902         (2,679,869)            89,723                
  DELINQUENT TAXES 546,160                546,197              (37)                        543,772              
  TAX LIENS 594,559                612,253              (17,694)                 1,267,670           
  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 5,220,326             5,352,562           (132,235)               1,602,354           

 
TOTAL ASSETS 30,270,734$         33,820,984$       (3,550,249)$          15,950,415$       

 
 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (238,647)$             (230,826)$           (7,821)$                 (536,867)$           
PAYROLL LIABILITIES (9,432)                   20,123                (29,555)                 (93,082)               
ACCRUED PAYROLL (4,655)                   (4,655)                 -                        (1,066,178)          
STATE FEES PAYABLE (34,369)                 (47,539)               13,170                  -                      
ESCROWED AMOUNTS (41,865)                 (41,865)               -                        (41,865)               
DEFERRED REVENUE (16,771,884)          (19,469,483)        2,697,599             (1,832,681)          

 
     TOTAL LIABILITIES (17,100,852)$        (19,774,246)$      2,673,394$           (3,570,673)$        

 
FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (12,304,050)$        (13,180,905)$      876,856$              (8,775,150)$        
FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  
     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 1,001,137             1,001,137           -                        (2,450,020)          

FUND BALANCE - ASSIGNED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          -                        (1,154,572)          
 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (13,169,882)$        (14,046,738)$      876,856$              (12,379,742)$      
 

  
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (30,270,734)$        (33,820,984)$      3,550,249$           (15,950,415)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of February 2014, January 2014, and June 2013 (audited)



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH February 28, 2014 VS February 28, 2013 

ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2014 REVENUES % OF FY 2013 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU FEB 2014 BUDGET BUDGET THRU FEB 2013 BUDGET VARIANCE
TAXES
  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 42,844,641$           26,650,707$      62.20% 42,121,141$     25,912,797$      61.52% 737,910$          
  PRIOR YEAR REVENUE -$                        734,906$            -$                 813,757  (78,851)$          
  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 482,575$                371,573$           77.00% 514,584$          377,311$           73.32% (5,738)$            
  ALLOWANCE FOR ABATEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE TAXES -$                        -$                    -$                 -$                        -$                 
  EXCISE 3,068,500$             2,159,464$        70.38% 3,018,500$       2,002,088$        66.33% 157,376$          
  PENALTIES & INTEREST 140,000$                79,482$             56.77% 140,000$          95,206$             68.00% (15,724)$          

     TOTAL TAXES 46,535,716$           29,996,133$      64.46% 45,794,225$     29,201,159$      63.77% 794,974$          
  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   
  BUSINESS 47,300$                  40,364$             85.34% 39,900$            42,740$             107.12% (2,376)$            
  NON-BUSINESS 338,300$                246,040$           72.73% 260,700$          258,210$           99.04% (12,170)$          

     TOTAL LICENSES 385,600$                286,404$           74.27% 300,600$          300,950$           100.12% (14,546)$          
  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   
  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 440,000$                473,451$           107.60% 378,000$          342,034$           90.49% 131,417$          
  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,649,470$             1,133,903$        68.74% 2,400,000$       1,660,287$        69.18% (526,384)$        
  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 53,000$                  35,827$             67.60% 53,083$            43,843$             82.59% (8,016)$            
  OTHER STATE AID 22,000$                  3,025$               13.75% 21,000$            20,742$             98.77% (17,717)$          
  CITY OF LEWISTON 155,000$                -$                   0.00% 158,362$          -$                       0.00% -$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,319,470$             1,646,207$        70.97% 3,010,445$       2,066,906$        68.66% (420,699)$        

  
CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 140,240$                87,805$             62.61% 130,955$          100,752$           76.94% (12,947)$          
  PUBLIC SAFETY 366,152$                208,977$           57.07% 263,102$          88,848$             33.77% 120,129$          
  EMS AGREEMENT 100,000$                66,667$             66.67% 100,000$          58,333$             58.33% 8,334$              

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 606,392$                363,448$           59.94% 494,057$          247,933$           50.18% 115,515$          
  

FINES   
  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 40,000$                  18,270$             45.67% 45,000$            19,787$             43.97% (1,517)$            

   
MISCELLANEOUS    
  INVESTMENT INCOME 20,000$                  1,367$               6.83% 30,000$            13,797$             45.99% (12,430)$          
  INTEREST-BOND PROCEEDS 2,000$                    -$                   0.00% 2,000$              -$                       0.00% -$                 
  RENTS 122,000$                -$                   0.00% 122,000$          122,027$           100.02% (122,027)$        
  UNCLASSIFIED 17,500$                  97,583$             557.62% 5,150$              44,678$             867.53% 52,905$            
  SALE OF RECYCLABLES 4,800$                    -$                   0.00% -$                 -$                        -$                 
  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        30,935$              -$                 32,038$              (1,103)$            
  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  64,564$             322.82% 20,000$            16,694$             83.47% 47,870$            
  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA -$                        -$                    43,275$            -$                       0.00% -$                 
  MMWAC HOST FEES 204,000$                137,195$           67.25% 197,400$          134,604$           68.19% 2,591$              
  9-1-1 DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT -$                        -$                    -$                 (20)$                   0.00% 20$                   
  TRANSFER IN: TIF 520,000$                520,000$           100.00% 324,212$          324,212$           100.00% 195,788$          
  ENERGY EFFICIENCY 2,000$                    279$                  13.96% 2,000$              1,233$               61.65% (954)$               
  CDBG 58,000$                  20,443$             35.25% 8,000$              1,334$               16.68% 19,109$            
  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 37,500$                  14,748$             39.33% 37,500$            20,121$             53.66% (5,373)$            
  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 1,350,000$             -$                   0.00% 1,350,000$       -$                       0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,357,800$             887,114$           37.62% 2,141,537$       710,718$           33.19% 176,396$          
-$                       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 52,244,978$           33,197,576$      63.54% 51,785,864$     32,547,453$      62.85% 650,123$          

SCHOOL REVENUES
  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 17,942,071$           12,031,236$      67.06% 17,942,071$     12,879,973$      71.79% (848,737)$        
  EDUCATION 1,358,724$             325,564$           23.96% 1,358,724$       476,895$           35.10% (151,331)$        
  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 855,251$                -$                   0.00% 855,251$          -$                       0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 20,156,046$           12,356,801$      61.31% 20,156,046$     13,356,868$      66.27% (1,000,067)$     

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 72,401,024$           45,554,376$      62.92% 71,941,910$     45,904,321$      63.81% (349,945)$        

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  
FY 2014 EXP % OF FY 2013 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU FEB 2014 BUDGET BUDGET THRU FEB 2013 BUDGET VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATION  
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 71,079$                61,328$              86.28% 99,690$          93,757$              94.05% (32,429)$       
   CITY MANAGER 238,903$              165,579$            69.31% 343,296$        174,555$            50.85% (8,976)$         
   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 318,933$              231,042$            72.44% -$                   -$                         231,042$      
   ASSESSING SERVICES 172,277$              115,171$            66.85% 183,801$        110,015$            59.86% 5,156$          
   CITY CLERK 162,045$              107,628$            66.42% 150,676$        90,393$              59.99% 17,235$        
   FINANCIAL SERVICES 405,976$              263,686$            64.95% 419,539$        267,177$            63.68% (3,491)$         
   HUMAN RESOURCES 139,566$              85,326$              61.14% 137,836$        84,883$              61.58% 443$             
   INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY 395,350$              295,527$            74.75% 386,632$        253,316$            65.52% 42,211$        
   LEGAL SERVICES 100,000$              48,086$              48.09% 85,000$          14,772$              17.38% 33,314$        

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,004,129$           1,373,373$         68.53% 1,806,470$     1,088,868$         60.28% 284,505$      

COMMUNITY SERVICES
ENGINEERING 280,188$              171,556$            61.23% 320,370$        199,811$            62.37% (28,255)$       

   COMMUNITY PROGRAMS -$                          -$                         14,050$          10,850$              77.22% (10,850)$       
   PLANNING & PERMITTING 775,230$              515,758$            66.53% 776,532$        461,717$            59.46% 54,041$        
   PARKS AND RECREATION 567,334$              345,341$            60.87% 602,191$        362,396$            60.18% (17,055)$       
   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 189,539$              149,230$            78.73% 176,567$        151,419$            85.76% (2,189)$         
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 946,737$              705,177$            74.48% 968,292$        645,528$            66.67% 59,649$        

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 2,759,028$           1,887,062$         68.40% 2,858,002$     1,831,721$         64.09% 55,341$        
 

FISCAL SERVICES
   DEBT SERVICE 6,321,584$           6,136,848$         97.08% 6,682,797$     6,083,464$         91.03% 53,384$        
   PROPERTY 715,667$              451,226$            63.05% 699,114$        503,127$            71.97% (51,901)$       
   WORKERS COMPENSATION 431,446$              431,446$            100.00% 415,000$        -$                        0.00% 431,446$      
   WAGES & BENEFITS 4,397,585$           3,008,861$         68.42% 4,602,545$     2,831,244$         61.51% 177,617$      
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 375,289$              -$                        0.00% 333,818$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 12,241,571$         10,028,381$       81.92% 12,733,274$   9,417,835$         73.96% 610,546$      

PUBLIC SAFETY
   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,024,789$           2,699,119$         67.06% 3,904,344$     2,588,918$         66.31% 110,201$      
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 3,589,583$           2,338,629$         65.15% 3,439,583$     2,233,901$         64.95% 104,728$      

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 7,614,372$           5,037,748$         66.16% 7,343,927$     4,822,819$         65.67% 214,929$      

PUBLIC WORKS
   PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 4,730,432$           3,112,873$         65.81% 4,617,744$     2,957,661$         64.05% 155,212$      
   WATER AND SEWER 558,835$              429,591$            76.87% 558,835$        418,214$            74.84% 11,377$        

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 5,289,267$           3,542,464$         66.97% 5,176,579$     3,375,875$         65.21% 166,589$      

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS
   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 105,000$              105,000$            100.00% 105,000$        78,750$              75.00% 26,250$        
   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,036,409$           777,638$            75.03% 1,035,381$     776,339$            74.98% 1,299$          
   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 235,496$              235,373$            99.95% 235,548$        176,635$            74.99% 58,738$        
   LAEGC-ECONOMIC COUNCIL -$                          -$                         160,687$        120,515$            75.00% (120,515)$     
COMMUNITY LITTLE THEATER -$                          -$                         20,160$          46$                     0.23% (46)$              
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              41,793$              15.48% 289,000$        43,602$              15.09% (1,809)$         

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,646,905$           1,159,804$         70.42% 1,845,776$     1,195,887$         64.79% (36,083)$       

COUNTY TAX 2,029,513$           2,029,512$         100.00% 2,006,244$     2,006,244$         100.00% 23,268$        
TIF (10108058-580000) 2,555,723$           2,584,032$         101.11% 2,619,142$     2,590,947$         98.92% (6,915)$         
OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  
TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 36,140,508$         27,642,376$       76.49% 36,389,414$   26,330,196$       72.36% 1,312,180$   

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 37,128,028$         18,847,850$       50.76% 34,705,246$   19,690,235$       56.74% (842,385)$     
  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 73,268,536$         46,490,226$       63.45% 71,094,660$   46,020,431$       64.73% 469,795$      

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH February 28, 2014 VS February 28, 2013  



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

AS Of January 31, 2014

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST WEIGHTED
INVESTMENT FUND January 31, 2014 January 31, 2014 RATE AVG YIELD

BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1242924 GENERAL FUND 55,383.23$                   55,376.86$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745910 GF-WORKERS COMP 49,267.69$                   49,264.67$                   0.10%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745944 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 66,962.00$                   66,954.30$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH CD 7033 GF-UNEMPLOYMENT 102,404.84$                 102,404.84$                 2.64%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1809302 SPECIAL REVENUE 52,605.20$                   52,599.15$                   0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745902 SR-PERMIT PARKING 198,171.79$                 198,148.99$                 0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745895 SR-TIF 1,118,835.67$              1,118,706.94$              0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1746819 CAPITAL PROJECTS 11,768,778.79$            11,767,424.73$            0.20%
BANKNORTH MNY MKT 24-1745928 ICE ARENA 249,519.67$                 249,490.96$                 0.10%

GRAND TOTAL 13,661,928.88$            13,660,371.44$            0.22%



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
To: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for February 28, 2014 
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities for the Ingersoll Arena  
and the Norway Savings Bank Arena as of February 28, 2014.  
 
INGERSOLL ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of February 2014 the total current assets of Ingersoll were $184,139. These consisted of 
cash and cash equivalents of $249,516, and an interfund payable of $65,377, which means that Ingersoll 
owes the General Fund $65,377, so net cash available to Ingersoll is $184,139 at the end of February.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building, equipment and any building and land improvements, less 
depreciation. There will be an adjustment to the equipment, since some of this has been transferred to 
Norway Savings Bank Arena. The total value of the noncurrent assets as of February 31, 2014 were 
$630,402. 
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had no liabilities as of February 28, 2014.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Arena through February 2014, are $55,011. This account was 
reduced by $17,325 due to the write off of the outstanding accounts receivable of the Auburn Youth 
Hockey Association. This revenue comes from the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, 
youth programming, shinny hockey, public skating and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Arena through February 2014, were $148,243. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance. 
 
As of February 2014 Ingersoll Arena has an operating losses of $93,232. 
 
Non-operating revenue and expenses consist of interest income and debt service payments. The interest 
income to date is $789 and debt service expense to date is $89,864.  



 2 

 
As of February 28, 2014 Ingersoll Arena has a decrease in net assets of $182,307. 
 
NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of February 2014 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were ($105,510). 
These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $200, accounts receivable of $3,750 and an interfund 
payable of $109,460, which means that Norway owes the General Fund $109,460 at the end of 
February.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). There will be an adjustment to the equipment to account for the equipment that 
was transferred from Ingersoll Arena. The total value of the noncurrent assets as of February 28, 2014 
were $234,395. 
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had accounts payable of $8,680 as of February 28, 2014.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through February 2014 are $435,444. This revenue comes 
from the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public 
skating and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through February 2014 were $315,239. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance. 
 
As of February 2014 Norway Arena has an operating gain of $120,205. 
 
As of February 28, 2014 Norway Arena has a increase in net assets of $120,205. 
 
 
 



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
February 28, 2014

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Ingersoll Norway
Savings Combined

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 249,516$        200$             249,716$         
Interfund receivables (65,377)$         (109,460)$     (174,837)         
Accounts receivable -                      3,750            3,750               

Total current assets 184,139          (105,510)       78,629             
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 18,584            18,584             
Equipment 672,279          234,395        906,674           
Land improvements 826,911          826,911           
     Less accumulated depreciation (887,372)         (887,372)         

Total noncurrent assets 630,402          234,395        864,797           
Total assets 814,541          128,885        943,426           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 8,680$          8,680               
Total liabilities -                      8,680            8,680               

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 630,402$        234,395$      864,797           
Unrestricted 184,139$        (114,190)$     69,949             

Total net assets 814,541$        120,205$      934,746$         



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 February 28, 2014

Norway
Ingersoll Savings
Ice Arena Arena Total

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 55,011$        435,444$       490,455$          

Operating expenses:
Personnel 70,331          106,027          176,358            
Supplies 6,799            66,886            73,685              
Utilities 54,326          42,077            96,403              
Repairs and maintenance 13,120          2,307              15,427              
Depreciation -                     -                       -                         
Capital expenses 4,500              4,500                
Other expenses 3,667            93,442            97,109              

Total operating expenses 148,243        315,239          463,482            

Operating  gain (loss) (93,232)         120,205          26,973              

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income 789                -                       789                    
Interest expense (debt service) (89,864)         -                       (89,864)             

Total nonoperating expense (89,075)         -                       (89,075)             

Gain before transfer (182,307)       120,205          (62,102)             

Transfers out -                     -                       

Change in net assets (182,307)       120,205          (62,102)             

Total net assets, July 1 996,848        -                       996,848            

Total net assets, February 28, 2014 814,541$      120,205$       934,746$         



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

Subject: Adopting the newly proposed ward maps and descriptions  

 

Information: The Legislature completed redistricting for State Senate, State House, and County Commissioner 

districts earlier last year and the new districts were enacted on June 14
th

, 2013.  

 

30-A §2503 (2) states that “the Municipal Legislative body must enact the reapportionment ordinance within 12 

months after the Legislature has reapportioned the House and Senate districts”. 

 

We have been working on the ward lines and have worked on a number of iterations and feel we have come up 

with a great option which closely balances the Wards by inhabitants. Title 30-A §2503 1B states “each district 

must contain as nearly as possible the same number of inhabitants as determined according to the latest Federal 

Decennial Census, but districts may not differ in number of inhabitants by more than 10% of the inhabitants in 

the smallest district created” and with the ward boundaries we’ve come up with, we were at 270 (approximately 

5-6%) difference between the ward with the lowest number of inhabitants to the ward with the highest number 

of inhabitants.  It also reduces the number of candidate ballot styles (Primary Election) in Ward 3 from 15 to 12 

(all other wards will have 9 ballot styles and these numbers do not include State Referendum and Municipal 

ballot styles). Still a high number of ballot styles but a little less room for error when handing out ballots.   

 

So moving forward, if we wanted to implement the new Ward lines on time for the June election, in order to 

reduce ballot styles, we would have to move quickly because it requires two readings because it is an ordinance 

change and the Secretary of State’s office will be ordering ballots on March 18
th 

for the June 10, 2014 Election.  

We will also be holding a Special Election for the open Ward 1 School Committee seat. If the new districts are 

not enacted 90 days prior to the election, there is the potential for that to be an at large seat. We are still looking 

into this further. 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Public hearing and recommend passage of second and final reading. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Presented the proposed Ward maps at the 2/20/2014 Council Workshop, 

passage of first reading on 3/3/2014. 

 

Attachments: Ordinance 02-03032014 (ward maps and descriptions) 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Ordinance   02-03032014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



City of Auburn Redistricting
All Wards



1 
2 

1. Subtraction 

2. Addition 

City of Auburn 
Redistricting 

Ward 1 

Legend

!( Polling Location

Ward 2

Ward 1

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Current Ward Boundaries

Proposed Ward Boundaries

Changes



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

City of Auburn 
Redistricting 

Ward 2 

Legend

!( Polling Location

Ward 2

Ward 1

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Current Ward Boundaries

Proposed Ward Boundaries

Changes



1. Subtraction 2. Addition 

3. Subtraction 4. Addition 5. Addition 

City of Auburn 
Redistricting 

Ward 2 

Legend

!( Polling Location

Ward 2

Ward 1

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Current Ward Boundaries

Proposed Ward Boundaries

Changes



City of Auburn 
Redistricting 

Ward 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 Legend

!( Polling Location

Ward 2

Ward 1

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Current Ward Boundaries

Proposed Ward Boundaries

Changes



1. Addition 

4. Subtraction 

2. Addition 

5. Subtraction 6. Subtraction 

City of Auburn 
Redistricting 

Ward 3 

Legend

!( Polling Location

Ward 2

Ward 1

Ward 3

Ward 4

Ward 5

Current Ward Boundaries

Proposed Ward Boundaries

Changes

3. Subtraction 



1

4

3

2

City of Auburn Redistricting
Ward 4



1. Subtraction

City of Auburn
Redistricting

Ward 4

4. Addition

3. Addition

2. Subtraction



City of Auburn Redistricting
Ward 5

1. Addition



Ward 
Target 

Population 

Population with 
Proposed 

Changes 
Variance 

from Target 
  1 4611 4721 110 
  2 4611 4549 -62 
  3 4611 4674 63 
  4 4611 4451 -160 
  5 4611 4660 49 
  

 
23055 23055 

   

      Variance between ward with largest and smallest population:  270 
 

      Auburn's Land Area (not including Roads) 57.0 square miles 

Area changed with proposed changes 3.2 square miles 

 
6% area changed 

      Total Population 23055 
  Population affected by change 3015 
  % of population affected by change 13% 
   



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

  
Page 1 

 
  

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  02-03032014 

 

ORDERED, that the Code of Ordinances Chapter 1, sec. 2-2 Ward Boundaries is amended as 

follows; 

Sec. 2-2. Ward boundaries. 

(a) 

Ward 1. The boundaries of ward 1 shall be as follows:  

Beginning at the southeast corner of census Block 1004 of Tract 010200 in the Androscoggin 

River; then southwest along the boundary of Block 1004 and then Block 1000 of Tract 

010200 until it intersects with Turner Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Turner 

Street until it intersects with Parker Street; then southwest along the centerline of Parker 

Street to the intersection of Summer Street; then northwest along the centerline of Summer 

Street to the intersection of Youngs Corner Road; northwesterly, southwesterly, and westerly 

along the centerline of Youngs Corner Road to the intersection of Jackson Hill Road; 

westerly and northwesterly along the centerline of Jackson Hill Road to the Auburn/Minot 

municipal boundary; then northerly along the Auburn/Minot municipal boundary to the 

intersection with the Auburn/Turner municipal boundary; then southeasterly along the 

Auburn/Turner municipal boundary to the Androscoggin River and the Auburn/Greene 

municipal boundary; then southerly along the Androscoggin River and the Auburn/Greene 

and Auburn/Lewiston municipal boundaries to the point of beginning.  

(b) 

Ward 2. The boundaries of ward 2 shall be as follows:  

Beginning at the intersection of Parker Street and Summer Street  northwest along the 

centerline of Summer Street to the intersection of Youngs Corner Road; then northwesterly, 

southwesterly, and westerly along the centerline of Youngs Corner Road to the Jackson Hill 

Road; then westerly and northwesterly along the centerline of Jackson Hill Road to the 

Auburn/Minot municipal boundary; then southerly along the Auburn/Minot municipal 

boundary to the centerline of Garfield Road; then southeasterly along the centerline of 

Garfield Road to the intersection of Sunrise Lane; then westerly  and northwesterly along the 

centerline Sunrise Lane to the easterly terminus of Sunrise Lane; then northeasterly, 

southeasterly and southwesterly along the boundary of Block 2017 of Tract 010800; then 

westerly and southerly along the boundary of Block 2018 of Tract 010800 and Block 2020 of 

Tract 010800 and Block 2028 of Tract 010800 to the intersection of Kendall Road; then 

westerly along the centerline of Kendall Road to the Intersection of Stevens Mill Road; then 



 

  
Page 2 

 
  

Southerly along the centerline of Stevens Mill Road to the intersection with Minot Avenue; 

then easterly along the Centerline of Minot Ave to the Southeast corner of Block 1021 of 

Tract 010400; then northwesterly along the boundary of Block 1021 of Tract 010400 to the 

intersection with Court Street then northeasterly along the centerline of Court Street to the 

intersection of Russell Avenue; then southeasterly along the centerline of Russell Avenue  to 

the intersection of Goodrich Avenue; Then northeasterly along Goodrich Avenue to the 

intersection with Hillside Avenue; then southeasterly along the centerline of Hillside Avenue 

to the intersection of Merrill Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Merrill Street. to 

the intersection of Western Avenue; then northwesterly along Western Avenue to the 

Intersection of Auburn Heights; then northeasterly and northwesterly along the centerline of 

Auburn Heights to the intersection of Harris Street; then northwesterly along the centerline of 

Harris Street to the intersection of Court Street; then westerly on Court street to the 

intersection of James Street; then northerly along the centerline of James Street to the 

intersection of Grant Street; then easterly along the centerline of Grant Street to the 

intersection of Goff Street; then northerly along the centerline of Goff Street to the 

intersection of Pine Street; then easterly along the centerline of Pine Street to the 

intersection of Willow Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Willow Street to the 

intersection of Webster Street; then southeasterly along the centerline of Webster Street to 

the intersection of Chestnut Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Chestnut Street 

to the intersection of Parker Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Parker Street to 

the point of beginning.  

(c) 

Ward 3. The boundaries of ward 3 shall be as follows:  

Beginning at the Intersection of Parker Street and Turner Street southeasterly and southerly 

along the centerline of Turner to the intersection of Pleasant Street; then southerly along the 

centerline of Pleasant Street to the intersection of Court Street; then westerly along the 

centerline of Court Street to the intersection of Minot Avenue; then southerly and 

southwesterly along the centerline of Minot Avenue to the intersection of Poland Road; then 

southwesterly along the centerline of Poland Road to the intersection of Rodman Road; then 

northwesterly along the centerline of Rodman Road to the intersection of Manley Road; then 

Southwesterly along the centerline of Manley road to the intersection of Hotel Road; then 

southwesterly along the centerline of Hotel Road to the intersection of Block 2026 of Tract 

010700; then westerly along Block 2026 of Tract 010700 to the Auburn/Poland municipal 

boundary; then westerly and northwesterly to the intersection of Garfield Road; then 

southeasterly along the centerline of Garfield Road to the intersection of Sunrise Lane; then 

westerly  and northwesterly along the centerline Sunrise Lane to the easterly terminus of 

Sunrise Lane; then northeasterly, southeasterly and southwesterly along the boundary of 

Block 2017 of Tract 010800; then westerly and southerly along the boundary of Block 2018 

of Tract 010800 and Block 2020 of Tract 010800 and Block 2028 of Tract 010800 to the 

intersection of Kendall Road; then westerly along the centerline of Kendall Road to the 

Intersection of Stevens Mill Road; then Southerly along the centerline of Stevens Mill Road 

to the intersection of Minot Avenue; then easterly along the Centerline of Minot Ave to the 

southeast corner of Block 1021 of Tract 010400; then northwesterly along the boundary of 

Block 1021 of Tract 010400 to the intersection with Court Street then northeasterly along the 



 

  
Page 3 

 
  

centerline of Court Street to the intersection of Russell Avenue; then southeasterly along the 

centerline of Russell Avenue to the intersection of Goodrich Avenue; Then northeasterly 

along Goodrich Avenue to the intersection with Hillside Avenue; then southeasterly along the 

centerline of Hillside Avenue to the intersection of Merrill Street; then Northeasterly along the 

centerline of Merrill Street to the intersection of Western Avenue; then northwesterly along 

Western Avenue to the Intersection of Auburn Heights; then northeasterly and northwesterly 

along the centerline of Auburn Heights to the intersection of Harris Street; then northwesterly 

along the centerline of Harris Street to the intersection of Court Street; then westerly on 

Court street to the intersection of James Street; then northerly along the centerline of James 

Street to the intersection of Grant Street; then easterly along the centerline of Grant Street to 

the intersection of Goff Street; then northerly along the centerline of Goff Street to the 

intersection of Pine Street; then easterly along the centerline of Pine Street to the 

intersection of Willow Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Willow Street to the 

intersection of Webster Street; then southeasterly along the centerline of Webster Street to 

the intersection of Chestnut Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Chestnut Street 

to the intersection of Parker Street; then northeasterly along the centerline of Parker Street to 

the point of beginning.  

 (d) 

Ward 4. The boundaries of ward 4 shall be as follows:  

Beginning at the Androscoggin River at the northeast corner of Block 1000 of Tract 010100 

westerly along the northern boundary of Block 1000 of Tract 010100 to the intersection of 

Block 1001 of 010100; then westerly along the boundary of Block 1001 of Tract 010100 to 

the intersection of Turner Street; then southerly along Turner Street to the intersection of 

Pleasant Street; then southerly along the centerline of Pleasant Street to the intersection of 

Court Street; then westerly along the centerline of Court Street to the intersection of Minot 

Avenue; then southerly and southwesterly along the centerline of Minot Avenue to the 

intersection of Poland Road; then southwesterly along the centerline of Poland Road to the 

intersection of Rodman Road; then northwesterly along the centerline of Rodman Road to 

the intersection of Manley Road; then Southwesterly along the centerline of Manley road to 

the intersection of Hotel Road; then southwesterly along the centerline of Hotel Road to the 

intersection of Block 2026 of Tract 010700; then westerly along Block 2026 of Tract 010700 

to the Auburn/Poland municipal boundary; then southwesterly along the Auburn/Poland 

municipal boundary to the Auburn/New Gloucester municipal boundary; then southeasterly 

along the Auburn/New Gloucester municipal boundary to Trapp Road; then easterly and 

northeasterly along the centerline of Trapp Road to the intersection of Pownal Road; then 

northerly along the centerline of Pownal Road to the intersection of Danville Corner Road; 

then northwesterly and westerly along the centerline of Danville Corner Road to the 

intersection of Block 2043 of Tract 010700; then northwesterly along the boundary of Block 

2043 of Tract 010700 to the intersection of Hackett Road; then northwesterly along the 

centerline of Hackett Road to the intersection of the northwest corner of Block 2040 of Tract 

010700; then north and northeasterly along the boundary of Block 2040 of Tract 010700 to 

the intersection of Block 1008 of Tract 010700; then northeasterly along the boundary of 

Block 1008 of Tract 010700; then northeasterly along the thread of the Little Androscoggin 

River to its confluence with the Androscoggin River and the Auburn/Lewiston municipal 



 

  
Page 4 

 
  

boundary; then northerly along the Androscoggin River and the Auburn/Lewiston municipal 

boundary to the point of beginning.  

(e) 

Ward 5. The boundaries of ward 5 shall be as follows:  

Beginning at the confluence of the Androscoggin River and the Little Androscoggin River on 

the Auburn/Lewiston municipal boundary; then southerly along the Androscoggin River and 

the Auburn/Lewiston municipal boundary to the intersection of the Auburn/Durham municipal 

boundary; then southwesterly, northwesterly, and southwesterly along the Auburn/Durham 

municipal boundary to the Auburn/New Gloucester municipal boundary, then northwesterly 

along the Auburn/New Gloucester municipal boundary to the intersection of Trapp Road; 

then easterly and northeasterly along the centerline of Trapp Road to the intersection of 

Pownal Road; then northerly along the centerline of Pownal Road to the intersection of 

Danville Corner Road; then northwesterly and northerly along the centerline of Danville 

Corner Road to the intersection of Block 2043 of Tract 010700; then northwesterly along the 

boundary of Block 2043 of Tract 010700 to the intersection of Hackett Road; then 

northwesterly along the centerline of Hackett Road to the intersection of Block 2040 of Tract 

010700; then north and northeasterly along the boundary of Block 2040 of Tract 010700 to 

the intersection of Block 1008 of Tract 010700; then northeasterly along the boundary of 

Block 1008 of Tract 010700; then northeasterly along the thread of the Little Androscoggin 

River to its confluence with the Androscoggin River to the point of beginning. 

 

 



HOTE
L

MAINE

MINOT

RIVERSIDE

LAKE

AUBURN

MAIN

CE
NT

ER

TU
RN

ER

PARK

COURT

RI
VE

R

POLAND

LAKE SHORE

KITTYHAWK

BROAD

WASHINGTON

GAMAGE

SUMMER

WESTERN

LEWISTON JUNCTION

ELM

GARFIELD

EXIT 75

MAINE

TU
RN

ER

TURNER

Legend
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

TextText

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

0 1 2 Miles

$

rmosher
Stamp



RIVER

PERKINS RIDGE

GARFIELD

HAT
CH

W
HITMAN SPRING

TU
RNER

SUMMER

JO
HN

SO
N

HOLBROOK

OA
K 

HI
LL

WATERM AN
DAV

IS

FIELD

MAPLE HILL
HERSEY HILL

BATES

FERN

WINTER

AN
DR

EW

BRIGHTON HILL

BEAVER

STONE

GRACELAWN
STETSON

HI
GH

QUAIL

WHITNEY

SHORE

CHICOINE

HATFIELD

JACKSON HILL

BR
OAD

VIEW

BRADM AN

BA
ILE

Y

HIGHLANDVISTA

ALLEN

TOWNSEND BROOK

EVERETT

DILLINGHAM HILL

LO
ST

 VA
LL

EY

ELMW OOD

SH
EP

LE
Y

SMALL

DEER RIPS

HARRIS

NORTH
ER

N

ORCHARD

MARSTON HILL

TR
OY

GO
FF

BLANCHARD

TE
RR

AC
E

MOUNT AUBURN

PUMP STATION

SU
NRISE

MINOT

GR
AN

DV
IE

W

AUBURN

RUSSELL

JOLINE

RI
VE

RW
AL

K

DA
MY

WILSON H ILL

SUMMIT

CHURCH

TA
YW

OO
D

COLBY

CREST

GRACELAWN PIT

CLOVER

CHICKADEE

COVE

PINE

MORGAN

TALON

MALIBU

STANLEY

WAYLEN

MAY
FIE

LD

ROWE

GARY

SH
ER

MAN

SUNVIEW

SU
NSE

T

AN
DREA

HATHAWAY

SUMMER

SH
OR

E

LAKE

AU
BU

RN

HOTEL

CE
NT

ER

TU
RN

ER

PARK

RI
VE

R

LAKE SHORE

SUMMER

SKILLINGS CORNER

Legend
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

0 1 2 Miles$

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

Ward 1

rmosher
Placed Image



HAT
CH

GARFIELD

PERKINS RIDGE

MILL
TU

RNER

SUMMER

MERROW

BR
OA

D

COOK

DAV
IS

FIELD

STEVENS MILL

PRIDE

FLETCHER

FERN

WINTER

ALLEN

GRACELAWN

HI
GH

TA
FT

WHITNEY

HOW
E

TW
IN

FAIRVIEW

VALVIEW

SHORE

MOUNT APATITE

CHICOINE

HATFIELD

JACKSON HILL
BE

NNETT

GRANITE

NINTH

HIGHLAND

VISTA

ROY

PL
EA

SA
NT

MINOT

BR
OAD

VIEW

EVERETT

MAPLE

LO
ST

 VA
LL

EY

YACHT CLUB

POLIQUIN

SH
EP

LE
Y

SMALL HARRIS

W
HI

TM
AN

 S
PR

IN
G

BA
RK

ER
 M

ILL

DANA

YOUNGS CORNER

KINGS

PIO
NITE

MONROE

DAWES

BATES

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

TR
OY

GO
FF

DEE

FO
CH

TE
RR

AC
E

EIGHTH

COLO
NIAL

CARON

CONANT

PUMP STATION

SUNRISE

GR
AN

DV
IE

W

BO
UL

DE
RMINE

PO
ND

 VI
EW

TOWLE

AUBURN

FIFTH

WILLARDWYMAN

RUSSELL

BR
ET

TO
N

FOREST

SU
ND

ER
LA

ND

HIL
LC

RE
ST

HAZ
EL

SNOW

DA
MY

BELGRADE

SUMMIT
HILLSIDE

CHURCH

CLEVELAND

MADISONOLD
 FARM

ZOAR

PINNACLE

CREST

GAMMON

GRACELAWN PIT

CLOVER

SHERW
OOD

HEATH

COVE

ROYAL

WEBSTERPINE

BUTLE
R H ILL

RICHARDSON

TYLER

GILLANDER

TALON

LA
UR

ELAMBERLEY

COBURN

DE
RO

SA
Y

TOURMALINE

AR
ON

CARLTON

STANLEY

BRICKYARD

MAY
FIE

LD

POINT OF PINE

EVERGREEN

ROWE

RAFNELL

PATTON

AMHERST

SA
M

AN
TH

A

HORIZON

NICKERSON

SU
NSE

T

INDUSTRY

AN
DREA

ARBANIA

COACHMAN

PARKER

CENTER MINOT

FALCON

EDGEW
OOD

KILSYTH

MOORE

ROBIN

WILSON

HU
TC

HI
NS

BECK

BURNS

SUMMER

SH
OR

E

HOTE
L

MINOT

LAKE

PARK

COURT

POLAND

MA
IN

WASH
INGTO

N

AU
BU

RN

BROAD

MOUNT AUBURN

CENTER

SUMMER

ELM

GARFIELD

TU
RN

ER

YOUNGS CORNER

MIAMI

TURNER

CE
NT

ER

Legend
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

0 1 2 Miles$

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

Ward 2

rmosher
Stamp



HAT
CH

BR
OA

D

MA
IN

GARFIELD

MILL

MERROW

SUMMER

HACKETT

COOK

FLETCHER

WITHAM

PERKINS RIDGE

DAV
IS

BEECH HILL

TU
RNER

FIELD

OLD DANVILLE

STEVENS MILL

PRIDE

PO
W

NA
L

FERN

BUTLER H ILL

WINTER

LANE

ALLEN
GRACELAWN

HI
GH

TA
FT

WHITNEY

HOW
E

FIFTH

TW
IN

FAIRVIEW

VALVIEW

BATES
SHORE

MOUNT APATITE

CHICOINE

NINTH

JACKSON HILL

KY
LE

BE
NNETT

BR
OAD

VIEW

HIGHLAND

VISTA

ROY

HARDSCRABBLE

PL
EA

SA
NT

MINOT

FL
IG

HT
 LI

NE

EVERETT

MAPLE

YACHT CLUB

POLIQUIN

SH
EP

LE
Y

SMALL HARRIS

DANA

MARTINDALE

JO
AT

MO
N

YOUNGS CORNER

KINGS

ORCHARD

PIONITE

MONROE

DAWES

BA
RK M

ULC
H

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

PAUL

LEW ISTON JUNCTION

GO
FF

DEE

FO
CH

TE
RR

AC
E

OLIVE

HICKORY

CARON

SUNRISE

GR
AN

DV
IE

W

BO
UL

DE
R

MINE

TOWLE

AUBURN

FAIRW
AY

DA
VI

D

WYMAN

JE
NN

IFE
R

LITTLEFIELD

RUSSELL

JOLINE

BR
ET

TO
N

FOREST

SU
ND

ER
LA

ND

RI
VE

RW
AL

K

SNOW

OUTLOOK

WRIGHTS

DA
MY

BELGRADE

SUMMIT

GL
EN

DA
LE

LO
GIST

ICS

CLEVELAND

BR
EN

TW
OOD

TA
YW

OO
D

BOLSTERZOAR

PINNACLE

CREST

GAMMON

GRACELAWN PIT

CLOVER

HEATH

COVE

ROYAL

AIRPORT

WEBSTERPINE

MOUNT AUBURN

RICHARDSON

TYLER

CROSS

TALON

LA
UR

EL

DE
RO

SA
Y

GA
RD

EN

PARK

AR
ON

CARLTON

STANLEY

MAY
FIE

LD

HEMLOCK ROWE

RAFNELL

AMHERST

INFINITI

NICKERSON

SU
NSE

T

INDUSTRY

IPSWICH

ARBANIA

GOSNOLD

PHILOMAR

FALCON

ROBIN

BECK

KENDALL

WITHAM

SH
OR

E

HOTE
L

MINOT

LAKE

MAIN

MAINE

PARK

CO
UR

T

CE
NT

ER

POLAND

BROAD

RODMAN

KITTYHAWK

GAMAGE

WASH
INGTO

N

SUMMER

LEWISTON JUNCTION

UNION

MILL

CHASSE

MIAMI

MAINE
Legend

Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

0 1 2 Miles$

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

Ward 3

rmosher
Stamp



POW
NAL

HATCH

W
ITH

AM

TR
AP

P

BR
OA

D

OLD
 DANVIL

LE

MA
IN

FOSTER

GARFIELD

MILL

SO
PE

RS
 M

ILL

JO
RDAN

 SCHOOL

MERROW

HACKETT

COOK

FIC
KE

TT

FLETCHER

STEELE

FIFTH
SIXTH

DANVILLE CORNER

DAV
IS

THIRD
BEECH HILL

VICKERY

ST
AT

IO
N

STEVENS MILL

PRIDE

SEVENTH

HOBART

FERN

BUTLER H ILL

LANE

EA
ST

MA
N

ALLEN

HI
GH

WOODBU
RY

PENLEY CORNER

TA
FT

HOW
E

TW
IN

FAIRVIEW

AL
LIE

D

VALVIEW

PAUL

BLACK CAT
MOUNT APATITE

NINTH

WINTER

KYLE

ROYAL RIVER

BE
NNETT

HIGHLANDVISTA

ROY

HARDSCR ABBLE

MINOT

FL
IG

HT
 LI

NE

MAPLE
POLIQUIN

SH
EP

LE
Y

SMALL

LORING

MOOSE BROOK

HARRIS

DANA

MARTINDALE

JOATMON

ORCHARD

PIONITE

TURKEY

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

TR
OY

LEW ISTON JUNCTION

GO
FF

FO
CH

TE
RR

AC
E

HICKORY

SUNRISE

BO
UL

DE
R

TOWLE

AUBURN

FAIRW
AY

DA
VI

D

JE
NN

IFE
R

RUSSELL

BR
ET

TO
N

RI
VE

RW
AL

K

SNOW

OUTLOOK

WRIGHTS

BELGRADE

SUMMIT

LO
GIST

ICS

CLEVELAND

MADISON

BR
EN

TW
OOD

CLOVER

HEATH

AIRPORT

PINE

CARRIER

DE
RO

SA
Y

CARLTON

OLD HOTEL

STONY

RAFNELL

LO
NGBOW

AMHERST

INFINITI

REGINALD

INDUSTRY

IPSWICH

BROOK

GROVE

ADAMS

PHILOMAR

WITHAM

HOTE
L

MAINE

MINOT

MAIN

COURT

RI
VE

RS
ID

E

LAKE

PARK

KITTYHAWK

RODMAN

EXIT 75

CHASSE

MAINE

Legend
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

0 1 2 Miles$

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

Ward 4

rmosher
Stamp



PO
WNA

L

W
ITH

AM

TR
AP

P

BR
OA

D

OLD
 DANVIL

LE

FIC
KE

TT

SOPERS MILL

MA
IN

JO
RDAN

 SCHOOL

MILL

HACKETT

COOK

STEELE

FIFTH
SIXTH

DANVILLE CORNER

THIRD

BEECH HILL

VICKERY

ST
AT

IO
N

PE
NLE

Y CORNER

STEVENS MILL

PRIDE

SEVENTH

HOBART

LANE

HARDSCRABBLE

WOODBU
RY

MERROW

TA
FT

TW
IN

FAIRVIEW

AL
LIE

D

PAUL

BLACK CAT

NINTH

KYLE

ROYAL RIVER

BE
NNETT

ROYMAPLE
POLIQUIN

LORING

MOOSE BROOK

MARTINDALE

JOATMON

PIONITE

FO
CH

HICKORY

JACQUES

TOWLE

FAIRW
AY

DA
VI

D

BR
ET

TO
N

SNOW

OUTLOOK

BELGRADE

MADISON

HEATH

CARRIER

DE
RO

SA
Y

CARLTON

SHERIDAN

RAFNELL

SHERRY

AMHERST

INFINITI

REGINALD

INDUSTRY

IPSWICH

BROOK

PHILOMAR

WITHAM

MAINE

HOTE
L

RIVERSIDE

MINOT

MAIN

RODMAN

WASH
INGTO

N

KITTYHAWK

EXIT 75

CHASSE

MAINE

Legend
Ward 1
Ward 2
Ward 3
Ward 4
Ward 5
Ward Boundary Lines

0 1 2 Miles$

City of Auburn
60 Court St

Auburn, ME  04210
207-333-6601

www.auburnmaine.gov

Ward 5

rmosher
Stamp



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: PAL Center building Lease Agreement at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Information: City Council requested a formal Lease Agreement be executed between the City of Auburn and 

the Auburn PAL for building use at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Financial: n/a 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Authorization from City Council to City Manager to execute a Lease 

Agreement for the PAL Center building at 24 Chestnut Street. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:    

July 30, 2010 – City Manager Weekly Review – Item 5, PAL concept introduced 

August 2, 2010 – Workshop - best use of 24 Chestnut Street 

August 2, 2010 – Council Meeting – authorizing use of 24 and 31 Chestnut Street 

July 1, 2011 – CDBG approved grant to renovate property at 24 Chestnut Street 

 

 

Attachments:  

 Order 24-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  24-03172014 

Author:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 24-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the lease agreement for the PAL Center 

building at 24 Chestnut Street, Auburn, ME. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Authorize the City Manger to forward a letter of support for the initiation of a “Hotel (night) Train” 

service between Montreal & Boston which would pass through Auburn. 

 

 

Information: Androscoggin-Oxford-Coos Counties Passenger Rail Corridor Committee was formed to promote 

passenger railroad service through western Maine.  This committee has been approached by two private entities 

that wish to pursue the establishment of a service using the Canadian National and Saint Lawrence & Atlantic 

tracks between Montreal, Portland & Boston.  A gentleman named Francois Rebello has brought forward a plan 

for a “Hotel (night) Train”.  He is not asking for any funding and only has requested that communities along the 

rail corridor give letters of support for his concept. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Passage of resolve. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

Draft resolve 04-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Resolve  04-03172014 

Author:   Roland Miller 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE 04-03172014 

 
RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to draft and send a letter of support for the establishment of a 

Hotel Train service that would pass through Auburn. 
      



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Interim Appointment of Tax Assessor 

 

Information: Approval of this order will confirm the City Manager’s appointment of Renee Lachapelle as 

Interim Tax Assessor from 3/16/14 to 6/30/14. The appointment of Renee Lachapelle as Interim Tax Assessor 

will allow the City Council time to fully review information relative to options for subcontracting some or all 

assessing functions.  

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Motion for passage of this order 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Renee Lachapelle was originally appointed to Tax Assessor on March 15, 

2010.  She was reappointed on March 15, 2012 for a two year term. Term expires on 3/15/14.  

 

 

Attachments: Order 25-03172014 

Council Meeting Date:  March 17, 2014 Order  25-03172014 

Author:   Deborah Grimmig, Human Resources Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

Order 25-03172014 

 
ORDERED, that Renee Lachapelle be and hereby is appointed as Interim Tax Assessor for the period of March 

16, 2014 to June 30, 2014.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: March 17, 2014  

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion on a personnel matter (City Manager review), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A).  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: March 17, 2014  

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion on a personnel matter (Norway Savings Bank Arena Management), pursuant to 1 

M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A).  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	0  Agenda 03-17-2014
	1  Agenda Info Sheet Budget
	1a  Joint Agencies Budget Requests
	Airport
	LA911
	LATC
	LAEGC
	LA Arts
	GFTV
	Museum LA

	1b   Library
	REVENUE '15
	EXPENSE '15
	Salary
	Health Ins
	Buyout
	Wellness

	1c  economic development
	DESCRIPTION
	MISSION
	PROGRAM BUDGET
	PROGRAM BUDGET
	FY 2015 Adopted
	FY 2015 Proposed
	FTE
	PROGRAM
	BUDGET DRIVERS
	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND WORKLOAD INDICATORS
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	MEASURE
	WORKLOAD INDICATORS
	MEASURE

	1d  Community Development Budget updated 031314
	1dd  Citizen Participation Plan 2015-19 (2-2014)
	1e  Program budget FY15 citymanager CED (3)
	DESCRIPTION
	MISSION
	PROGRAMS
	PROGRAM BUDGET
	BUDGET DRIVERS
	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	MEASURE

	1f  City Manager
	special revenue accounts updated as of 063013 updated 13114.pdf
	2014
	Rec 2014

	norway savings arena combined file.pdf
	DESCRIPTION:
	PROGRAMS
	1. OPERATIONS:
	Oversight of all events, activities, and related programming of the Enterprise to ensure proper staffing, goals, objectives, and coordination for the operation of a multipurpose, multi-use ice skating facility.  Management of staff which includes a Di...
	2. FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION:
	Provide financial oversight and administration of all activities of the facility.  Together, the General Manager and the Administrative Assistant monitor budgets, accounts payable and receivable in conjunction with the municipal finance department to ...
	3.  MARKETING AND ADVERTISING:
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	PERFORMANCE MEASURES
	MEASURE
	BUDGET DRIVERS
	PROGRAM BUDGET-Operations
	Full Time Equivalent
	PROGRAM BUDGET-Finance and Administration
	Full Time Equivalent
	PROGRAM BUDGET-Marketing and Advertising
	Full Time Equivalent


	2  Workshop Info Sheet Montreal rail
	2a  Montreal Rail Attachement
	2b  Montreal Rail attachment 2
	2c  Resolve 04-03172014 Montreal Rail
	3  Workshop Info Sheet PAL
	3a  PAL    LEASE AGREEMENT    3-17-14
	3b  CITY MANAGER   WKLY  REV   7-30-10
	3c  COUNCIL APPROVAL FOR PAL    8-2-2010
	3d  CDBG GRANT    7-1-2011
	3e  ORDER 24-03172014 PAL
	4  Agenda Info Sheet Safe Voices-Temp Signs
	4a  Safe Voices - temp signs
	4b  Order 20-03172014 Safe Voices temp signs
	5  Agenda Info Sheet Kora Shrine-Temp Signs
	5a  Kora Shrine - temp signs
	5b  Order 21-03172014 Kora Shrine temp signs
	6  Agenda Info Sheet ABA-Temp Signs
	6a  ABA temp sign request
	6b  ABA temp sign request 2
	6c  Order 22-03172014 ABA temp signs
	7  Agenda Info Sheet - Firefighters Retirement (2)
	7a  Order 23-03172014 Firefighters retirment plan
	8  Minutes 3-3-2014
	9  EMS Update Memo 3 7 14
	10  AssessingDeptReviewMEMO13MAR14
	11  Final February 2014 Finance Report
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary
	Arena Monthly Report- February 2014.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement


	13  Agenda Info Sheet Ward Maps
	13a  Ward Maps with proposed changes
	WardChanges_Landscape.pdf
	WardChanges_Portrait
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4


	13b  Ward stats
	13c  Ordinance 02-03032014 Ward Descriptions
	13d  Redistricting_031214_AllWards
	13e  Redistricting_031214_Ward1
	13f  Redistricting_031214_Ward2
	13g  Redistricting_031214_Ward3
	13h  Redistricting_031214_Ward4
	13i  Redistricting_031214_Ward5
	14  Agenda Info Sheet PAL
	14a  ORDER 24-03172014 PAL
	15  Agenda Info Sheet Montreal rail
	15a  Resolve 04-03172014 Montreal Rail
	16  Agenda Info Sheet  -- Interim Tax Appointment 3-13-14
	16a  Order 25-03172014 Tax Assessor Appointment
	17  Executive Session info sheet City Mgr Review
	18  Ex Session Info sheet Personnel



